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ABOUT THE REPORT

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This Annual Report presents the results of Public Joint stock company “Rosseti Kuban” for
2021, as well as some milestones following the reporting date, between 1 January 2022
and the preliminary approval of the Annual Report by the Board of Directors.

Herein, Public Joint stock company Rosseti Kuban is also referred to as Rosseti Kuban,
PJSC, Rosseti Kuban, the Company, PJSC Kubanenergo (when mentioning the periods
(events) that took place from 22 June 2015 to 10 August 2020), JSC Kubanenergo (when
mentioning the periods (events) that took place before 22 June 2015).

PJSC Rosseti and other legal entities are referred to herein as they were referred to in the
periods mentioned.

STANDARDS

The Report was prepared in accordance with the legislation of the Russian Federation,

including:

+ Federal Law No. 39-FZ “On Securities Market” dated 22 April 1996

« Federal Law No. 208-FZ “On Joint Stock Companies” dated 26 December 1995
(hereinafter — Federal Law “On Joint Stock Companies”)

+ Regulation of the Central Bank of the Russian Federation (hereinafter — the Bank of
Russia) No. 714-P dated 27 March 2020 “On Disclosure of Information by Issuers of
Equity Securities”

+ Recommendations of the Corparate Governance Code of the Bank of Russia for use by
joint stock companies having stock-exchange securities, by the Letter of the Bank of
Russia No. 06-52/2463 dated 10 April 2014 (hereinafter — the Corporate Governance
Code of the Bank of Russia)

Recommendations on disclosure of non-financial information related to the activities of
public joint stock companies sent by the letter of the Bank of Russia No. IN-06-28/49
dated 12 July 2021

MATERIAL TOPICS

The Report discloses the following material topics related to the Company's activities:
- environmental aspects of activities

- energy saving and energy efficiency

« social aspects and employee relations issues

occupational safety and health

consumer relations

countering corruption, commercial bribery and bribery of foreign officials
information on the Company's contribution to the goals of the United Nations
information on stakeholder engagement
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DISCLAIMER

This Annual Report (hereinafter referred to as the Repart) was prepared using the
information available to Rosseti Kuban, PJSC and its subsidiaries at the time of the Report
compilation.

The Report contains information, including the data related to the future production and
business operations of Rosseti Kuban, PJSC based on the projections and estimates of
the Company's management in line with the current situation. For objective reasons, the
actual performance may differ from these forecasts and assessments.

The Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements regarding the Company's
business operations, financial and economic performance, plans, projects, and expected
results. The Report may also include estimates of trends in service/product prices,
production and consumption volumes, costs, projected expenditures, development
prospects and similar factors, as well as industry and market forecasts, start and end
dates of individual Company operations projects.

The words “intends”, “strives”, “projects”, “expects”, “estimates”, “plans’”, “believes’,

“anticipates”, “may”, “should”, “will" and “will continue”, as well as similar expressions,
generally indicate forward-looking statements.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both
general and specific, and there is a danger that assumptions, forecasts, projections and
other forward-looking statements may not be fulfilled. In light of these risks, uncertainties
and assumptions, the Company warns that actual results may differ significantly from
those expressed either directly or indirectly in such forward-looking statements, which are
only valid as of the date that this Annual Report was drafted.

The Company does not approve or guarantee that the results indicated in the forward-
looking statements will be achieved. Rosseti Kuban does not bear any responsibility for
losses that may be incurred by physical or legal entities, whose actions relied upon the
forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements on a case-by-case basis
are just one of many possible scenarios and should not be treated as the most probable
option.

Except for the cases explicitly stated by the Russian laws, the Company does not
undertake a commitment to publish forward-looking statement updates or amendments
based on both new information and subsequent events.
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MARKET OVERVIEW AND
MACROECONOMIC TRENDS

General status assessment and business WITH NUCLEAR POWER, HYDROPOWER AND OTHER RENEWABLE
trends of the energy sector in the Russian ~ ENERGY SOURCES ACCOUNTING FOR MORE THAN A THIRD OF
Federation' ELECTRICITY GENERATION AND NATURAL GAS FOR ABOUT HALF,

THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION HAS ONE OF THE CLEANEST

The Russian Federation is among the world leaders in hydrocarbon (LOW-CARBON) FUEL-ENERGY BALANCES AMONG THE WORLD'S
reserves, production and export of energy resources, as well as in LARGEST ECONOMIES

the development, use and export of nuclear energy technologies.

ENERGY INFRASTRUCTURE OF THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION

Energy infrastructure of the
Russian Federation

Trunk pipeline system for
Unified gas supply system transporting oil and petroleum
products

Unified Energy System of Russia
(UES of Russia)

The UES of territorially isolated
Integrated Power System (IES) of IES of North-West energy systems: Chukotka

Centre Autonomous District, Kamchatka
Territory, Sakhalin and Magadan
Regions, Norilsko-Taimyr and
Nikolayevsky energy districts, the
energy systems of the northern part
IES of Mid-Volga Region IES of Siberia of the Republic of Sakha (Yakutia)

IES of the Urals Rosseti Kuban, PJSC

" Outlined in accordance with the Energy Strategy of the Russian Federation for the period until 2035, approved by Government Decree No. 1523-r date 9 June 2020.
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Russia, based on its national interests and resource and
intellectual potential, taking into account the need to achieve the
Sustainable Development Goals endorsed by the UN General
Assembly, makes a significant contribution to the global energy
security.

The challenges afflicting the global electric power industry are fully
relevant for the Russian electric power industry, while the threats
are specific as determined by the following issues common to the
whole fuel & energy complex (FEC):

« A slowdown in global economic growth, a change in
consumption patterns and a slumping demand for FEC
products, overproduction of hydrocarbon energy resources and,
as a consequence, persistently low prices for them

« Lack of investment resources, including due to the limited
possibility of raising long-term foreign funding and the poor
development of venture capital lending

- Maintenance of non-market relations, alongside market
relations, and burdens in the end-use of FEC products and
services, including the existence of cross-subsidisation

« The great challenges to scientific and technological
development set out in the Strategy for Scientific and
Technological Development, in particular the qualitative change
in the nature of global and local energy systems, the growing
importance of the power supply capacity of the economy and
the ramp-up in the energy production and conservation, its
transmission and efficient use

In addition to the problems common to the fuel & energy complex,
there are industry-specific problems and risk factors related to the
electric power industry:

- Disproportion between the claimed electricity consumption
characteristics at the time the grid connection is made and their
subsequent actual values

«Low payment discipline of consumers in the retail electricity
market

« Imperfections in the current madel of relations and pricing in
the energy and heat supply sector and competitive problem in
the electricity and capacity markets

- Persistence of cross-subsidisation that reduces the efficiency of
the centralised energy supply system

« Insufficient automation of technological processes and
increased vulnerability of facilities due to the increasing
complexity of their control systems and algorithms

FACTORS DETERMINING THE ECONOMY OF THE RUSSIAN FEDERATION AND AFFECTING

THE ELECTRIC POWER INDUSTRY'

Changes in GDP Inflation Interest rates for loans and borrowings

The GDP volume index in 2021 rose  Inflation in 2021 The Bank of Russia key rate increased from 4.25% at the beginning of the

by 4.7% compared to 2020 and by stood at 8.4%, year to 8.50% as at 31 December 2021. The decision taken by the Board

1.9% compared to 2019 whereas in 2020 —at  of Directors of the Bank of Russia on 17 December 2021 to raise the key
4.91% rate to the said amount is aimed at limiting inflation risks

" Sources: Rosstat, Bank of Russia.
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SPECIFIC FACTORS DETERMINING INDUSTRY GROWTH DYNAMICS (IN DESCENDING ORDER OF IMPORTANCE)

State tariff regulation

Description Electricity transmission and grid connection services are state-regulated activities. Tariffs
for the Company's services approved by regulators directly affect the amount of revenues
received

Current state Tariffs for the Company's electricity transmission services are aligned with the increments
envisaged by the forecast of the Ministry of Economic Development of the Russian
Federation

Mitigation (if possible) Economic justification of tariff-covered costs, including economically justified over-tariff
costs and shortfalls of previous periods lost due to reasons beyond the Company's control

Implementation of measures to improve pricing in the industry, in cooperation with Rosseti

Power consumption dynamics

Description Changing energy consumption has direct relevance to the health of the industry
Current state Actual electricity consumption in the UES of Russia in 2021 was 1,090.4 bn kWh, up 5.5%
year-on-year'

Actual electricity consumption in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of Adygea in
2021 was 29.96 bn kWh, up 9.3% year-on-year?

Mitigation (if possible) Measures to develop new (non-tariff) types of business and increase non-tariff sources of
income

Price dynamics on the Wholesale Electricity and Capacity Market

Description Changes in electricity prices in the wholesale electricity and capacity market (WECM) have
a direct impact on the amount of compensation for electricity losses in power grids and,
accordingly, on all activities of the Company

Current state The flat-rate price for electricity on the WECM in 2021 showed a 4.9% increase
year-on-year
Mitigation (if possible) Measures to reduce power losses in the grids

Current state of the industry

Description The state of the industry directly affects all aspects of the Company's activities

Mitigation (if possible) Implementation of measures for retrofitting, upgrade and renovation of existing power grid
facilities

Introduction of the up-to-date Company’s management tools, automation of key functions
to improve management decision-making

; Source: Report on the Functioning of UES of Russia in 2021 | System Operator of the Unified Power System (so-ups.ru).
Ibid.
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FORECAST FOR ECONOMIC AND ELECTRICITY SUSTAINABILITY IN 2022

By 2022, Russia has formed a sustainable economic base.
According to the Forecast of Social and Economic Development
of the Russian Federation for 2022 and for the planning period
of 2023 and 2024', the main objective of economic policy is

to lay the groundwork for sustainable economic development
and reach the target annual growth rate of 3—3.5%. The second
objective is to increase the economy's resilience and adaptability
to external shocks. However, medium-term forecasts, including
macro indicators, may be revised downwards due to increased
geopolitical risks and sanctions pressure on the domestic
economy.

The key areas of economic policy in the medium term will be as

follows:

« Ensuring effective employment and income growth (primarily
wages and entrepreneurial income through the development
of individual, small and medium-sized entrepreneurship (SME)
and self-employment), which requires higher labour market
flexibility, better training and retraining systems with a focus on
modern competencies, legalisation and increased labour force?
participation rate and effective migration policy

« Launching the investment cycle with a focus primarily on
private investment. At the same time, public investment will
help the creation of infrastructural conditions to attract private
investors as well as improve the quality of life

«  Stimulating technological development, including through
regulatory conditions, integration of science, education and
business

- Boosting export potential with a focus on non-energy exports

«  Implementing the climate agenda

« Increasing the transport cannectivity on the country level

+ Spatial development, which implies reduction of inter-regional
differentiation in the quality of life, while maintaining incentives
for development in the leading regions, increasing the number
of economic growth points

« Developing human capital through higher quality and
accessibility of medicine, education, culture, quality
environment and security (amid mounting calls for better
quality of life) with the use of state-of-the-art technologies

+Maintaining macro stability as a condition for long-term growth

The Russian Ministry of Energy forecasts that electricity
consumption in Russia in 2022 will hit about 2% figure compared
to 2021 and reach 1,129 bn kWh?,

" Source: https://www.economy.gov.ru/material/directions/makroec/prognozy_socialno_ekonomicheskogo_razvitiya/.

2.

(gks.ru).
* Source: https://tass.ru/ekonomika/13573289.

Labour force participation rate is the ratio of the labour force (employed and unemployed) of a certain age group to the total population of the respective age group calculated as a percentage


https://www.economy.gov.ru/material/directions/makroec/prognozy_socialno_ekonomicheskogo_razvitiya/
https://tass.ru/ekonomika/13573289
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MISSION AND

VALUES OF

THE COMPANY -

ROSSETI KUBAN'S MISSION IS TO GENERATE
PROFIT IN THE CONTEXT OF LONG-TERM
RELIABLE, HIGH-QUALITY AND AFFORDABLE
POWER SUPPLY TO CONSUMERS

IN THE KRASNODAR TERRITORY AND

THE REPUBLIC OF ADYGEA. THE MISSION IS
REALISED THROUGH THE MOST EFFICIENT
MANAGEMENT OF THE DISTRIBUTION

GRID INFRASTRUCTURE. TO THIS END,

THE COMPANY INTRODUCES ADVANCED
TECHNOLOGIES AND INNOVATIONS,

WHILE ALIGNING WITH GLOBAL QUALITY
STANDARDS OF SERVICE PROVISION AND
APPLYING BEST CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES.

REELTITY

Human

VALUES OF

Effici
e THE COMPANY

Security

Social responsibility




Rosseti Kuban's values are embodied in the Company's Code of Corporate Ethics and
Conduct of Employees.

Reliability. The Company is committed to ensuring the most reliable and uninterrupted
power supply to the economic and sacial sectors of the Russian Federation and to this end
has organisational and technical measures in place to guarantee the stable operation and
safety of electric power facilities.

Human resources. The Company's key resource is its employees, who help the Company
to create, retain and multiply the value and credibility over the long term. Whether the
Company is to achieve its strategic goals and objectives set by the state depends to a large
extent on the professionalism, integrity, and safety of labour of its employees.

Every employee is valuable to the Company regardless of gender, age, colour, nationality,
and position, and all of them have equal opportunities for successful and effective work,
professional development and career progress.

The staff structure (including management of the Company) is based on the principles of
fairness and objectivity. The decision-making on appointment or transfer is governed by
business qualities only.

The Company welcomes labour dynasties, creates favourable conditions for their
development, and supports the continuity of generations, while showing respect for the
experience of veterans and ensuring the transfer of knowledge and traditions to younger
employees, including in labour dynasties.

Efficiency. The Company is aware of its responsibilities to shareholders, investors, and
partners, that is why performance efficiency is a fundamental value. The Company works
towards continuous profit growth enabled by the strategic initiatives of supervision and
governance bodies, top management, and shareholders.

Security. The Company relies on a strictly regulated and balanced approach to security as
it takes measures to prevent possible offences.

Social Responsibility. Rosseti Kuban is a socially responsible company that focuses on
environmental protection, occupational safety, and social programmes.

Below are the principles of professional ethics and conduct binding upon all employees of
the Company:

+ Professionalism

+ Integrity and responsibility

+ Interaction and collaboration

+ Image and reputation

- Confidentiality

The Company shall not sacrifice its values for profi, as it sees them as a crucial
component that links all of its activities, and the Company expects the same from its
business partners.

The Company holds dear its corporate values and maintains a high level of the corporate
culture.

Please see the Code of Corporate Ethics and Conduct of Employees



https://rosseti-kuban.ru/o-kompanii/uchreditelnye-i-vnutrennie-dokumenty/vnutrennie-polozheniya/?




Leningrad Power Grids

Tikhoretsk Power Grids

Timashevsk Power Grids

Ust-Labinsk Power Grids

Slavyansk Power Grids

South-West Power Grids Armavir Power Grids

Krasnodar Power Grids

Adygean Power Grids

Labinsk Power Grids

Sochi Power Grids
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POSITION OF ROSSETI KUBAN IN UES OF RUSSIA,
IES OF SOUTH AND REGION OF OPERATION IN TERMS OF :
ELECTRICITY DELIVERY TO THE COMPANY'S GRID IN 2019-2021 (BN KWH)

Indicators 2019 2020 2021  Rosseti Kuban's share
in 2021 (%)
Electricity consumption of the UES of Russia 1,059.4 1,033.7 1,090.4 2.3
Including:
|ES of South 101.28 100.69 108.27 233
Krasnodar Territory and Republic of Adygea 27.63 27.42 29.96 84.2
« PJSC Rosseti Kuban (electricity delivery to the 22.85 23.01 25.22 100
Company's grid)

THE COMPANY’S SHARE IN THE REGIONAL ELECTRICITY ~ KEY CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COMPANY
TRANSMISSION MARKET (OF THE REQUIRED GROSS AS OF THE END OF 2021
REVENUE (RGR) FOR THE REGION) (%)

Length of power transmission lines 93.1 (by circuit)
754 715 772 S KT
Number of 35-220 kV SS, 24,835
6-10(35)/0.4 kV TS
Maximum allowable design capacity of the 9,014.9
energy system? (MVA)
Design capacity utilisation rate of the 5,593, or
energy system (MVA) 78.95%°
Total number of electricity metering 1,159,940
points of consumers connected to Rosseti
Kuban's power grids according to the
electricity transmission agreements
concluded
2019 2020 2021 Power grid branches 1

Rosseti Kuban is the largest power grid company in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of Adygea.

In its day-to-day operations, Rosseti Kuban balances out interests and creates value for all stakeholders, contributes to the economic
growth of the regions where it operates, adheres to the concept of sustainable development, and ensures reliable and affordable energy
supply to consumers.

" Source: Reports on the functioning of UES of Russia published by SO UPS at https: //www.so-ups.ru/functioning/tech-disc/tech-disc2022/.
R Only for 110 kV substations.
¥ The under-utilisation of design capacity is due to the need for redundancy in case of an emergency outage or scheduled repairs.
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THE COMPANY ALSO USES FINANCIAL, INDUSTRIAL,
INTELLECTUAL, HUMAN, SOCIAL AND REPUTATIONAL,
AND ENVIRONMENTAL CAPITAL (RESOURCES).

FINANCIAL CAPITAL PRODUCTION CAPITAL

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL HUMAN CAPITAL

ENVIRONMENTAL
CAPITAL

SOCIAL AND
REPUTATION CAPITAL
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CHANGE IN THE COST OF CAPITAL FOR 2021

Capitals as at 31 December 2020

How we created value in the reporting
year

2021 results

Financial capital

The loss was RUB 1,501 mn due to the
influence of negative factors associated
with the spread of the new coronavirus
infection (COVID-19).

Net asset value at the end of the year was
RUB 37,989 mn.

The decrease in net assets per year
amounted to RUB 2,116 mn due to the
decrease in equity due to a year-end loss.
The Company's market capitalisation' is
RUB 22.69 bn

Production capital

Total number of 35-220 kV substations
(SS) and 6-10(35)/0.4 kV transformer
substations (TS) is 24,186.

The length of power transmission lines
(PTL) is 92,230 km.

The installed capacity of 35-110 kV
substations is 11,471.07 MVA.

Installed capacity of substations in the
10-6/0.4 kV distribution grid is 5,073.26
MVA,

Repair cost of key production assets in
2020 is RUB 3 bn.

System Average Interruption Duration
Index (I.,.) is 0.887 h

SAIDI)

" Calculated by PJSC Moscow Exchange at the market price (3).

Total revenue in 2021 is RUB 57,670 mn, up
RUB 8,300 mn year-on-year.

EBITDA in 2021 is RUB 8,879 mn, up

RUB 4,124 mn year-on-year.

The figures are driven up by growing
revenues from electricity transmission

due to increased consumption, as well as
revenues from grid connection as a result of
agreements with large applicants

RUR 5,871 mn of capital investment (excl.

VAT) was disbursed.

Renewal of the following energy assets is

underway:

« commissioning of new, renovated and
upgraded facilities, including during grid
connection of consumers, renovation and
modernisation of equipment;

- consolidation of grid assets on the basis
of the Company;

- write-off of obsolete equipment;

- transfer to reserve or decommissioning
of equipment.

The volume of electricity transmission
services is 21,004.5 mn kWh, up 9.9% year-
on-year (revenues — RUB 54,526.3 mn).
Number of grid connections completed in
2021 is 33,795 with a total capacity of 788
MW (revenues — RUB 2,347.7 mn)

As the volume of services provided

grew larger due to higher electricity

consumption, revenues from electricity

transmission went up and resulted in the

profit of RUB 1,711.8 mn.

Net asset value at the end of the year was

RUB 40,466 mn.

The increase in net assets for the year was

RUB 2,476 mn on the back of an increase

in equity due to the year-end profit.

Market capitalisation of the Company:

« excluding outstanding additional
shares — RUB 21.99 bn;

« including outstanding additional
shares — RUB 22.46 bn

Total number

35-220 kV substations and 6—10(35)/

0.4 kV transformer substations is 24,835
The length of power transmission lines
(PTL) is 93.07 ths km.

The installed capacity of 35110 kV
substations is 11,561.03 MVA.

The installed capacity of substations in the
10-6/0.4 kV distribution grid is 5,640 MVA.
Repair cost of key production assets is
RUB 3.3 bn.

The system average interruption duration
index () is 4.0939 h, which is above

the previous year's level, but within the
planned limits.

The number of accidents in the 110 kV and
above grid decreased by 3% as compared
to the previous year
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Capitals as at 31 December 2020

How we created value in the reporting
year

22 23

2021 results

Intellectual capital

The intangible asset value was

RUB 145.5 mn.

The actual value of the research and
development (R&D) expenditure (Izgp)
indicator stood at 0.24% of own revenues,
with the plan of 0.15%.

The actual value of the Innovative Products
(Goods, Works, Services) Procurement
Indicator (Iovarions) Was 4.55% of the
actual investment programme utilisation,
with the plan of 4.5% (RUB 210 mn)

Human capital

The headcount was 9,274 people. The
average headcount was 8,959 people.
The staffing level at the end of the year
was 96.9%.

Employees with higher vocational
education — 49.4% and with primary/
secondary vocational education — 36.9%.
The annual purchase order for working
wear and shoes was fully executed

Social and reputation capital

A high degree of social responsibility.
High level of business transparency:
Company's website, mass media, Internet,
and congress and exhibition events

Environmental capital

Environmental costs in 2020 were
RUB 17.8 mn.

Delivery of the R&D Programme, the
integration of equipment and devices
developed under the R&D Programme.
Introduction of innovative technologies and
solutions

A total of 8,530 people trained (96.1% of
the average headcount). Staff training costs
amounted to RUB 76.3 mn.

The Company's occupational safety costs
in 2021 increased by 20% compared to
2020 and amounted to RUB 434.32 mn.
Activities under comprehensive programme
scheduled for 2021 were fully executed.

To promote employees' health and life-
span, the Company purchased necessary
protection and safety equipment in 2021

Creating public awareness on the
Company's activities: 30,088 publications
related to the Company's activities were
made in the federal and regional media, as
well as on social media resources in 2021

All planned environmental activities were
implemented in the reporting year

The actual value of the R&D expenditure
(Irsp) indicator is 0.16% of own revenues,
with the plan of 0.15%.

The actual value of the Innovative Products
(Goods, Works, Services) Procurement
Indicator (wovarions) Was 4.33%, with the
plan of 4.6%

The headcount is 8,981 people. The
average headcount is 8,876 people.
The staffing level at the end of the year
was 92.9%.

Employees with higher vocational
education — 51.5% and with primary/
secondary vocational education — 34.5%.
The annual purchase order for working
wear and shoes was fully executed.
The Company's employees received
compensation payments, including the
provision of voluntary health insurance
services

Accumulation of reputation capital.

Over 73% of the messages concerning the
activities of Rosseti Kuban initiated by the
Company's PR departments were positive,
and 26% — neutral

Environmental costs in 2021 were
RUB 19.3 mn
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BUSINESS MODEL OF ROSSETI KUBAN, PJSC

GENERATION

94,526

RUB mn

— REVENUE FROM SALES OF ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION
SERVICES IN 2021 (+13.4% VS. 2020)

ﬁ MAIN GRIDS
PJSC FGC UES

21,004.5

mn kWh

— VOLUME OF ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION SERVICES IN
2021 (+9.9% VS. 2020)

GRID CONNECTION

33,795

NUMBER OF GRID CONNECTIONS COMPLETED IN 2021

2,348 RUB mn

REVENUE FROM GRID CONNECTION SERVICES FOR
2021

788 mW

24,835

TOTAL NUMBER OF 35-220 KV SSS,
6-10(35) KV TSS

11.6 ths MVA

TOTAL CAPACITY OF SUBSTATIONS

93.07 ths km

TOTAL CAPACITY OF CONNECTED POWER FACILITIES

PTL LENGTH
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Sl SHAREHOLDERS
&=l AND INVESTORS

@ PUBLIC AUTHORITIES

MINISTRY OF ENERGY ROSSTANDART GOVERNMENT

OF THE RUSSIAN :

FEDERATION ROSACCREDITATION : MAJORITY SHAREHOLDER
FEDERAL AGENCY FOR ROSTECHNADZOR MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS
STATE PROPERTY REGIONAL AUTHORITIES :

MANAGEMENT : OTHER SHAREHOLDERS
FAS OF RUSSIA

REC

ELECTRICITY CONSUMERS

GOVERNMENT

— ELECTRICITY RETAILERS
(GUARANTEEING SUPPLIERS)

DIRECT CONSUMER
47> OTHER TYPES OF ACTIVITIES > DIRECT CONSUMERS

— TERRITORIAL GRID ORGANISATIONS

796 RUB mn

REVENUE FROM ADDITIONAL SERVICES IN 2021
(+48.4% V'S. 2020)
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SCHEME OF THE COMPANY'S ELECTRICITY

TRANSMISSION OPERATING FLOWS

Guaranteeing suppliers and
electricity retailers

Payment to compensate for electricity
losses in the grids of Rosseti Kuban
during transmission

Payment for services of
electricity transmission to
consumers of the Company and
downstream TGOs who
concluded energy supply
agreements with electricity
retailers

Consumers of guaranteeing
suppliers and electricity
retailers

Payment under energy supply
agreements (purchase and sale
(supply) of electricity to consumers

Services of electricity transmission to
consumers who concluded energy
supply agreements with retailers

PJSC FGC UES

Electricity supply to the grids
of Rosseti Kuban — 77% of
electricity volume

Payment for electricity
transmission services

i“‘ ROSSETI

s

KUBAN

HOLDER OF
“POT AT THE TOP”

Electricity consumers
(direct agreements)
|

Services of electricity
transmission to consumers
who signed direct electricity
transmission agreements

Individual tariff calculations

Related grids
(Stavropolenergo,
Karachaevo-
Cherkesskenergo,
and Rostovenergo)

> I

Electricity supply to the grids of
Rosseti Kuban — 5% of electricity
volume

Generation: the subjects
of the retail and
wholesale electricity
(capacity) market

NGEw— |

Electricity supply to the grids of
Rosseti Kuban — 18% of
electricity volume

Downstream territorial
grid organisations (TGOs)
in the Krasnodar Territory
and the Republic of
Adygea, including LLC
Maikop CHPP

—> I

Electricity flows

Financial flows
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The Company'’s grids receive electricity:

+via the UNPG grids from PJSC FGC UES — 77% in the reporting
year;

- directly from the generation facilities — 18% in the reporting
year,

- from related grids (Stavropolenergo, a branch of Rosseti
Northern Caucasus, PJSC; Karachaevo-Cherkesskenergo,
JSC; Rostovenergo, a branch of Rosseti South, PJSC) — 5%
in the reporting year.

Consumers of Rosseti Kuban's electricity transmission services are:

« guaranteeing suppliers (JSC NESK and TNS Energo Kuban
in the reporting year), which are subjects of the wholesale
and retail markets that sell electricity to end users connected
to the grids of the Company and other grid organisations;

- electricity retailers (53 in the reporting year), which are subjects
of the wholesale and retail markets that sell electricity to end
users connected to the grids of the Company and other grid
organisations;

«consumers (94 in the reporting year) that signed direct
agreements to purchase electricity from Rosseti Kuban
(JSC Novoroscement, 0JSC Tamanneftegaz, LLC Eurochem-
Belorechenskie Minudabrenia, LLC Ptitsefabrika Primorskaya,
0JSC Agrofirma-Plemzavod Pobeda, JSC RAMO-M, FSBI
Kubanmeliovodkhoz Administration, 0JSC Sad-Gigant,
0JSC Verkhnebakansky Cement Plant, CJSC Abrau-Durso,

JSC Novoroslesexport, PJSC NMTP, LLC Formika-Yug,
LLC Kanevskoy Gas Equipment Plant, 0JSC IPP, etc.).

The Company receives payment for its electricity transmission
services from electricity retailers and from direct consumers
respectively.

To compensate for electricity losses occurred during transmission
in the Company's grids, Rosseti Kuban buys the appropriate
amount of electricity from guaranteeing suppliers such

as PJSC TNS Energo Kuban and JSC NESK, as well as from

LLC Renewable Energy Sources.

26 27

Since 2007, the region has had a common pot tariff for electricity
transmission services in place, which applies to all consumers
of electricity transmission services in Kuban and Adygea,
regardless of which grid organisation they are connected to.

The main settlement model is the “Pot at the top™: Rosseti Kuban
is assigned the status of the backbone grid organisation — the "pot
holder". Under this model, consumers' payments for electricity
transmission services (regardless of which grid organisation

they are connected to) are received by Rosseti Kuban, after

which the Company makes settlements with downstream grid
organisations, which grids consumer terminals are connected to,
atindividual tariffs.

The largest companies engaged in similar activities

in the regional electricity transmission market include
JSC NESK Electroseti, JSC Oboronenergo, 0JSC RZD,
and JSC Neftegaztekhnologia-Energia.

A competition risk for the Company could arise in case PJSC FGC
UES concluded agreements for electricity transmission services
with consumers located in the Issuer's area of responsibility,
whose consumer terminals are connected to FGC UES's grids.

In order to retain its status as a “pot-holder”, the Company
makes every effort to maintain the current service provision

and settlement model. For this purpose, the Company concludes
agreements with FGC UES to lease its power grid facilities, where
the power installations of the Company's customers are indirectly
connected to.

The high rates of renovation and renewal of the Company's power
grid facilities, as well as the steadily-growing number of grid
connections, allow us to believe that the Company will retain its
dominant position in the regional electricity transmission market
in the future.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The organisational structure of Rosseti Kuban, PJSC was altered
in 2021 subject to the decisions of the Board of Directors. As
of 31 December 2021, Rosseti Kuban has the organisational

structure in place that was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on 30 November 2021 (Minutes No. 455/2021 dated
1 December 2021).
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INDICATORS

Indicator 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020 (%)

Financial indicators’

Revenue (RUB mn) 42,253.0 46,4011 51,003.7 493696 57,6697 168
Productioncost? RUBmn) 383690 416169 439361 469753 500545 66
‘Netprofit(oss) RUBmn) 5253 1512 25037  -15013 17118 -
Reumonequity %) 48 043 672 38 43 -
‘Retunonassets %) 68 17 W3 B V7
‘Cashattheendof theyear 16677 20945 1696 7180 19647  Increase byafactor of

(RUB mn) 2.74
‘Long-term loans and borrowings 22,6178 132832 194329 178829 160363 103

at the end of the year (RUB mn)

Short-term loans and borrowings 90  13%3 36526 5599  48%2 - 130
at the end of the year (RUB mn)
Amountof dividends accrued i~ 5351 216 36 6369 (R 1000

the reporting year based on the
previous year results (RUB mn)

Assimilation of capital 6,700 1,727 6,769 4,658 5871 26.0
investments (RUB mn)

Operating indicators

Average power outage duration,
per point of delivery (I, h)

SAIDY

System average interruption
frequency, per paint of delivery
(|SAIFI)

Total length of overhead and cable
power lines (by circuit; km)

" The following data were used to calculate the indicators:
for 2019 — Balance Sheet for 2020 (“As at 31 December 2019" column), Profit and Loss Statement for January — December 2020 (“In 2019” column);
for 2020 — Balance Sheet for 2021 (“As at 31 December 2020" column), Profit and Loss Statement for January — December 2021 (“In 2020" column);
for 2021. — Balance Sheet for 2021. (“As at 31 December 2021” column), Profit and Loss Statement for January — December 2021 (“In 2021” column).

! Including administrative costs.

Increase by a factor of
4.62

Increase by a factor
of 2.8
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Indicator 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020 (%)
Installed capacity of 35-220 kV 9,696.63 9,937.1 10,514.97 11,471.07  11,561.03 0.8
e o OO OO OO OO
Installed capacity of substationsin ~ 4,805.905 4,896.04 4,981.68 507326  5,640.37 11.2

the 10-6/0.4 kV (MVA) distribution

O ettt et et et et et et et et et e e
Electricity delivery to the 22,6332 23,0325 22,850.7 23,0080 252217 9.6

O S R e eee s ee e e sne e st e ens e st et st e e
Electricity transmission services 18,204.1 18,766.5 18,874.2 19,108.1 21,0045 99

O O ) e e

Flectriclosses (mnkWh) .. 27290 .. 23901 24264 23108 202 B3
Connected consumer capacity 684 723 797 650 788 21.2

e et
Actual average headcount (people) 8,494 8,611 8,644 8,959 8,876 -0.9
Staff breakdown by education

Higher vocational education () B3 B4 BT a M3 B
Secondary and basic vocational 39.2 36.5 35.7 36.7 344 -23

education (%)
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ELECTRICITY DELIVERED TO THE GRID FROM ROSSETI KUBAN
AND ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION LOSSES (MN KWH)
25,222 +9.6%
22,633 23,033 22,851 23,008 220
19904 20,442 20,424 20,697
+9.84%
I 2,729 2,590 2,426 2,311 2,502 +8.3%
[] [] ] ] ]
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
W Electricity delivered to the grid
W Delivery from the grid to consumers and related TGOs
B Electricity losses
CHANGES IN ROSSETI KUBAN’S KEY ECONOMIC INDICATORS
(RUB MN)
57,670 +16.8%
51,004
- 46,401 o3 49,370 46975 50,055
38369 41,617 +6.6%
J— I | —
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
H Revenue

B Production cost (including administrative expenses)
B Net income (loss)
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CAPITAL INVESTMENTS ASSIMILATED BY THE AMOUNT OF DIVIDENDS ACCRUED AND PAID IN
COMPANY IN 2017-2021 2017-2021 BASED ON THE PREVIOUS YEAR RESULTS
(RUB MN, EXCL.VAT) (RUB MN)
7,727
6,700 6,769
' 636.9
5871 +/00
26@ 535.1
4,658
3216
143.6

0

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

NUMBER OF DISTURBANCES (EMERGENCIES) IN THE
110 KV AND ABOVE POWER GRID

403 391

2019 2020 2021
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HISTORY OF ORIGIN AND
DEVELOPMENT OF THE
KUBAN ENERGY SYSTEM AND
PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN

Q XIXth century supervision of the operation of Kuban power installations.
Krasnodarenergo managed power stations, substations,
Start of the Kuban energy system — construction of small power grid regions (PGR), electricity retailing services, a
power plants in the region mechanical repair plant, a central warehouse, a design and
survey bureau, a production and research laboratory as
independent self-supporting enterprises
QO 1920

Establishment of Soviet rule in Kuban, nationalisation of all C) Late 1950s — early 1960s
industrial enterprises
Construction of 110 and 220 kV main transmission lines

for connection with energy systems in Russian South and
C) 1921 Transcaucasia; electrification of the railway system in the
Krasnodar Territory, construction of power distribution
Establishment of the Electricity Department under Kuban facilities, electrification of rural settlements
Black Sea National Economic Council to manage power
facilities in Kuban.

(O 1963

In total, there were 353 electric power plants operating in
Kuban, with a total capacity of 13.7 MW; 16,200 of electric Kuban urban and rural power grid organisations were
lamps and 621 electric motors were connected to the grid. transferred from the Regional Department for Public Utilities
to Krasnodarenergo

Establishment of the Vodeltram association, comprising the
city and municipal water, transport (tram) and electricity

supply services in Krasnodar. The length of power C) 1970s - 1980s
transmission lines was 45 km, and power grids were rated
at2 kv Significant increase in the construction of new power

transmission lines due to explosive growth in electricity
consumption. Total PTL length grew to 90,000 km, and the
C) 1930s 35-500 kV substations exceeded 700 in number

Establishment of the Northern Caucasus Energy Authority —
Sevkavenergo, which managed power facilities in Kuban. C) 1972-1975

Division of Sevkavenergo into two independent authorities in The first two gas turbine plants in the USSR, each of 100 MW

1934 — Azchernenergo (Rostov-on-Don) and Sevkavenergo capacity, were installed at the Krasnodardskaya CHPP. The

(Pyatigorsk) CHPPs, the modular part, and two gas turbine plants had a
total capacity of 959 MW.

O 1944

Spin-off of the Krasnodar District Energy Authority

(O 1988

(Krasnodarenergo) from Azcherenergo, with its core Krasnodarenergo as the Krasnodar District Energy Authority
activities being the generation, distribution and sale of was wound up and transformed into the Krasnodar
electricity and heat, restoration and development of Production Association of Power Supply and Electrification

the energy system, control of energy consumption and (still named Krasnodarenergo)
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O 1988

Krasnodarenergo as the Krasnodar District Energy Authority
was wound up and transformed into the Krasnodar
Production Association of Power Supply and Electrification
(still named Krasnodarenergo)

1993

Krasnodarenergo was privatised and reorganised into

0JSC Kubanenergo. Apart from local power grid operators,
Kubanenergo included the Krasnodarskaya CHPP,
Energonadzor, repair and construction enterprises, a training
school, a corporate spa resort, and a summer pioneer camp.

0JSC RAO UES of Russia vested 49% of 0JSC Kubanenergo's
shares as a payment for authorised capital, and remaining
51% were acquired by employees and other parties entitled
to benefits according to State Privatisation Programme

() 2004-2005

During the reformation stage of Russia’s electric power
industry, 0JSC Kubanenergo was released from service and
non-core activities and dispatching functions by splitting
them off into separate companies. Thus, the operational
dispatch management was transferred to 0JSC SO UES;
Open Joint Stock Companies Krasnodarenergoremont

and Krasnodarenergosetremont, Energetik Health Resort,
Plamya Health Facility were established and non-state non-
profit educational institution Kubanenergo Training Centre
was set up

(O 2006

The reforms taking place in the electric power

industry resulted into 0JSC Kubanenergo splitting

into 0JSC Kuban Generating Company (generating
capacities), 0JSC Kuban Main Grids (grid facilities),

0JSC Kubanenergosbyt (guaranteeing electricity supplier,
purchase of electricity in the wholesale market to deliver it
to the end users)

(O 2008-2012

Since 1 July 2008 0JSC Kubanenergo became a dependent
company in 0JSC IDGC Holding, which received a

block of voting shares in 0JSC Kubanenergo by way of
succession under the spin-off balance sheet as a result

of the restructuring of 0JSC RAQ UES of Russia. In 2012,
0JSC IDGC Holding acquired a block of additional shares in
0JSC Kubanenergo, and the Company became a subsidiary
to 0JSC IDGC Holding.

The Company'’s primary function in 0JSC IDGC Holding lied
in partaking in how the national distribution grid complex
evolves

32 33

O 2013

0JSC Rosseti (until 2013 — 0JSC IDGC Holding) was used as a
base to establish a single power grid management company
(which included main power transmission and distribution
grids) with an aim to provide coordination of all grid operators
in Russia in terms of tariffs, technical policy and investment
planning, to ensure transparency of financial and business
operations and anti-corruption efforts.

0JSC Rosseti's share in the authorised capital of
0JSC Kubanenergo rose to 92.24%

O 2015

Kubanenergo brand name included an indication of the
Company's public status — Kubanenergo, PJSC

O 2017

The Company became a key participant of a national-

level project involving development of advanced energy
infrastructure on the Taman Peninsula to ensure the region's
growth and enable power supply of the dry-cargo area of the
seaport of Taman

O 2018

PJSC Rosseti's share in the authorised capital of
PJSC Kubanenergo rose to 92.78%

O 2019

Commissionning of the 220 kV Port substation.
PJSC Rosseti's share in the authorised capital of
PJSC Kubanenergo rose to 93.44%

O 2020

While following the trend of transitioning to a single brand
architecture of Rosseti Group in the Krasnodar Territory and
the Republic of Adygea, Kubanenergo, PJSC was officially
renamed into Rosseti Kuban, PJSC
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KEY EVENTS OF

THE COMPANY

2021

)

O

January

Rosseti Kuban connected two new rural health
facilities in the Yeysk District to its grids. The Leningrad
branch of PJSC Rosseti Kuban powered a general
practitioner's office and a modular rural health post

in the village of Morevka and the isolated farmstead

of Priazovka in the Yeysk District of the Krasnodar
Territory.

The Sochi branch completed the construction of a

0.4 kV overhead power line (OPL) for a rural boiler
house. A new power facility was built in Kroyanskoye
village, Shepshinskoye settlement of the Tuapse
District of the Krasnodar Territory as part of the
modernisation of the power supply system.

Rosseti Kuban started the renovation of power
distribution grid facilities in Yuzhny settlement, a
suburb of Krasnodar. The renewal of the power grids
and the use of modern new larger cross-section wire
will relieve the load on the existing PTL and improve
the quality of the power supply to consumers in the
fast-growing settlement.

ABANDONED POWER FACILITIES OVER THE PAST
THREE YEARS WERE TAKEN INTO SERVICE BY

THE KRASNODAR BRANCH OF ROSSETI KUBAN IN
2019-2021 (44 KM OF PTLS, 22 TSS WITH A TOTAL
CAPACITY OF 6.3 MVA)

U/

February

The 110 kV Pochtovaya substation in Krasnodar started
a major renovation. The power of the power centre,
which powers the households of the Hydrostroiteley
residential area, will be increased, once upgraded, by
one third and will amount to 80 MVA.

Rosseti Kuban budgeted RUB 2.3 bn on upgrading
major substations in Sochi. The key power centres of
the resort city of Sochi — 110 kV Adler, Kudepsta and
Pasechnaya substations will be modernised as part of
Rosseti Kuban's investment programme.

Rosseti Kuban budgeted more than RUB 3 bn for
repair and maintenance of power grid facilities in the
Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of Adygea in
2021. The scope of work includes almost 10,000 km
of overhead power lines, about 1,800 transformer
substations, and the replacement of 67,000 insulators.
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/ /
March April

Rosseti Kuban is set to carry out a large-scale renovation of one of
the major power centres of the Maikop District of the Republic of
Adygea — 35 kV Kuzhorskaya substation and the outgoing 10 kV
overhead power line. After upgrade, the capacity of the power
facility will quadruple to 20 MVA.

The specialists of Rosseti Kuban began an extensive renovation
of the power facilities in Gostagaevskaya stanitsa at the suburb of
Anapa, where the energy infrastructure is virtually the only source
of light and heat for the residents of the settlement. In order to
improve the reliability of energy supply to consumers, the power
engineers will build two new power transmission lines of 10 kV
with a length of 6.6 km in the shortest possible terms and install
130 poles.

The Armavir branch of Rosseti Kuban started the repair of the

110 kV Rechnaya —Zabaikalovskaya overhead power line as part
of the repair campaign with an aim to ensure a high level of power
grid reliability. The total amount of funding allocated to repairs is
RUB 1.3 mn.

Specialists of the Adygea branch of Rosseti Kuban got

at the repairs of 110 kV Kabardinskaya — Navaginskaya,
Belorechenskaya Tyagovaya — Ochistnye Sooruzheniya and
Tsentralnaya — Severnaya overhead power lines.

The Company published its three-month results.
Since the beginning of the year, the power engineers
of Rosseti Kuban's South-West branch have powered
almost 100 agricultural enterprises in the Abinsky and
Krymsky districts, as well as in the suburbs of Anapa,
Novorossiysk and Gelendzhik. The total capacity of
the connected agricultural facilities in the South West
energy district was 2 MW. During the same period,
power engineers of the Armavir branch of Rosseti
Kuban repaired 790 km of overhead power lines and
43 transformer substations in five eastern districts of
Kuban.

Rosseti Kuban, a branch of Adygean Power Grids,

and Maikop State Technological University signed

a cooperation agreement on the rights of social
partnership. The event was attended by Saida Kuizheva,
rector of Bauman Moscow State Technical University,
and Rustam Magdeev, director of the Adygeyan Power
Grids.
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Andrey Ryumin, head of Rosseti Group, and Veniamin Kondratyev,
governor of the Krasnodar Territory, discussed the functioning

and development of the power grid complex in the region. The
participants in the meeting reviewed the progress of the grids'
preparation for the holiday season — 970 transformer substations
and over 5,600 km of overhead power lines of the distribution grids
were repaired, and 39,000 insulators were replaced. To minimise
the risk of creeping fires, about 950 hectares of PTLs were cleared.

Rosseti Kuban completed the grid connection of a solar power
generation facility with a capacity of 4.5 MW in the Shovgenovsky
district of the Republic of Adygea. To technically connect the

new facility, power engineers built a 10 kV overhead power line
and expanded the 110 kV Shovgenskaya substation by installing
additional cubicle outdoor switchgears. This is the key power
centre of the homonymous district in northern Adygea, where
more than 16,000 people live.

Specialists from Rosseti Kuban won the regional professional
skills competition Best in Profession organised by the Ministry of
Fuel and Energy Complex (FEC), Housing and Utilities Services of
the Krasnodar Territory.

The Company summed up the results of teaching schoolchildren
the basics of electrical safety: during the 2020/2021 school
year, lessons were conducted in 30 schools in the suburbs

of Novorossiysk, Anapa, Gelendzhik, and the Abinsky and
Krymsky districts of the Krasnodar Territory, involving a total of
1,500 schoolchildren aged 7 to 15.

Andrey Ryumin, Director General of Rosseti Group, presented

Boris Ebzeev, the new head of Rosseti Kuban, to the Governor of
the Krasnodar Territory, Veniamin Kondratiev. The meeting also
discussed the prospects for the development of the regional power
grid complex.

Since the beginning of the year, more than 35 socially
important facilities in the Krasnodar Territory and the
Republic of Adygea have been connected to Rosseti
Kuban's grids. The total capacity of new consumers in
this category was more than 4 MW. New consumers
include health care, education and sports facilities.

Specialists at Rosseti Kuban's Krasnodar branch
repaired 12 major power centres and over 100
transformer substations. This made it possible to
improve the reliability of power supply to 500,000
household consumers and a number of industrial
consumers in the suburbs of Krasnodar, the adjacent
Dinsky, Seversky and Goryacheklyuchevsky Districts in
the Krasnodar Territory, as well as the Takhtamukaisky
and Teuchezhsky Districts in the Republic of Adygea.

Rosseti Kuban's Adygea branch has overhauled 1,160
km of overhead power lines since the beginning of
2021. These PTLs supply electricity to consumers

and important social facilities in eight districts in the
Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of Adygea, with a
total population of over 520,000 people.

The Company reported that the Armavir branch of
Rosseti Kuban carried out an overhaul of the power
equipment at the 35 kV Nikolenskaya substation.
The power centre supplies electricity to ten socially
important facilities and over 7,500 residents of the
Gulkevichy District. More than RUB 2.4 mn have been
allocated to improve the reliability of the energy hub.
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During a working meeting in Maikop, the Head of the Republic of
Adygea, Murat Kumpilov, and the acting General Director of Rosseti
Kuban, Boris Ebzeev, discussed the prospects for modernising

the region's energy infrastructure. Representatives of Rosseti
Kuban reported that the Company plans to invest RUB 4.2 bn in the
development of the power grid complex in the Republic of Adygea
by 2023.

The head of Sachi, Alexey Kopaigorodsky, thanked power
engineers from Rosseti Kuban for their concerted efforts in
organising and carrying out restoration and remedial measures at
flooded power facilities and ensuring the electrical safety of the
population.

Specialists at the Company's Krasnodar branch have prepared
about 600 km of power transmission lines and about 150 power
centres of various voltage classes for the autumn-winter season
of 2021/2022. The taken technical measures improved power
supply reliability for more than 900,000 residents of Kuban and
Adygea.

Rosseti Kuban summed up the results of the seventh
labour season of student teams. Eight teams of
students from higher and secondary educational
institutions in the Krasnodar Territory and the Rostov
Region took part in the 2021 summer season — a total
of about 100 people.

The Company's specialists conducted an online tour
of the 220 kV Port substation for participants of the
energy project shift of Rosseti Group. The participants
were 83 teenagers with strong performance in the
All-Russian Olympiad for power grid holding students
and nominees of the All-Russian Forums “Step into
the Future”, “ProeKTOriya", and “Big Challenges” — a
scientific and educational programme of Sirius.

The Rosseti Young Professionals Open Corporate
WorldSkills Professional Skills Championships were
held in Krasnodar, with ten teams from across Russia
partaking.
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KEY EVENTS OF
THE COMPANY

2021

O

September

During his working trip to the Southern Federal District, Andrey Ryumin,
Director General of Rosseti, held a meeting with Boris Ebzeev, Head of Rosseti
Kuban, discussing the key issues of preparation for the autumn-winter
period. The total funding for Rosseti Kuban's annual programme to repair and
maintain power grid facilities in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of
Adygea in 2021 amounted to RUB 3.06 bn.

During an offsite meeting with the head of Sochi — Alexey Kopaigorodsky,
Edgar Armaganyan, First Deputy General Director, Director of Rosseti Kuban —
Sochi Power Grids branch, spoke about the staged modernisation programme
for three key power centres located in the resort city of Sochi.

The Company summed up the results of its summer campaign to prevent
electrical injuries among children and teenagers. Almost 5,000 children and
teenagers in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of Adygea joined the
Safe Energy — Happy Summer campaign during the summer school holidays.
Theme-based activities were held at school grounds, summer recreation
camps and children's centres.

Since the beginning of 2021, 24 pre-school and general education institutions
have been connected to Rosseti Kuban's power grids. The total capacity
delivered to schools and kindergartens was 1.4 MW.

Rosseti Kuban's team won the WorldSkills Professional Skills Championship in
the Smart Metering Systems competency.

)
U/

October

Rosseti Kuban, PJSC commissioned about
20 MW of additional capacity for the grid
connection of subsidised consumers in
the suburbs of Novorossiysk, Anapa,
Gelendzhik, and the Abinsky and Krymsky
Districts of the Krasnodar Territory.

Since the beginning of 2021, over 22,000
consumer terminals in the Krasnodar
Territory and the Republic of Adygea have
been connected to the grid. The Company's
capacity output totalled 556 MW.

During the Russian Energy Week 2021
international forum, Rosseti Kuban and
the research and production enterprise
JSC Radio and Microelectronics signed

a strategic cooperation agreement to
initiate the pilot operation of new Russian-
made high-tech equipment at power grid
facilities.
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November

Specialists of the Adygea branch of Rosseti Kuban completed the grid
connection of four obstetric stations in rural settlements of the Krasnodar
Territory and the Republic of Adygea since the beginning of 2021. The total
capacity of the connected health facilities was 60 kW.

The Company earmarked more than RUB 3 bn to finance the 2021 repair
campaign. Measures to prepare Rosseti Kuban's power grids for reliable
operation in the autumn-winter period are fully implemented, with some
indicators overrun by 100%. The Company received a certificate of readiness
for the autumn-winter period 2021/2022. The decision on the readiness of
electric power industry entities is formalised by Order No. 1-191 of the Ministry
of Energy of the Russian Federation.

Since the beginning of 2021, the Company's Krasnodar branch has uncovered
337 cases of off-the-meter and uncontracted consumption in Krasnodar

and five neighbouring districts in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic

of Adygea. In monetary terms, the damage to the region's power system
exceeded RUB 122 mn. The relevant certificates were filed for all the cases,
and claims work was initiated.

Rosseti Kuban took part in the Labour, Protection, Security of the Electric-
Power Industry! online conference, which was held as part of the business
programme of the forthcoming international specialised exhibition on
Occupational Safety and Health. During this conference, Rosseti Group
presented a pilot project for implementing the Vision Zero concept, which is
put in place in Rosseti Kuban as well.

Representatives of Rosseti Kuban reported on the construction of a new
power centre — the 110 kV Yuzhnaya Ozereyevka substation and its outgoing
high-voltage power lines in the suburbs of Novorossiysk. Project investments
approximated RUB 1.4 bn.

Rosseti Kuban's team won in the Smart Metering System competence at the
VIII National Championship of Cross-Industry Working Professions in High-
Tech Industries according to the WorldSkills methodology in Yekaterinburg.

)
/

December

The Company powered the Hermonassa —
Tmutarakan archaeological complex, which
is part of the Taman Museum Complex —

a branch of the Krasnodar State Historical
and Archaeological Museum-Reserve
named after E. Felitsyn.

Employees of Rosseti Kuban's Sochi
branch — Alexey Lobanov, head of the
Retrofitting and Renovation of Power Grid
Facilities, and Dmitry Krutov, head of the
Operations and Dispatch Service —won the
All-Russian Energy Leaders competition.
The awards ceremony and a meeting with
the Group's top managers took place in
Moscow on Power Engineer Day.

Since the beginning of the year, employees
of the South-West Power Grid branch of
Rosseti Kuban have stopped 92 cases

of off-the-meter and uncontracted
consumption in Anapa, Novorossiysk,
Gelendzhik, the Krymsky and Abinsky
Districts of the Krasnodar Territory. The
damage to the region's power system
amounted to more than RUB 20 mn.
Several illegal taps were found in large
rural settlements such as Raevskaya and
Natukhaevskaya stanitsas on the outskirts
of Novorossiysk.
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In 2022, Rosseti Kuban, PJSC will
allocate more than RUB 100 mn to repair
power grid equipment in five districts
of the Krasnodar Territory: Tikhoretsky,
Novopokrovsky, Pavlovsky, Beloglinsky
and Krylovsky Districts — as well as
more than RUB 127 mn for repair and
maintenance of power grid facilities

in the suburbs of Anapa, Gelendzhik,
Novorossiysk, and the Abinsky and
Krymsky Districts of the Krasnodar
Territory.

The Company reported on the results

of its HR-related efforts. In 2021, more
than RUB 75 mn were allocated to skill
upgrading and re-skilling courses for its
employees. More than 8,500 employees
of the Company (over 95% of the total
staff) completed their training in additional
vocational education organisations.

The Company summed up the results of
installing the bird diverters in 2021. In the
reporting period, more than 4,200 diverters
were installed in Rosseti Kuban's area

of responsibility. The largest number of

devices have been installed in the Adygean,

Leningrad and Sochi energy districts,
where there are numerous specially
protected natural areas. The installation
of bird diverters on power lines helps to
conserve the bird population and prevent
possible disruptions to the power supply.

The Government House of the Republic of
Adygea hosted a working meeting between
Murat Kumpilov, Head of the Republic, and
Boris Ebzeev, Acting General Director of
the Company, where they discussed plans
to modernise the energy infrastructure

in the region. Rosseti Kuban will channel
more than RUB 3.8 bn of investments

in 2022-2023 to expand the power grid
complex in the Republic of Adygea under
a cooperation agreement between the
Adygean Cabinet of Ministers, Rosseti
Group and the Company signed in 2020.

Rosseti Kuban's investments in the
modernisation and construction of new
power grid facilities in the Krasnodar
Territory and the Republic of Adygea will
double in 2022 compared to the previous
year and amount to over RUB 8 bn.

The Company's investment will allow
commissioning more than 530 MVA of
capacity, as well as about 490 km of new
power transmission lines.

Power engineers of Rosseti Kuban's branch
— Adygeyan Power Grids will install 2,000
new-generation electricity meters in 2022
in the Apsheronsky and Belorechensky
Districts of the Krasnodar Territory and

the Giaginsky, Maikop, Krasnogvardeisky,
Koshekhablsky and Shovgensky Districts
of the Republic of Adygea.

Rosseti Kuban plans to apply more than
RUB 3 bn to repair and maintain the
facilities of the Power Grid Complex of
the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic
of Adygea in 2022. The repair will cover
almost 7,700 km of overhead power lines,
about 1,500 transformer substations,
including the replacement of over 58,000
insulators.

Since the beginning of 2022, specialists at
the Sochi branch of Rosseti Kuban have
recovered by action about RUB 1.2 mn in
damages from unauthorised electricity
consumption. Inspections in the Sochi and
the Tuapse region uncovered five cases of
illegal tampering with electricity metering.

The Company has provided electricity to
135 agricultural enterprises in the Abinsky
and Krymsky Districts of the Krasnodar
Territory, as well as the suburbs of Anapa,
Gelendzhik and Novorossiysk since the
beginning of 2022. The total capacity
connected to the grid was 2.4 MW.












STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PRIORITIES
FOR ROSSETI GROUP

1.

2.






ROSSETI KUBAN, PJSC 1 2 3. Strategic Report 4 5 6 Appendices

ACHIEVEMENT OF THE COMPANY’S STRATEGIC GOALS DEVELOPED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THOSE
OF ROSSETI GROUP AND APPROVED BY THE COMPANY’S MANAGEMENT BOARD IN THE REPORTING YEAR

Objective Results in the reporting year

More reliable electricity delivery Annually, the Company performs a range of measures for retrofitting, modernisation
in the Krasnodar Territory and renovation of existing power grid facilities; those measures are aimed at achieving
and the Republic of Adygea the following key objectives:

« Improving the reliability of power supply to consumers

« Providing safe working environment for the personnel

- Constraining the equipment physical deterioration growth rate

« Reducing the proportion of equipment that has reached service life specified
in the regulatory documentation

« Improving the equipment performance

« Ensuring compliance with environmental protection and ecological safety requirements
and regulations

«  Cutting down operating costs in the long term

- Supporting the production activities in the course of operation of power grid facilities,
including those related to preventing and responding the emergencies

For more details, please see the Operating Results section.

The Company’s reliability indicators (I, ;, I, ) increased compared to the previous year,
but did not exceed the target values set by the Regional Power Commission — the Price
and Tariff Department of the Krasnodar Territory for the reporting year, taking into account
the permissible deviation.

The number of accidents in the 110 kV and above grid decreased by 3% as compared

to the previous year

Better customer service quality The indicator of the grid connection quality (Igc) is 1.065; it is within the planned value

and more accessible power grid established by the Regional Power Commission — the Price and Tariff Department

infrastructure of the Krasnodar Territory for the reporting year, taking into account the permissible
deviation

Advanced development of the grid During the reporting year, innovative technologies were introduced in the following key

and adoption of new technologies areas of the Innovation Development Programme:

+ Transition to 35-110 (220) kV smart substations

- Transition to the grids featuring active adaptation and distributed smart automation
and control system

- Transition to integrated efficiency of business processes and automation of control
systems

« Application of advanced technology solutions and materials in power engineering

+ Promotion of an innovative development management system and building
an innovative infrastructure

For more details, please see the Operating Results section.
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Objective Results in the reporting year
Stronger investment appeal The Board of Directors of the Company approved the Operational Efficiency Improvement
and capitalisation and Cost Reduction Programme of PJSC Rosseti Kuban for 2021-2025"; the Programme

includes a list of measures to ensure that the Company achieves its strategic objectives
and improves its internal efficiency. The performance indicators of the Programme take
into account the Company's performance targets.

Revenue in 2021 is RUB 57,670 mn, up RUB 8.3 year-on-year.

EBITDA in 2021 is RUB 8,879 mn, up RUB 4,124 mn year-on-year.

The profit of RUB 1,711.8 mn was mainly due to an increase in revenue from electricity
transmission as a result of higher electricity consumption.

The net asset value at the end of the reporting year is RUB 40,466 mn, compared

to RUB 37,989 mn at the end of 2020.

The year-on-year increase in net assets was RUB 2,476 mn, driven by the increase in equity
on account of the year-end profit.

The market capitalisation of the Company at the end of 2021 (without taking into account
the additional shares placed) is RUB 21.99 bn; if the additional shares placed are taken
into account, it makes RUB 22.46 bn. At the end of 2020, that figure was RUB 22.69 bn.
The maximum capitalisation in 2021 was RUB 28.8 bn, while the minimum level

was RUB 21.1 bn. The weighted average price per share declined by 11.06%

over the reporting year on the back of a 13% rise in the Moscow Exchange Index

and a 16.3% decline in the Electric Power Industry index of the Moscow Exchange

Decent working conditions, improvement  In 2021, the level of average salary of production personnel in the branches of Rosseti
of professional competence and loyalty ~ Kuban is competitive; in all branches of the Company, it exceeds the accrued salary level
of the Company's personnel being average in the region of operation, by 10-50%.

In 2021, the progress on Personnel Training Plan was 112%

For more details, please see the Sustainable Development section.

Staying within the standard rates The actual loss of electricity in transmission was 9.92% of the amount of delivery
of electricity loss in transmission to the grid; the standard rate of loss was met, according to the results of the year

For more details, please see the Electricity Transmission section.

" Minutes No. 414/2020 dated 28 December 2020.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Whether the Company'’s development priorities are accomplished ~ Target KPI values were approved by the Resolution
is determined by means of the Key Performance Indicators (KPI). of the Company's Board of Directors dated 15 February 2021
(Minutes No. 419/2021 dated 17 February 2021).

The KPls of the Company's General Director are aligned with:

« Paragraph 15.1 of Article 15 of the Company's Articles of In accordance with the above resolution of the Company’s Board
Assaciation of Directors, the following KPIs were set for 2021.

« The Resolution of the Company’s Board of Directors
dated 7 October 2020 (Minutes No. 404/2020

dated 9 October 2020)

KPI Method of calculation

Total shareholder return Comparison of the accrued dividends of the reporting year with the average value
of the same indicator of previous three years and with the value in the business plan
of the Company

Return on invested capital The ratio of profit before taxes and interest to the sum of capital and long-term loans
and borrowings

Profit from operations (EBITDA) Section 1. The year-on-year growth of the actual EBITDA exceeds the average annual

rate of tariff growth.
Section 2. If the condition above is not met, the achievement of the EBITDA indicator
to the planned value calculated based on the approved business plan is to be estimated

Reduction of unit operating expenses (costs) ~ Year-on-year reduction of the ratio of unit operating costs to the volume of serviced
equipment (in c.u.) in the reporting year

Level of electricity losses The ratio of electricity delivery to the grid (minus the electricity delivered from the grid
and utility consumption) to the delivery to the grid (minus the internal balance flows)

Higher labour productivity In accordance with Order No. 748 of the Ministry of Economic Development dated
28 December 2018: ratio of the value added to the number of persons insured

Efficiency of innovations The integral indicator of the efficiency of innovation activity estimates the degree
of performance of three composite indicators: the indicator of R&D expenditures,
the indicator of the purchase of innovative products, and the indicator of the quality
of R&D development (updating) / fulfilment of the Innovation Development Programme

Accounts receivable reduction ratio Reduction of the actual overdue receivables by all the subsidiaries and affiliates
(excluding moratorium and restructured debts, as well as debts of subcontractors
deprived of the status of a subject of the wholesale electricity market and/or the status
of a guaranteeing)

Compliance with grid connection A complex indicator that estimates the quality level of the grid connections performed

time-frames by subsidiaries and affiliates (S&As) of PJSC Rosseti; this indicator includes three
components: the quality of consideration of applications for grid connection, the quality
of execution of agreements on the implementation of grid connection of applicants,
and compliance with the anti-trust legislation of the Russian Federation
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KPI Method of calculation

Debt/EBITDA Section 1. It is estimated by the debt-to-EBITDA ratio. In case of financial stability
of the Company, the target value is <3.0; otherwise, there should be an improvement
of at least 10% from the actual value in the previous year, but not less than 3.0.
Section 2. If the condition above is not met, the achievement of the planned
Debt/EBITDA indicator (calculated on the basis of the approved business plan)
is to be estimated

Compliance with the facility commissioning ~ The ratio of the total actual fixed assets put in accounting records (in monetary

schedule terms, in relation to completed construction facilities and taken into fixed assets
in the reporting year, with quarter-by-quarter breakdown) to the planned values,
in accordance with the approved Investment Programme of the Company and its

schedules
Readiness for heating season Indicator that estimates the readiness of the Company to work during the heating
season, based on monthly monitoring of the Ministry of Energy of Russia
Implementation of the Company’s Bonus reduction indicator: its amount is calculated depending on the number
Development Plan of unfulfilled activities of the Company’s Development Plan approved by the Rosseti

Board of Directors, in the reporting period

Achievement of the specified reliability level  Indicators for the power outage duration, per point of delivery, and the power outage
of the services provided occurrence, per point of delivery (SAIDI, SAIFI), as well as the number of major
accidents in relation to the annual average values over three years

Absence of occupational accidents The number of injured employees of the Company in accidents (with mild, severe,
or fatal outcomes) associated with the failure of officials to fulfil their duties,
for the reporting year
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KPI TARGETS AND ACHIEVEMENT

Indicators Weight / Actual value for ~ Targets for 2021
percentage of 2020 / estimate of
bonus reduction  achievement for
in the 2021 bonus 2020 (achieved /
scheme (%) not achieved)
Total shareholder return 10 RUBO< > the arithmetic average of the funds allocated
RUB 367,374,143/ to the payment of dividends in accordance
not achieved with the decisions of the general meetings
RUB O < of shareholders of the Company for the three
RUB 122,648,367 /  years preceding the reporting period, and
not achieved > the amount of funds envisaged for the payment
of dividends in the reporting period, in accordance
with the Company’s business plan
.. Retu m On |nve3ted capna[ .......................................... 20 .. ] 1 8 3%/ach|eved ....... >95 []% ...................................................................................
Profit from operations (EBITDA) 15 Completed/ Completed
achieved
Reduction of unit operating expenses 10 4.0%/achieved >2.0%
00 e e et e
Level of electricity losses 10 10.08%/achieved <10.50%
Higher labour productivity 5 4.26%/achieved >5%
Efficiency of innovations 20 117%/achieved 290.0%
Accounts receivable reduction ratio 10 74.0%/achieved <100%
Compliance with grid connection -10 1.0/achieved < the actual value of the indicator in the previous
timeframes year multiplied by 0.85, but not less than 1.1
(1.1
Debt/EBITDA —-10 Completed/ Completed
achieved
Compliance with the facility -10 Q1100% 290.0%
commissioning schedule Q2 130% (inall quarters)
Q3 196%
Q4 104%
year 111% /
achieved

" The comparison of the actual value for 2021 with the actual value for 2020 is not possible due to a change in the indicator calculation procedure.
The results of KPIs will be summarised in a separate resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the Methodology for Calculation and Assessment of KPI
Performance of the General Director of Rosseti Kuban, PJSC [approved by resolution of the Board of Directors on 7 October 2020 (Minutes No. 404/2020 dated 9 October 2020)].
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Actual value for 2021/ % of year-on-  Assessment of achievement in 2021  Targets for 2022
year actual value (achieved / not achieved) / reasons
for deviation

The achievement of the indicator will be evaluated following the decision > the arithmetic average of funds allocated
of the General Meeting of Shareholders on the distribution of the Company’s profit for the payment of dividends as decided
for 2021 by the general meetings of shareholders

of the Company for the three years preceding
the reporting period, and > the amount

of funds provided for the payment of dividends
in the reporting period, in accordance

with the Company's business plan

e NOO8S% Adhieved 2
Completed/100% Achieved Completed

.......................... 21%/53%Ach|eved>20%

LB achieed 0%

.......................... W8/~ Achieved IO

.......................... Nottobedetermined ~ Notassessed” ~ ~ =900%6

.......................... 00%132% o Adhieved e SN0 e
1.0/100% Achieved < the actual value of the indicator

in the previous year multiplied by 0.85, but not
less than 1.1

Completed/100% Achieved Completed
.......................... (11124%/124%Ach|eved29[][]%
02 131%/101% (inall quarters)
Q3 139%/71%
Q4 100%/96%

year 111%/100%
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KPI TARGETS AND ACHIEVEMENT

Indicators Weight / Actual value for ~ Targets for 2021
percentage of 2020 / estimate of
bonus reduction  achievement for
in the 2021 bonus 2020 (achieved /

scheme (%) not achieved)
Readiness for heating season -10 Simultaneously: Simultaneously:
- 099 « 2095
+ Completed/ « Failure to achieve the set value
achieved of the specialised indicator "Presence
of Outstanding Measures for Readiness
Condition Compliance by an Electric Power
Industry Entity"
Implementation of the Company’s -70  0%/achieved 0%
Development Plan (all activities implemented)
Achievement of the specified reliability -10 Simultaneously: Simultaneously:

level of the services provided
+ Isaidi=0.81, < K<l

Isaifi = 0.98 «No significant degradation in the indicators set
+ No significant by the tariff regulation authorities
degradation + Noincrease in number of major accidents
in the indicators
set by the tariff
regulation
authorities
+ 0/achieved
Absence of occupational accidents -10 Simultaneously: Simultaneously:
- 0 + no more than two injured persons

- 1/notachieved -« 0

The Company’s KPI system is bound

to the variable component of managers'
remuneration: each indicator is associated
with its unit weight or percentage of bonus
reduction, and annual bonuses are only
payable if the corresponding KPI targets
are met.
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Actual value for 2021/ % of year-on-  Assessment of achievement in 2021  Targets for 2022
year actual value (achieved / not achieved) / reasons
for deviation

Simultaneously: Achieved Simultaneously:
- 1.00 - 2095
« Non-achievement of the target value - Failure to achieve the set value
of the specialised indicator /100% of the specialised indicator "Presence

of Outstanding Measures for Readiness
Condition Compliance by an Electric Power

Industry Entity"
0%/100% Achieved 0
(all activities implemented)
Simultaneously: Achieved with due regard to the objective  Simultaneously:
factors

+ Isaidi = 4.62, Isaifi = 2.80 « Kis1
+No significant degradation «No significant degradation in the indicators

in the indicators set by the tariff set by the tariff regulation authorities

regulation authorities « Noincrease in number of major accidents

+ 1 (increase in major accidents)

Simultaneously: Achieved Simultaneously:

+ one casualty +no more than two injured persons
- 0/100% 0










ROSSETI KUBAN, PJSC 1 2 3 4. Operating Results 5 6 Appendices

ELECTRICITY DELIVERY

Delivery and distribution of electricity to customers via 110 kV or
lower-voltage grids is PJSC Rosseti Kuban's core business. In 2021,
the Company’s share in the regional electricity transmission market
was 77.2% (of the required gross revenue (RGR)).

In 2021, the Company achieved its KPI targets for electricity losses in
transmission: 9.92%, or 0.58 p.p. less than the planned value.

The loss reduction activities resulted in saving 127 mn kWh in 2021".

Oleg Nischyuk

Deputy General Director for Service
Sales, Rosseti Kuban, PJSC

KEY INDICATORS

THE COMPANY’S PRODUCTION RESULTS FOR 2019-2021

Indicators 2019 2020 2021 A
2021/2020
(%)

Deliverytothegrid (mnkWh) 228507 230080 n2z217 96
Electricity delivered from the grid to customers and related 20,4243 20,697.2 22,719.6 9.8

territorial grid organisations within the area of balance and
operational responsibility (mn kWh)

mn ki 24264 23108 2502.1 83
. A B S 2
‘Volume of electricity transmission services provided:
s e -
DO T T e A2,

In 2021, the Company provided 21,005 mn kWh of power transmission services, which is 1,896 mln kWh or 9.9% more than in 2020.

Over the reporting year, PJSC Rosseti Kuban actually lost 2,502 mn kWh in its grids or 9.92% of the amount delivered to the grid. In 2021,
the relative level of losses was reduced by 0.12 p.p. compared to 2020. The annual losses were within the standard rates.

Loss reduction measures are undertaken every year in order to meet the target parameters.
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ELECTRICITY LOSS REDUCTION ACTIVITIES

One of the Company's priorities is to reduce electricity losses. EFFECT FROM THE ELECTRICITY LOSS REDUCTION
PROGRAMME

As of the end of 2021, the effect of implementing measures aimed

at reducing electricity losses during transmission amounted to 720

127 mn kWh (RUB 720 mn) in total, including due to the following:

« Administrative measures — 32 mn kWh (RUB 192 mn)

« Engineering measures — 5 mn kWh (RUB 19 mn)

«  Improvement of power metering — 89 mn kWh (RUB 509 mn)

32 mn kWh m Administrative
(RUB 192 mn)  measures

5 mn kWh m Engineeri
RUB19MN)  messcres

In the future, this work is supposed to continue. 89 mn kWh m Improvement of

(RUB 509 mn)  power metering
The activities under the power loss reduction programme were
completed, the target programme indicator, i.e., level of electricity
losses, was achieved.

mn KWh RUB mn

ELECTRICITY METERING

As at 31 December 2021, there were a total of 1,173,265 delivery DELIVERY POINTS OF PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN AS OF
points in the Company's operational area. 31 DECEMBER 2021 (%)

oy,

THE COMPANY'S DELIVERY POINTS

105,991

TO LEGAL ENTITIES

1,057,228

TO DOMESTIC CONSUMERS

9 m Tolegal entities

90 = To domestic consumers

1 0 y 0 4 6 1 = Toapartment buildings

TO APARTMENT BUILDINGS

0On 21 January 2020, The Board of Directors of the Company approved the Smart Metering Development Programme for 20202030
(Minutes No. 374/2020) (hereinafter referred to as the Programme?).

" The programme was approved in accordance with Federal Law No. 522-FZ dated 27 December 2018 On Amending Certain Legislative Acts of the Russian Federation due to the Development
of Electric Energy (Power) Metering Systems in the Russian Federation and the Smart Metering Development Concept of PJSC Rosseti in Retail Markets approved by the Management Board of
PJSC Rosseti (Minutes No. 885pr/1 dated 26 June 2019).
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EXPENSES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SMART METERING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME
IN 2021 (INCLUDING PAYMENTS UNDER ENERGY SERVICE AGREEMENTS OF PREVIOUS YEARS)
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THE PROGRAMME RESULTS IN 2021 (POINTS OF METERING)

Indicator 2021 (plan) 2021 (actual)
Scope of completion (introduction, implementation) of measures 49367 49,385
e mg L
- Installation/replacement of technical electricity meters 2606 2646
- Installation/replacement of commercial electricity meters within the grid 16409 20389

connection framework under the Investment Programme

« Installation/replacement of commercial electricity meters in case of 12,563 6,221
absence or breakdown of those, or expiry of the calibration interval /
service life of meters, under the Investment Programme

« Installation/replacement of commercial electricity meters in case of 6,433 6,848
absence or breakdown of those, or expiry of the calibration interval /
service life of meters, under the Repair Programme

+ Installation/replacement of electricity meters under energy service 11,336 13,281
agreements

IMPLEMENTING AUTOMATED METER READING
AND CONTROL SYSTEM

In the reporting year, 31,051 metering devices were automated TOTAL NUMBER OF AUTOMATED ELECTRICITY METERING
as part of the implementation of the concluded energy service DEVICES WITH REMOTE DATA ACQUISITION,

agreements, including 13,281 metering devices installed by energy ~ AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2021 ACROSS ROSSETI KUBAN,
service companies in 2021. Also, 2,646 technical metering devices  pJsc

were installed and automated under the Company’s Investment

Pogomme or 221 soviv | 1

348,592

AUTOMATED ELECTRICITY METERS WITH REMOTE DATA
COLLECTION, AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2021 (29% OF THE TOTAL

NUMBER OF DELIVERY POINTS)

In 2022, it is planned to continue implementing meters with
remote data acquisition, as well as the installation and automation
of technical metering systems at the Company's 6(10)/0.4 kV
transformer substations under the Investment Programme.

Krasnodar PG
Adygean PG
Slavyansk PG
Leningrad PG
Ust-labinsk PG
South-West PG
Armavir PG
Timashevsk PG
Tikhoretsk PG

Labinsk PG

I 79238
B 3597

B 2:.020

B 23319

B 19,800

B 19,057

I 3317

12705

B 17693

l 5.03
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GRID CONNECTION SERVICES

IN THE NEAR FUTURE, ROSSETI KUBAN'S ACTIVITIES ARE AIMED AT PROVIDING QUALITY AND
RELIABLE ELECTRICITY SUPPLIES TO EXISTING CONSUMERS, AS WELL AS INCREASING THE
AVAILABILITY OF POWER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ELIMINATING POWER GRID CONSTRAINTS FOR THE
GRID CONNECTIONS OF NEW CONSUMERS.

IN 2021, THE NUMBER OF VALID GRID CONNECTION AGREEMENTS INCREASED BY 17% TO 18,465. THE DEMAND FOR GRID CONNECTION
IS NOT ONLY CONSISTENTLY HIGH, BUT IS ALSO SHOWING PRONOUNCED GROWTH. MINIMUM 30-35 THS APPLICATIONS ON AVERAGE
ARE FILED EVERY YEAR.

In 2021, there was a 21% (138 MW) increase in connected capacity for
consumers, primarily due to the deferred demand factor activated by the
easing of COVID-19 restrictive measures. For the second year in a row,
the percentage of agreements not performed on time does not exceed
6% of the total number of ongoing agreements (1,016 agreements at the
end of 2021). The main reason for violating deadlines is the applicant's
unreadiness to complete the grid connection procedure. In order to solve
this problem, the Company is working out the possibility of implementing
the measures, which are in the scope of applicant’s responsibility, as an
additional service.

Alexander C.hepusov Pursuant to Resolutions of the Government of the Russian Federation

Deputy General Director for

Development and Power Grid No. 262 dated 10 March 2020 and No. 639 dated 26 April 2021, the

Connection, Rosseti Kuban, PJSC Company carried out a number of organisational and technical measures
to re-engineer the grid connection process; those measures ensured
prompt and complete meeting the increased demand for such service.
In the future, this will reduce the volume of overdue agreements.

In 2021, the average term for grid connection activities was 94 days, and under agreements concluded with
small and medium-sized businesses, it did not exceed 66 days, which is significantly lower than the normative
terms established for grid organisations by the current legislation. The average term to consider an application
and submit an offer did not exceed nine days”.
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The key documents, which regulate the Company’s activities

related to grid connection of consumer terminals (power

installations) of legal entities and individuals to Rosseti Kuban

power grids:

« Federal Law No. 35-FZ dated 26 March 2003 On the Electric
Power Industry

+ Rules for the Grid Connection of Consumer Terminals of
Electricity Consumers, Generating Facilities and Grid Facilities
Owned by Grid Operators and Other Entities to Power Grids
approved by Decree No. 861 of the Government of the Russian
Federation dated 27 December 2004

+ Decree of the Government of the Russian Federation On Pricing
in the Field of Regulated Prices (Tariffs) in the Electric Power
Industry No. 1178 dated 29 December 2011

« Order of the Federal Antimonopoly Service (FAS of Russia) On
Approval of the Guidelines for Determining the Fees for Grid
Connection No. 1135/17 dated 29 August 2017

A complete list of regulatory legal documents, detailed information
on the implementation of the grid connection procedure in Rosseti
Kuban is publicly available on the Company’s website www.

rosseti-kuban.ru in the To Consumers / Grid Connection section.

For more details on the grid connection, please visit the Company's website.



http://www.rosseti-kuban.ru
http://www.rosseti-kuban.ru
http://kubanenergo.ru/potrebitelyam/tekhnologicheskoe-prisoedinenie/obschaya-informatsiya-o-tekhnologicheskom-prisoedinenii/
https://rosseti-kuban.ru/potrebitelyam/tekhnologicheskoe-prisoedinenie/obschaya-informatsiya-o-tekhnologicheskom-prisoedinenii/
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EXECUTION OF GRID CONNECTION AGREEMENTS

In the reporting year, the Company executed 33,795 agreements 33,795 GRID CONNECTION AGREEMENTS FULFILLED IN 2021

for the grid connection to PJSC Rosseti Kuban power grids. The

total power supplied under the implemented grid connection
agreements amounted to 788 MW, which is 135% more than
the planned value. Compared to 2020, the amount of connected

788 MW — THE TOTAL CAPACITY UNDER THE AGREEMENTS
FULFILLED (+21% YEAR-ON-YEAR)

capacity increased by 21% (138 MW).

LOAD CAPACITY CONNECTED IN 2021 BY CONSUMER CATEGORY (MW)

Connection categories Number of grid connection

agreements implemented

Agreements For total power (MW)

Up to 15 kW inclusive, total 31,832 415
. |nc[ud mg |nd|v|dua[s ....................................................................................................... 27 504 .................................. 36] ..
.. 15t0 .1. 50kW mduswe ...................................................................................................... 1591 .................................... 1 03 .
15[]to(,7[]kw 189 .................................... 46
Not[essthan670kw 128218
Electnc.tygeneranonfau[mes 3 ...................................... 5 ..
'TOTAL, EXCLUDING TEMPORARY GRID CONNECTON 8743 787

Temporary connection 52 2
'TOTAL, INCLUDING TEMPORARY GRID CONNECTION 33795 788

THE STRUCTURE OF THE ROSSETI KUBAN AGREEMENTS
IMPLEMENTED BY CAPACITY CONNECTED (MW AND %)

APPLICANTS WHICH HAD THEIR LARGEST AND MOST
SIGNIFICANT ENERGY FACILITIES CONNECTED TO THE
COMPANY’S POWER GRIDS IN 2021

Applicant Load capacity
| connected (MW)
JSC NESK Elektroseti 75
S JSCNovoroslesexport - %
\ """"""""""" Federal State Budgetary 6
Institution All-Russian
415 (52%) ® Upto15kw Children’s Centre Orlyonok
103 (13%) m Above 15andupto 150 KW e o k """""""""""""""""""""""""""
46 (6%) m Above 150 kW and below 670 kW LLC Slavyansk ECO )
218 (28%) m Atleast 670 kW
5(1%) = Generation facilities
2 (0%) Temporary CONMNECHION e
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have persisted in the region in recent years. More than 1,900

In 2021, significant capacities were allocated to meet the electricity
demand of housing construction projects; the high rates of those
agreements for a total capacity of 133 MW were fulfilled. u ths

AGREEMENTS WITH TOTAL CAPACITY OF 133 MW —
CONNECTION OF APARTMENT BUILDINGS IN 2021

LARGEST APARTMENT BUILDINGS CONNECTED

IN 2021 (MW)

9 Also, the agricultural sector and the food industry, which require
no less power capacity than other sectors, always play a strategic
role in the economic structure of southern Russia.

In 2021, the Company fulfilled more than 900 agreements for grid
connection of agricultural facilities, with a total capacity of over
49 49
42 MW.
3.2
2.5 5 0 0
LLCSZ-3 SZ Yugstroy LLCSZ Neftstroy- LLC AKSIS CONNECTIONS IN THE AGRICULTURAL SECTOR WITH A TOTAL
YugStroy Region Semya-1 Industriya- Development
InvestKuban Yug CAPACITY OF >42 MW

LARGEST AGRICULTURAL FACILITIES CONNECTED IN 2021 (MW)'

1.6
15
1
0.9
0.7 07
0.6
LLC Kuban Compound  KFKh Pletin’ R.B. LLC Sad-Gigant- 0JSC Agricultural LLC Oktyabr LLC Voronezh LLC Mirny-Adygea
Feed Mill Agrotechnologies Company . Agricultural Company Champignon
n.a. M.l Kalinin

"L Mirny-Adygea is implementing a project to build a 3,000-strong dairy plant for producing goat milk.
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CONSUMER DEMAND FOR GRID CONNECTION IN
2021

In 2021, the Company concluded 38,157 agreements for grid connection to Rosseti Kuban power grids for the total capacity of 931 MW
with the total value of RUB 4.3 bn, excl. VAT. Since 2019, the demand for grid connection has remained at a persistently high level. On
average, about 3035 ths applications are received per year and at least 30 ths agreements are signed.

Connection categories Number of grid connection agreements implemented
agreements for total power (MW)

Up to 15 kW inclusive, total 35,526 471
. |nclud mg |nd|v |duals .................................................... 30 5” .......................................... 4[](, ...............................................
15t015[]kw|nc[u5|ve ................................................. 217815] ................................................
. 150 to 670 kW ............................................................ 2[]8 .............................................. 47 .................................................
Not[essthan670kw153 .............................................. i
Electr|c|tygenerat|onfac|l|t|es15 ................................................ L
'TOTAL, EXCLUDING TEMPORARY GRID CONNECTION ~ 38,080 o

Temporary connection 77 4
'TOTAL, INCLUDING TEMPORARY GRID CONNECTION ~ 38,157 1

STRUCTURE OF PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN’S AGREEMENTS
CONCLUDED IN 2021 BY CAPACITY CONNECTED
(MW AND %)

|

471 (51%) m Upto15kw
151 (16%) m Above 15 and up to 150 kW

47 (5%) m Above 150 kW and below 670 kW
214 (23%) m Atleast 670 kW

45 (5%) m Generation facilities

4 (0%) Temporary connection
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REVENUES AND MONETARY FUNDS COLLECTED

Revenue from grid connection services in the reporting year
amounted to RUB 2,348 mn (excl. VAT), which is 101% of the target
and 3.2 times higher than in 2020 (RUB 731 mn). In the reporting
year, agreements with major customers were fulfilled, including
JSC KTK-R (the first stage of activities under the agreement,
RUB 729 mn), JSC Novoroslesexport (RUB 361 mn), State
Healthcare Institution Research Institute — KKB No. 1 named
after Professor Ochapovsky (RUB 238 mn), Orlyonok All-Russian
Children’s Centre (RUB 189 mn), LLC Studio Project Design

(RUB 103 mn), LLC Kurortny Residential Complex (RUB 47 mn),
JSC NESK-Electroseti (RUB 66 mn), LLC SpetsPharm Production
(RUB 19 mn).

In 2021, monetary funds for grid connection services were
received in the amount of RUB 2,354 mn (incl. VAT), which is
207% more than the planned value and 22% higher than in 2020
(RUB 1,922 mn, incl. VAT).

The over-performance is due to continuous interaction with
applicants to fulfil contractual obligations as soon as possible,
including through the provision of additional services to them
in relation to the implementation of measures provided by the
specification and assigned to scope of applicant’s responsibility

2.3RUB bn

REVENUE FROM THE GRID CONNECTION SERVICES IN 2021
(3.2 TIMES AS MUCH AS IN 2020)

— that contributes to a reduction in the time required to fulfil
agreements. The over-performance for the indicator related to
receipt of funds is associated with advance payments under the
grid connection agreements.

In 2022, the Company expects to generate revenue from
connection services of at least RUB 1.1 bn (excl. VAT). In 2022, a
major grid connection facility in terms of revenues is projected to
be JSC Caspian Pipeline Consortium - R, for the second phase of
the project (with planned revenues of RUB 421 mn, excl. VAT).
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GRID CONNECTION OF GENERATING FACILITIES

Applicant Generation facility Required capacity The grid Status of the grid connection of
connected for the grid connection the facility as of the end of 2021
connection of agreement
generating units date and price
to power the grid, (excl. VAT)
voltage rating
PJSC Rosneft Tuapse Refinery 2L MW, 1 April 2010, On 21 December 2016, PJSC
110 kv RUB 56.7 mn  Rosseti Kuban notified the Applicant

of the completion of work provided
for by technical specifications

and the readiness to the actual
connection of the facility according
to the legislation in force.

The grid connection deadline is

30 May 2022
LLC ART-TECH Electric facilities of 6.2 MW, 29 May 2020, The agreement is being
a land plot for the 10kv RUB 4.14 mn  implemented. The grid connection
arrangement of a deadline is 29 May 2022
logistics centre
LLC LUKOIL Electrical installations 225MW,  25February 2021, The agreement is being
— Kubanenergo of a land plot for the 35 kv RUB 1.52 mn  implemented.
operation of the base The grid connection deadline is
power station 25 February 2023
0JSC Power station of 0JSC 56.41 MW, 3 September 2015, The agreement is being
Verkhnebakansky Verkhnebakansky 6 kv RUB 0.09 mn  implemented.
Cement Plant Cement Plant On 18 February 2019, PJSC Rosseti
Kuban notified the Applicant
of the readiness to the actual
connection of the facility following
the procedure compliant with the
applicable legislation.
Completion of activities by the
applicant is expected
0JSC GPU (gas piston unit) 17.60 MW, 4 March 2019, RUB  The agreement is being
Novoroscement based energy centre with 110 kV 11.40 mn  implemented.
a capacity of 17,600 kW On 4 March 2019, PJSC Rosseti
Kuban notified the Applicant
of the readiness to the actual
connection of the facility according
to the legislation in force. The grid
connection deadline is 4 March 2022
Completion of activities by the
applicant is expected
LLC Consumer terminals of a 1.5MW, 1 December 2020, The agreement is being
LUKOIL-Ecoenergo ~ small HPP 6 kv RUB 13.18 mn  implemented.

The grid connection deadline is
1 December 2022
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Applicant Generation facility Required capacity The grid Status of the grid connection of
connected for the grid connection the facility as of the end of 2021
connection of agreement
generating units date and price
to power the grid, (excl. VAT)
voltage rating
LLC ENERGO-VOLT  GPU-based energy 248 MW, 17 September 2018, The agreement is being
centre with a capacity of 110kV RUB 16.9 mn  implemented. The grid connection
248 MW deadline is 17 September 2022
LLC KNAUF GIPS GPU-based energy 4MW, 10 December 2018, The agreement is being
KUBAN centre with a capacity of 10kV RUB 2.48 mn implemented. The grid connection
LMW deadline is 10 December 2022
LLC EuroSib- Consumer terminals L 4L MW 22 May 2018, The agreement is being
Energo-Kuban of a land plot. The 10kv RUB 2.75 mn  implemented. The grid connection
residential area land deadline is 22 May 2022
plots for IV hazard class
facilities of various
types (construction of
mini-CHPPs)
LLC Renewable Solar power plants 13.5MW 1 October 2021, A total of three agreements have
Energy Sources 10 kv RUB 31425 mn  been concluded. The grid connection
deadline is 1 October 2023
LLC Renewable Solar power plants 27 MW, 11 November 2021, A total of six agreements have been
Energy Sources 10 kv RUB 54 mn  concluded. The grid connection
deadline is 11 November 2023
LLC Renewable Consumer terminals 46 MW 12 August 2020, The grid connection deadline is
Energy Sources of a land plot for the 10kv RUB7.12mn 12 August 2022

arrangement of a
production facility

The agreement was completed on
11 March 2021
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DEVELOPMENT OF THE POWER

GRID COMPLEX

THE MAIN OBJECTIVE OF THE LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY’S POWER GRID COMPLEX
CONSISTS IN FINDING THE BEST POSSIBLE DIRECTION OF MODERNISATION AND EXPANSION OF ITTO
MAKE UP FOR A SHORTFALL OF GENERATING CAPACITIES AND SATISFY A POTENTIAL DEMAND FOR

GENERATING CAPACITY IN THE LONG TERM.

Acting within the framework of Decree No. 823 of the Government
of the Russian Federation dated 17 October 2009 On Roadmaps

of Perspective Development of the Power Industry, in 2021, PJSC
Rosseti Kuban took part in developing roadmaps for the five-year
perspective development of the power industry in the Krasnodar
Territory and the Republic of Adygea.

The representatives of Rosseti Kuban (Deputy General Director for
Technical Issues, Chief Engineer and Deputy General Director for
Development and Grid Connection) were included into the acting
coordinating bodies of the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of
Adygea responsible for drafting such roadmaps, namely:
- the Interdepartmental Electric Power Industry Development
Roadmap Panel of Krasnodar Territory (established by Decree
of the Head of the Administration (Governor) No. 181-r dated
11 February 2011, On Establishing an Interdepartmental Panel to
Draft the Electric Power Industry Development Roadmap for the
Krasnodar Territory);

- the Electric Power Industry Development Roadmap Panel of
the Republic of Adygea (established by the Order of the Ministry
of Economic Development and Commerce of the Republic of
Adygea No. 26-p dated 1 February 2011 On Establishing the
Panel).

The Roadmaps for the Long-Term Development of the Electric
Power Industry of the Krasnodar Territory for the period 20222026
were approved by Order No. 113-r of the Head of the Administration
(Governor) of Krasnodar Territory dated 27 April 2021. The Roadmaps
for the Development of the Power Industry of the Republic of Adygea
for 2021-2025 was approved by Order No. 107-rg of the Head of the
Republic of Adygea dated 29 April 2021.

PURSUANT TO THE ROADMAPS, THE COMPANY SHALL FOCUS

ON DEVELOPING THE MOST CHALLENGING PARTS OF KUBAN'S
GRIDS (SOUTH-WESTERN AND CENTRAL) THAT NEED THEIR GRID
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVED.

THE COMPANY’S ELECTRICITY GRID DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME FOR THE PERIOD OF 2020-2024 AND

UNTIL 2026

To better plan the development of its grids, efficiently utilise the
existing grid capacity, increase the grid load, and cut the grid
development costs, the Company is drafting its Comprehensive
Programme for the Development of Company’s Grids for the period
of 2020-2024 and until 2026.

In 2019, the Company entered into an agreement with JSC FTC
(Federal Research Centre) for the development of this Programme.
At present, the third stage (for the period of 2022-2026) of the

Programme is being developed; the Programme is adjusted
against the comments of PJSC Rosseti Kuban and the branch of
JSC SO UPS — Kuban Regional Dispatch Control Department.

On 28 February 2022, the materials of this Programme were
submitted to the executive authorities of the Krasnodar Territory
and the Republic of Adygea as source data for drafting and
approval of the regional roadmaps in 2022.
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ENSURING RELIABLE AND
EFFICIENT OPERATION OF
THE POWER SYSTEM

In 2021, PJSC Rosseti Kuban generally achieved the main objective
of production activity: maintaining the power equipment reliability at
an adequate level. The Company completed the repair programme
in full; it implemented a set of measures to improve the reliability
of electricity supply to consumers in the Krasnodar Territory and

the Republic of Adygea; the certificate of readiness to work in the
2021/2022 heating season was obtained.

In the grids of 110 kV and above, the number of technological

Aleksey Mishanin disturbances decreased by 3%.

Deputy General Director for Technical

Issues — Chief Engineer, Rosseti Kuban, The Company’s reliability indicators (I, ., ., ,) did not exceed the
PISC planned values set by the Regional Power Commission — the Price
and Tariff Department of the Krasnodar Territory for the reporting

year, taking into account the permissible deviation”.

ENSURING HIGH-QUALITY, RELIABLE, AND
UNINTERRUPTED POWER SUPPLY TO CONSUMERS

COMPANY RELIABILITY INDICATORS (I, ., I.,..) ACHIEVED IN 2021

SAIDI” "SAIFI
Values established by the Regional Power The value
Indicator Commission — the Price and Tariff Department of achieved by
the Krasnodar Territory ~ Rosseti Kuban
Plan Plan, including permissible deviation Actual
Average power outage duration, per point of delivery 4.3800 5.6940 4.0939
O e

System average interruption frequency, per point of 1.0101 1.3131 1.2873

delivery (lsmﬂ)



ANNUAL REPORT — 2021

The 2021 Maintenance and Repair Programme for the main
energy system processes was implemented fully and on time;

for the main nomenclature items, it was fulfilled by more than
100%. In order to ensure unconditional reliability of the power
system operation, additional work was carried out on electricity
transmission lines and substations, including the elimination of
defects detected as a result of inspections and tests. The additional
work was made possible thanks to the prompt reallocation of the
expenditure limits of the maintenance and repair fund, for 2021.

The main activities completed in 2021 were aimed at:

+Maintaining the rated parameters of production assets —
power transmission lines, substation equipment, and RPA
devices

« Timely identifying and eliminating defects based on the power
equipment diagnostics results

«  Ensuring readiness for preventing and eliminating the
technological disturbances

- Prolonging agreements concluded with contractors and
related power grid companies, as well as with the Russian
Ministry of Emergency Situations and the Federal Service
for Hydrometeorology and Environmental Monitoring
(Rosgidromet)

« Ensuring the readiness of 402 teams, 1,803 employees, 742
units of equipment, including 22 mobile teams (123 employees)
equipped with appropriate technical means (49 units, including
22 motor vehicles and 27 units of special equipment), tools,
rigging, spare parts, communication aids, special clothing,
catering rations, and financial assets

«+ Completing the emergency reserve of the Company

« Checking the readiness for use of 121 emergency power supply
(EPS) sources with a total capacity of 13,522.5 kW, of which
110 mobile EPSs with a total capacity of 13,070.5 kW

« Conducting four training exercises on interactions in response
to emergencies with the threat of power outages; in those
exercises, the representatives of the following institutions
participated: the authorities of the Ministry of Emergency
Situations of Russia in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic
of Adygea, executive bodies of the Krasnodar Territory and the
Republic of Adygea, and local self-government authorities

The Company confirms its readiness for operation during the
heating season every year by receiving the Readiness Certificate.
Within the framework of preparation for the heating season
2021/2022, production programmes are implemented, scheduled
emergency training courses are conducted, events as per the
requirements of the Federal Service for Ecological, Technological,
and Nuclear Supervision (Rostechnadzor) are held. 1 Order of the
Ministry of Energy of Russia No. 1191 dated 3 November 2022
approved the results of the assessment of the readiness of power
industry facilities to work in the 2021/2022 heating season.

To prevent fires and ignitions at the Company’s facilities,

Order No. 118-od On Preparations for the Fire Hazard and High-
Temperature Period of 2021 was issued on 1 March 2021.

The activities covered by the Order were carried out to the
fullest extent, in particular:

68 69

235 facilities

WERE SUBJECT TO INSPECTION OF MAINTENANCE OF FIRE
PROTECTION INSTALLATIONS

34facilities

HAD THE SERVICEABILITY OF THEIR FIRE PROTECTION
INSTALLATIONS RESTORED

1,028

FIRE EXTINGUISHERS WERE PURCHASED AND 1,352 WERE
RECHARGED

163

FIRE DOORS WERE INSTALLED

INTERNAL FIRE WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS WERE RESTORED

2,657

VIOLATIONS WERE DETECTED DURING FIRE SAFETY
INSPECTIONS; 2,549 OUT OF THOSE HAVE ALREADY BEEN
ELIMINATED

SETS OF ESCAPE HOODS WERE ACQUIRED FOR THE COMPANY'’S
EMPLOYEES

In 2019-2021, neither fire / ignition at the Company's facilities nor
emergency outage of power equipment as a result of fire was recorded.
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The Company'’s preparation for the flood period was carried out by the Company’s Central Flood Commission (approved by Order No. 25-r
On the Preparation and Tasks for the Successful Operation During the 2021 Flood Period dated 29 January 2021) as part of the Kuban
Headquarters’ activities and by similar commissions of the Company’s branches. A total of 66 organisational and engineering measures
were taken.

Organisational

11 meetings of the flood commissions were held,

at which issues on preventing and eliminating
possible technological violations and/or emergencies
at the Company's power facilities during the
spring-summer flood period considered.

Monitoring of power facilities in the possible flooding
areas was performed and the list of those updated.
According to the monitoring results, up to 387
facilities (0.5 % of the total power facilities) fall into
the possible flooding area, including 110 those of
main grid (24 substations of 35-220 kV, 86 sections
of poled lines of 35-110 kV) and 277 distribution grid
facilities (212 sections of poled lines of 10-0.4 kV
and 65 transformer substations of 10/0.4 kV).

The series of training was conducted (from 27 April
2021 to 28 April 2021) involving the management
bodies and material and human resources of the
territorial links of the Krasnodar Territory and the
Republic of Adygea emergency response functional
subsystems to drill the actions of the Company’s
management bodies and material and human
resources in natural and technogenic emergencies
caused by the impact of hazardous weather events
during the flood period.

Atotal of 66 emergency training courses were
conducted in the Company's power grid branches to
eliminate the passible consequences of flooding the
power facilities.

The heads of the Company's executive office and

the Adygean Power Grids branch took part in

two meetings of the Commission for Emergency
Situation and Fire Safety (CES&FS) of the Krasnodar
Territory administrations and two of those of the
Republic of Adygea on the operational readiness

of power equipment in the Company’s operational
responsibility area during the 2021 flooding period.
No claims or observations from executive authorities
and CES&FS of administrations of the above entities
of the Russian Federation were received.

Engineering

- Design solutions were implemented for installation of pole No. 53 of
110 kV Shepsie to Tuapse traction cable-type power line with a tap line
to the substation terminal and 110 kV Tuapse Refinery to Tuapse traction
cable-type power line with a tap line to the substation terminal (combined
suspension) on a pile foundation.

- Compensation measures for power supply of socially significant objects of
the city of Tuapse in case of flooding on the Tuapse River under the threat
of falling poles of power transmission lines Nos. 471, 472 and 52/53, 53
were developed.

«The examination of linear and areal power grid facilities was performed.

Inspection of readiness

« Inspection of readiness of the Company’s material and human resources to
eliminate the consequences of disturbances due to the impact of flooding
on power grid facilities. The Company has ensured the readiness of 392
teams, 1,791 employees, 715 units of equipment, including 22 mobile
teams (126 employees) equipped with appropriate technical means (49
units, including 22 motor vehicles and 27 units of special equipment), tools,
rigging, spare parts, communication aids, special clothing, catering rations,
and financial assets.

- Watercraft and water pumping equipment. Available watercraft (small
boats, including autoboat with Yamaha 40 motor) and 26 motor pumps are
made available to be used in case of flooding.

« Reserve power supply sources (RPSS). 120 RPSSs with a total capacity of
13.11 MW, including 109 mobile RPSSs with a total capacity of 12.67 MW
were made ready.

The Company'’s Grid Management Centre daily interacted with the regional
centres for hydrometeorology and environmental monitoring of the Krasnodar
Territory and the Republic of Adygea and the Sochi Hydrometeorological
Centre, as well as crisis management centres of the Main Directorates of the
Ministry of Emergency Situations of Russia for the Krasnodar Territory and the
Republic of Adygea to obtain operative data on weather conditions and flood
situation at the water bodies of the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of
Adygea.

During the flood period, 191 reports of adverse meteorological phenomena
or multiple adverse meteorological phenomena were received, including
information on threats of rising water levels in the rivers of the Krasnodar
Territory and the Republic of Adygea; that is a 50% year-on-year increase.
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MAIN CAUSES OF ACCIDENTS IN THE ROSSETI KUBAN
POWER GRIDS IN 2021

2202

97

21

3654
233

J
Poor technical condition of equipment (insulation
ageing, loss of conductor mechanical strength,
change of material properties, etc.)

Exposure to animals and birds

Interference of the third parties not involved in
production process

Exposure to repetitive natural phenomena

Design, structural, manufacturing or installation
faults (shortcomings)

All activities according to the requirements
of the Federal Service for Ecological,
Technological, and Nuclear Supervision
with a deadline of 2021 were fulfilled and
decontrolled.

To ensure reliable operation of the electric
grid complex under the conditions of
de-energising consumers and other
emergencies related to de-energising
consumers, the Company's headquarters
operate permanently; the representatives
of the headquarters regularly participate
in activities aimed at ensuring the secured
power supply in the Krasnodar Territory
and the Republic of Adygea.

70

71
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REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

In order to ensure sustainable power supply to the industrial,

agricultural and residential facilities of the Krasnodar Territory

and the Republic of Adygea, the Company annually develops and

implements the Maintenance and Repair Programme (M&R), which

addresses the following aspects:

« The rated frequency of overhauls, midlife repairs, and routine
maintenance of power equipment

« Technical condition of the facilities

« Results of preventive tests

«The need to comply with the requirements of supervisory
authorities

«  Elimination of technological disturbances

- Feasible and efficient operation of power grids

The deviation of the actual M&R volumes from the 2021 targets

was caused by the following:

« Implementation of an additional range of measures aimed at
ensuring the reliability and safety of power supply to facilities
during the large-scale holiday season of 2021 in the Krasnodar
Territory and the Republic of Adygea

FOR THE REPORTING YEAR, THE M&R PROGRAMME

WERE SUCCESSFULLY IMPLEMENTED IN ALL AREAS.

PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN PLANNED TO CARRY OUT WORK
WORTH RUB 3,062.2 MN IN 2021. ACTUAL IMPLEMENTATION
OF ACTIVITIES AMOUNTED TO RUB 3,278.0 MN, OR 107% OF
THE PLANNED TARGET.

+ Preparatory activities for the 2021/2022 heating season
« The rising cost of materials, works and services

At the same time, the Company achieved the level of the 2021 tariff
balance solution for M&R by effectively reallocating the excess
revenues to other areas of its business.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS OF THE REPAIR PROGRAMME

Work description 2019 (actual) 2020 (actual) 2021 (actual) 2022 (plan)
Clearing the overhead line right-of-ways (ha) 2.177.7 24640 1,701.8 1,590.5
. Rep[acmg groundw| res (km) ..................................................... 7 87 ................... 772 ........................ 721 ........................ 3] 8 .
Rep[acmg|nsulators(pcs) 95[]82 95733 77100 ..................... 5 81.23 .
Repa|r o powertransformers(pcs) ............................................... T L s -
Repa|rofc|rcu|tbreakerg %0 895 958 ]122 .
‘Repair of isolating switches, shorting plugs, 1769 193 1@ 1867
disconnectors
Repa|r L 3[]26 ................. 2059 ...................... ]909 e 51 .
Repa|r ofPT L(km) ............................................................ 140240 ............. 132593 .................. 106278 .................... 7 702 5 .
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72 73

In addition, to improve reliability of the power grid complex operation, the following works were carried out in 2021 in accordance with the
Comprehensive Programme for Improving the Reliability of Operation of Substation Equipment and PTLs of the main grid and 0.4-10 kV

distribution grid:

438

CAPACITORS (STATIC CAPACITOR BATTERIES) WERE REPLACED

1 8 SUBSTATIONS OF 35-110 KV RATING HAVE THEIR

MECHANICAL AND ELECTROMAGNETIC INTERLOCKS RESTORED

340

PHYSICALLY WORN OUT BUSHINGS OF 35-110 KV OIL CIRCUIT
BREAKERS AND POWER TRANSFORMERS WERE REPLACED

039

OVERHEAD LINES AND OVERHEAD CABLE LINES OF 35 KV
RATING AND OVER (WITH THE TARGET OF 507)

1,124

UBSTATIONS OF 35110 KV RATING (WITH THE TARGET OF 373)

6,825

TRANSFORMERS AND OVERHEAD LINES OF 0.4-10 KV RATING
(WITH THE TARGET OF 4,866) UNDERWENT THERMAL IMAGING
INSPECTIONS

STATIONARY VALVE-TYPE LIGHTNING ARRESTERS OF 35-110 KV
RATING THAT SERVED FOR OVER 25 YEARS WITH OVERVOLTAGE
LIMITERS OF CORRESPONDING VOLTAGE CLASS WERE
REPLACED

894

POLES OF 10 KV OVERHEAD LINES AND 5,599 POLES OF 0.4 KV
OVERHEAD LINES WERE REPLACED

961.37

KM OF WIRES OF 0.4-10 KV OVERHEAD LINES WERE REPLACED

625

TRANSFORMERS OF I-II SIZES WERE REPAIRED

The limits for maintenance and repair costs for 2022 are
established at the level of RUB 3,284.21 mn, which is 0.2%
above the actual costs in 2021 (RUB 3,278.0 mn). The
activities planned for implementation under the M&R
Programme for 2022 are sufficient to maintain

technical conditions of equipment and PTLs at

the “good” level and will allow providing the

consumers of Rosseti Kuban with reliable

power supply.
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SALES OF ADDITIONAL
SERVICES

Development of additional (non-tariff) services is one of the priority
tasks Rosseti Kuban faces.

The main objectives of PJSC Rosseti Kuban in this regards are
to increase the market share of additional (non-tariff) services
and non-tariff revenues, enhance the availability of services and
commercialise the processes of interaction with consumers.

PJSC Rosseti Kuban provides a full range of services in accordance
with the Unified Consolidated List of Additional (Non-Tariff) Services

Dmitry Goryachev for Consumers approved by Rosseti Group.

Head of Non-Tariff Service Development
Department, Rosseti Kuban, PJSC

In 2021, within the framework of the development of additional services, Rosseti Kuban implemented a
number of measures:

« Training seminars on the implementation of additional services were organised and conducted, and
the price list was updated

« Promotional and informational activities for consumers have been implemented

« Centralised supply of material and technical resources has been organised in accordance with the
requests of the Company’s branches; Framework agreements have been concluded for the supply
of materials for additional services

The systematic development of additional services resulted in a significant increase in revenue from
additional services compared to the previous year”.

In addition to electricity transmission and grid connection services 7 9 5 8
subject to mandatory state regulation, PJSC Rosseti Kuban provides « U RUBMN

additional (non-tariff) services to consumers: THE REVENUE FROM ADDITIONAL SERVICES IN 2021
« Equipment leasing and placement services
« Repair and maintenance (+48% AS COMPARED TO 2020 LEVEL AND 2021 PLAN)

« Construction and installation
« Consulting, organisational and technical services
« Other services
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DYNAMIC PROFILE OF REVENUE FROM ADDITIONAL In 2021, the most significant services in terms of revenues were
SERVICES IN 2019-2021 (RUB MN) the services for placement of telecommunications equipment,

including fibre-optic communication lines, introduction of
restrictions (restoration) of electricity consumption, construction
796 and installation works, renovation, retrofitting and operational and
technical maintenance of electric grid facilities of the consumers,
as well as repair and maintenance of outdoor lighting grids.
536 In 2021, the price list for additional (non-tariff) services, in
accordance with which the Company provides the full scope of
services required by consumers in terms of power supply, is
282 updated; at the moment, the price list comprises 416 services.

2019 2020 2021 4 1 6

ADDITIONAL SERVICES PROVIDED BY
PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN

STRUCTURE OF REVENUE FROM ADDITIONAL SERVICES IN 2019-2021

Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020 (%)
Revenue from sales of additional (non-tariff) 281.848 536.391 795.815 48.4
services related to other activities (RUB mn)
‘Rentandplacement services (RUBmn) 6148 146339 162638 11
Maintenance and repair services (RUBmn) 38445 96222 03913 80
Construction and installation (RUBmn) 35081 2298 w7371 678
Consulting, organisational and technical services 107103 69893 169170 2412 times growth
(RUB mn)
Agencyserwces(RUan) ........................................................ G G G
Communication and information technology services o o o003 -
(RUB mn)
Otheracnv.tysemces(RUBmn)39771 ..................... 1 1[]1[] .................... 2685 ........................ _756
Otherm|scellaneousserv|ces(RUan) ...................................... g G o
*Share of non-tariff revenue from other activities %) 12 260 </ 046

PLANNED INDICATORS FOR SALES OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES (RU B MN)

Indicator 2022 (plan) 2023 (forecast) 2024 (forecast) 2025 (forecast) 2026 (forecast)
Revenue 949 6 1,305.7 1,462.8 1,645.6 2,882.5
Expenditures 822.3 1,109.8 1,243.4 1,398.8 2,450.1
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INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

INVESTMENTS ARE THE BASIS OF RELIABLE POWER SUPPLY AND THE MOST IMPORTANT COMPONENT
OF THE COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE.

In 2021, within the framework of the investment activities, the Company
commissioned 220 MVA of transformer capacities and 612 km of
electricity transmission lines.
Construction of a 110 kV electricity transmission line to connect the
consumer terminals of JSC Novoroslesexport, to the distance of 9.4 km,
was completed. This project is designed to power the 110/35/10 kV
Lesnoy Port substation and the future refrigeration yards with
technological equipment on the territory of Novoroslesexport to increase
the throughput capacity of the container terminal.
. . In addition, renovation of two more high-priority facilities was
Bllktor Korzhanevskly completed in 2021 as part of the implementation of the tripartite
eputy General Director for Investment i . o
Activities, Rosseti Kuban, PJSC agreement concluded in 2020, as well as in pursuance of directives
from the Russian Federation government to create affordable power
infrastructure to supply industrial and investment sites in the Republic
of Adygea. The 35/10 kV Kuzhorskaya substation and 110/35/10 kV
Adygeyskaya substation were reconstructed with the replacement of
transformers”.

The investment programmes of Rosseti Kuban are developed In 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company considered the
according to the roadmaps for the prospective development of the  following issues:
electric power industry in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic ~ «  Quarterly reports on the implementation rate of the higher-

of Adygea, technical condition of power grids, and available priority investment projects

sources of financing, based on the tariff-and-balance solutions. « The findings of the on-site audit conducted by the Ministry
of Energy of Russia to check on the status of the following

Approval and control over the implementation of the Company’s investment projects: construction of 110/10 kV Angarskaya

investment programmes are performed by the Ministry of Energy Substation with connection of 110 kV overhead lines and

of Russia. construction of 110 kV electricity transmission lines for grid

connection of JSC Novoroslesexport consumer terminals
In the reporting year, the Rosseti Kuban's investment activity was
performed as part of implementing the Investment Programme
for 2021 approved by the Order of the Russian Ministry of Energy
No. 21@ dated 16 December 2021.
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PROGRESS ON THE INVESTMENT
PROGRAMME IN 2019-2021

PROGRESS INDICATORS FOR THE LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020 (%)
Volume of financing' (RUB mn) 5,445 5,608 7,215 29
Assimilation of capital investment (RUB mn) 6,769 4,658 5,871 26
Commissioning as a part of fixed assets 292 L 5128 16

(RUB mn)

Commissioning as a part of transformer 783 159 220 39
capacities (MVA)

Commissioning as a part of power 791 593 612 3

transmission lines (km)

DYNAMIC PROFILE OF CAPITAL INVESTMENT FINANCING STRUCTURE IN 2019-2021

(RUB MN, INCL. VAT)
In 2020, financing for PJSC Rosseti Kuban in general increased by
29% year-on-year. That is driven by financing the main scope of
7215 the investment measures in terms of meeting the conditions of the
grid connection agreements in the reporting year.
5,445 5,608
2019 2020 2021

" Hereinafter in the “Investing Activities” section, the amount of capital expenditure financing is shown without capitalised interest on loans.
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FUNDING STREAMS AND STRUCTURE OF CAPITAL
INVESTMENTS

The main focus areas of the Rosseti Kuban's Investment FINANCING STRUCTURE OF PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN
Programme in 2021 were: IN 2021 (RUB MN)
« Grid connection — RUB 4,370 mn, incl. VAT (60.6%)
« Retrofitting and renavation — RUB 2,592 mn, incl. VAT (35.9%)
+ Investment projects, the implementation of which is
determined by roadmaps for the prospective electric power ‘\‘
industry development — RUB 30 mn (0.4%)
« Other new construction — RUB 5 mn, incl. VAT (0.1%)
« Other investment projects (funded) — RUB 218 mn,
incl. VAT (3%)

4,370 m Grid connection
2,592 m Renovation and retrofitting

30 m Investment projects which are driven by the
roadmaps for long-term development of the electric
power sector

5 m Other new construction
218 m Other projects

FINANCING STRUCTURE OF CAPITAL INVESTMENTS OF ROSSETI KUBAN, PJSC (RUB MN)

Investment projects 2019 2020 2021
TOTAL 5,445 5,608 7,215
Grid connection 2,256 2,895 4,370
Renovation, upgrading and retrofitting 1,789 2,046 2,592
Investment projects which are driven by the roadmaps 920 207 30
for long-term development of the electric power

sector

Other new construction of grid facilities 42 27 5
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SOURCES OF THE INVESTMENT PROGRAMME FINANCING (RUB MN, INCL. VAT)

P

3,666 W Own funds

1,155 m Borrowed funds

1,548 m Grid connection fees
846 m Other own funds'

LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

PARAMETERS OF THE COMPANY’S LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PROGRAMME FOR 2022-2027

Indicator Period

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
(actual) (actual) (plan)? (plan)? (plan)? (plan)? (plan)? (plan)?

Volume of financing RUBmn) 608 | T2WS TS 92 02 GOAL 6279 8499
Assimilation of capital investment 4,658 5,871 8,856 6,396 4,334 4,639 5,835 4,481
R B )
Commissioning as a part of fixed 4,418 5,128 8,183 9123 4,201 4,661 4,852 5,774
Bl R T e e
Commissioning as a part of 159 220 539 412 144 64 154 301
B e
Commissioning as a part of power 593 612 520 695 451 492 493 514

transmission lines (km)

THE BULK OF INVESTMENT PLANNED UNDER THE LONG-TERM
INVESTMENT PROGRAMME OF ROSSETI KUBAN WILL TARGET
RENOVATION, UPGRADING AND RETROFITTING OF POWER GRIDS

" Funds received from placement of additional shares, miscellaneous.
% Plans for the long-term investment programme of PJSC Rosseti Kuban were approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors (extract from Minutes No. 265/2022 dated 24 February 2022),
passed public discussion, and published on the website of the Ministry of Energy of Russia on 31 March 2022. They were accepted by the Russian Ministry of Energy for review on 4 April 2022.
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CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION QUALITY CONTROL

THE COMPANY CARRIES OUT CONSTRUCTION CONTROL AS PART OF THE IMPLEMENTATION OF
RUSSIAN FEDERATION GOVERNMENT RESOLUTION NO. 468 DATED 21 JUNE 2010 ON THE PROCEDURE
FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTROL DURING CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION AND CAPITAL REPAIR OF
CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS. THE CONTROL IS AIMED AT VERIFYING THE COMPLIANCE OF

THE WORKS PERFORMED WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE DESIGN DOCUMENTATION, TECHNICAL
REGULATIONS, THE TOWN-PLANNING SCHEMA OF A LAND PLOT, AND THE RESULTS OF ENGINEERING
SURVEYS.

At ten facilities with a voltage of 35 kV and above, at which independent expert and inspection entities were involved in the
construction and installation works were performed in 2021, construction control.

MAJOR INVESTMENT PROJECTS COMPLETED WITH CONSTRUCTION IN 2021

Facility Construction period Capacity Investment
commissioned amount

(RUB mn,

Start End km  MVA excl. VAT)

“Reconstruction of the 35/10 kV Kuzhorskaya substation with 2020 2021 [ 20 178

replacement of T-1 and T-2 transformers (2x2.5 MVA) with
2x10 MVA transformers, with reconstruction of 10 kV power
transmission line (K-10)"

“Reconstruction of the 110/35/10 kV Adygeyskaya substation. 2020 2021 - 50 105
Replacement of 2x16 MVA transformers with 2x25 MVA

transformers”

“Construction of 110 kV power transmission line for grid 2017 2021 9 - 516

connection of consumer terminals of JSC Novoroslesexport”
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INNOVATIVE
ACTIVITIES

ON 30 MARCH 2021, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY DEFINED INNOVATIVE
DEVELOPMENT WITH CONTROL OVER THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CURRENT INNOVATIVE
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME AS THE PRIORITY AREA OF THE COMPANY'S ACTIVITIES
(MINUTES NO. 426/2021).

Key areas of the Innovative Development Programme for

2020-2024, with an Qutlook Until 2030, approved by the

Board of Directors of Rosseti Kuban on 13 October 2021

(Mlnutes No. 450/2021):
Transition to 35-110 (220) kV smart substations

« Transition to the grids featuring active adaptation and
distributed smart automation and control system

- Transition to integrated efficiency of business processes and
automation of control systems

« Application of advanced technology solutions and materials in
power engineering

+ Promotion of an innovative development management system
and building an innovative infrastructure

DYNAMIC PROFILE OF KEY INDICATORS FOR
INNOVATION ACTIVITIES OVER 2019-2021 (RUB MN)

254 +20%
“5 I | 47y
m

2019 2020 2021

H Innovation scope
B Completed R&D scope




ANNUAL REPORT — 2021

82 83

THE COMPANY’S MAIN INNOVATIVE PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED IN 2021

Project

Project implementation

Creation of a smart metering
system in the branches of
PJSC Rosseti Kuban

Digital Labinsk 2 —
Sovetskaya 110 kV overhead
line

Introduction of charging
stations for electric vehicles
in branches of PJSC Rosseti
Kuban

Implementation time-frame: 2020-2030

In the reporting period, innovative smart metering devices were introduced in all 11 branches of

PJSC Rosseti Kuban.

Smart metering devices are integrated across the Company within the Investment Programme of

PJSC Rosseti Kuban to create a metering system as part of the implementation of Federal Law

No. 522-FZ dated 27 December 2018 On Amendments to Certain Legislative Acts of the Russian

Federation in Connection with the Development of Electricity (Capacity) Metering Systems in the

Russian Federation. In the reporting year, the introduction of smart metering devices was carried out,

inter alia, as a part of the grid connection procedure for new consumers of a capacity of up to 15 kW.

The project aims to create a smart metering system and integrate it into the innovative systems being

established: supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA), distribution management (DMS), and

outage management systems (OMS).

Planned effect:

+ Reduced operating costs by taking the readings and power supply parameters of electricity
consumers remotely

« Possibility of remote restriction and resumption of power supply to electricity consumers

Implementation time-frame: 2021-2025

Design and survey were carried out in the reporting year.

During the construction of the Labinsk 2 — Sovetskaya 110 kV overhead cable line, it is planned to use
innovative wire and lightning protection cable and an optical system for monitoring the condition of the
wires.

Planned effect:

+ Enhancement of the technical parameters of the line without changing its configuration

+ Increased reliability

Implementation time-frame: 2021-2025

On 13 October 2021, the Board of Directors approved the Charging Infrastructure Development

Programme.

The objectives of this Programme are as follows:

« Development of non-tariff revenues and provision of new services to consumers

« Improvement of the environmental situation

« Provision of a wide range of electric vehicle owners with the necessary charging infrastructure

« Establishment of a transport corridor for electric transport through the Krasnodar Territory to the
Crimean peninsula, with an extensive grid of electric charging stations

« Support to the introduction of public electric transport in the major cities of the Krasnodar Territory
(Krasnodar, Sochi)

« Large-scale introduction of autonomous electric vehicles

« Increased volume of electricity delivery

« Higher customer loyalty and promotion of Rosseti Kuban's brand

Planned effect: implementation of the programme will allow Rosseti Kuban to become a major
player in the charging infrastructure market for electric vehicles by 2025, as well as the driver of
both innovative solutions and technologies and legislative initiatives in this regards in the Krasnodar
Territory and the Republic of Adygea.

In the reporting year, three 120 kW Relevant MAX charging stations were purchased for installation in
the following branches of Rosseti Kuban: Krasnodar Power Grids, Sochi Power Grids and Slavyansk
Power Grids
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE COMPANY'S INNOVATIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME FOCUSES ON

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D), NAMELY PROMOTION OF CUTTING-EDGE TECHNOLOGY TO CREATE
FUNDAMENTALLY NOVEL METHODS, AS WELL AS APPLIED RESEARCH DESIGNED TO IMPROVE THE EXISTING
TECHNOLOGY.

Seven R&D projects were completed in 2019-2021. In 2021, phases of four R&D projects were accepted.

RESULTS OF R&D ACTIVITIES IN 2021

R&D description Results

Transition to smart 35-110 (220) kV substations

Development of a unified loT- Implementation time-frame: 2021-2023
platform' for dispatching data about ~ The following technical results were obtained:
the status of substation equipment  « Patent surveys, including patent landscapes based on the surveys carried out
+ Specifications
+Requirements for a unified loT-platform:
— Classification and analysis of approaches to the establishment of a unified loT-platform
depending on an existing state of substation equipment
— The general principles of the establishment of a unified loT-platform
— Area of rational (effective) application of a unified loT-platform
— An algorithm for selecting the optimum configuration when designing basic technical
solutions for the design of a unified loT-platform
« Apilot site (implementation site) was agreed to undergo pilot testing

Transition to integrated efficiency of business processes and automation of control systems

Study of the increment rate of Implementation time-frame: 2020-2022

key forest-forming tree species The following technical results were obtained:

depending on climatic zones and « R&D Report “Characteristics of forest vegetation necessary to determine the rate of

soil quality along the routings of overgrowth of overhead line breakthroughs and to develop recommendations on the
operating overhead lines with the frequency and methods of clearing the overhead line breakthroughs”

preparation of regional maps for « R&D Report “Effectiveness of existing methods of clearing routes from woody and shrub
regular clearing of overhead line vegetation (in terms of the impact of clearing methods on annual woody and shrub
right-of-ways and provision of vegetation growth)”

recommendations on technique of - Digital layers of geo-information databases on forest vegetation characteristics required to
works determine the rate of overgrowth of overhead line breakthroughs and to recommend the

frequency and methods of clearing

" Internet of Things (IoT) is a set of physical abjects connected to the Internet and exchanging data.
An loT-platform is software designed to connect the Internet of Things (sensors, controllers and other devices) to the cloud and access them remotely. It is a mediator between the hardware
level (sensor level) and the application level.
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R&D description

Results

Development of a software package
for the assessment and prediction
of the technical condition and
propagation of defects in 35-110 kV
power transformers based on
measurements performed by

the Automated Monitoring and
Diagnostics System and Production
Asset Management System

(PAMS) data with the issuance of
recommendations to the operating
personnel

Automated classification of
accidents based on machine
learning methods

Implementation time-frame: 2021-2023

The following technical results were obtained:

+ Report on patent searches and patent surveys

- Pre-design survey at the 110 kV Afipskaya substation and at the executive office of
PJSC Rosseti Kuban

+ Work project at the 110 kV Afipskaya substation and at the executive office of PJSC Rosseti
Kuban

« Specification of equipment and licences

+ Report on the installation of the hardware and server components of the automated
monitoring and technical diagnostics system

«  Software of the forecasting package

« Package of operational and programming documentation for the forecasting software
package

«User manual for the forecasting package and Automated Monitoring and Diagnostics
System (ASMD) software

+ Report on PAMS updating

+ Guidelines with general description of the expert models used and recommendations for
interpreting the results of the expert models

Implementation time-frame: 2021-2023
The technical results are as follows:
« Report on patent searches and patent surveys
« R&D report containing the following details:
— The results of survey and refinement of information security incident recording and
management processes
— Classes of the target set of information security incident attributes
— Aninitial set of data describing the behaviour of the nodes on the local area network and
the actions of users
— The level of accuracy of the ML-algorithm? results
— Requirements for the preparation of historical data on local area network node behaviour
and user activity
— The functional and technical requirements for selecting and configuring ML algorithms
agreed with the customer
— Aregister of risks and monitoring procedures

In 2019-2021, nine documents of copyright protection were Four licensing agreements were concluded for R&D results; four
obtained: five state registration certificates for computer results were introduced into production activities of Rosseti Kuban.
programmes, three patents for inventions and one patent for utility

models.

” Amachine learning (ML) algorithm is a process or set of procedures that help a model adapt to data with a given purpose.
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COMPANY'S EXPENSES FOR INNOVATIVE DEVELOPMENT
EXPENSES FOR THE KEY INNOVATION DEVELOPMENT AREAS IN 2019-2021 (RUB MN, EXCL. VAT)

Innovative development focus areas 2019 2020 2021 2021
(actual) (actual) (plan) (actual)
Transition to smart 33-110 220) kV substations | .. 2030 2930 %0 0.00.
Transition to the grids featuring active adaptation and distributed 0.00 180.15 184.30 229.10
smartatomationand controlsystem
Transition to integrated efficiency of business processes and 37.80 0.00 28.30 13.40
AUIOMAtion Of COMIBUSYSIBMS || | oot oeeeee e sesee e eeeeee et soeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeen
Utilisation of new technology solutions and materials in power 0.50 2.32 15.60 11.40
O e
Promotion of an innovative development management system and 0.00 0.64 6.56 420

building an innovative infrastructure

INTEGRATED APPLICATION/IMPLEMENTATION OF
(NEW) DIGITAL TECHNOLOGIES

ON 12 MAY 2021, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY APPROVED THE UPDATED PROGRAMME

— DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION OF ROSSETI KUBAN UNTIL 2030 (MINUTES NO. 431/2021 DATED 14 MAY
2021). THE PROGRAMME DEFINES THE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES, THE BASIC PRINCIPLES OF THE INTEGRATED
APPLICATION/INTRODUCTION OF (NEW) DIGITAL TECHNOLOGIES, A LIST OF PILOT PROJECTS AND
INFORMATION ON THE MANAGEMENT OF SUCH ACTIVITIES.

The objective of digital technologies application and introduction is
changing the logics of processes and transition of the Company to
risk-oriented management based on digital technologies and big data

The 110 kV Labinsk 2 — Sovetskaya digital overhead line project
has been piloted under the digital transformation programme. The
following innovative solutions and technologies are planned within the

framework of the said project:

+ Introduction of an innovative wire

«  Lightning protection cable made of steel clad aluminium wires
+ Optical monitoring system

analysis.

The objectives of digital transformation are as follows:
+ Making the Company’s more adaptable to new tasks and

challenges « System for distributed temperature control and condition
+ Improving the reliability performance of electric power supply to monitoring of optical fibres in lightning rope
consumers « Specialised system for lightning monitoring and forecasting of

«  Enhancing the Company's operational performance thunderstorms and analysis of lightning outages on overhead lines

+  Expanding the availability of the power grid infrastructure

+  Developing human resources and new competencies

« Diversifying the Company's business through additional services VOLUME OF FINANCING FOR DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES IN 2019-2021 (RUB MN)

The Company plans to implement the following activities:
+  Optimisation and/or modification of process logic as a result of
digital technologies introduction

+ The creation of a unified digital process data environment will
enable analytical studies for optimal management decisions, as
well as analysis of information on the condition of equipment,
forecasting the probability and consequences of failures — to
reduce the risks of equipment failure through timely targeted repair
or replacement

« The creation of a single digital model of the grid

2,775 2 4 times growth

1,155

The Innovative Development Programme of Rosseti Kuban for
2020-2024, with an Qutlook Until 2030, includes digital transformation
projects with the highest innovation component.

2020 2021
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES AND
TELECOMMUNICATIONS

IN THE REPORTING YEAR, THE COMPANY CARRIED OUT THE FOLLOWING MEASURES RELATED TO THE
DEVELOPMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS.

In order to solve the Company’s tasks associated with sales of
services and electricity metering, the capabilities of the Power
Transmission Metering System (PMTS) were expanded in terms

of:

« The electricity balancing at all grid levels and the analysis of

imbalances and excessive electricity losses

Automated circulation of certificates of limitation and
resumption of electricity consumption

Maintenance of information and monitoring for the metering
points for which there is no information on any power supply
agreement concluded

Automated search for discrepancies in electricity consumption
by metering point, during reconciliation checks with power
supply companies

To provide the functions of smart electricity (capacity) metering
systems, the following configurations were initiated:

Integration flows in terms of the transmission of meter
readings and power profiles to PMTS, from the Pyramida-Seti
software

Integration flows from the PMTS to the Unified Customer
Relationship Platform of the Rosseti Group

In order to implement Federal Law No. 371-FZ dated 9 November
2020 On the National System of Goods Traceability, the
functionality of the 1C:Enterprise (Enterprise Resource Planning)

corporate information system was expanded, and accounting tools

for traceable goods, the list of which was approved by Decree

No. 807 of the Government of the Russian Federation dated

25 June 2019, were developed. The corporate information system
was also finalised in terms of:

Handling claims on receivables under electricity transmission
agreements
Accepting payments for grid connections via online acquiring

The introduction of a modern automated system for payroll
calculation, personnel accounting and personalised reporting
based on 1C: Payroll and HR Management 8 CORP software was
still in progress in 2021. Commercial operation of the system is
scheduled to start in 2022.

The functionality of the corporate software package was extended:

The Ecology software module for waste management
accounting was designed

The corporate software package was integrated with the
regional node of the geoinformation system of Rosseti Group
with regard to transfer of data related to applications for grid
connection

The corporate software package was integrated with the
production asset management system in terms of exchange of
data related to feeder centres

A functionality was implemented to visually present the time
frames of a grid connection agreement and calculate the
normative date of fulfilment of an offer

The following activities related to the development of core
[T-infrastructure and services were carried out in 2021:

The project to migrate the executive office of PJSC Rosseti
Kuban to the new domain (rosseti-kuban.ru) was implemented
Server equipment for migration was purchased and

delivered to the single domain of the Company’s branches
(rosseti-kuban.ru)

Server equipment was purchased and installed to expand the
call centre based on the Awaya platform

Uninterrupted remote technical support was offered for the
Company’s employees


http://rosseti-kuban.ru
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

TARIFF POLICY
AND TARIFFS FOR THE COMPANY'S SERVICES

PRICES (TARIFFS) FOR THE COMPANY'S ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION SERVICES AND THE GRID
CONNECTION FEES ARE REGULATED BY THE STATE AND SPECIFIED BY THE ORDERS OF THE STATE
TARIFF REGULATION DEPARTMENT OF THE KRASNODAR TERRITORY (STRD-KT).

THE COMPANY’S TARIFF POLICY

In the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of Adygea, where the — On Approval of the Guidelines for the Calculation of Tariffs

Company operates, prices (tariffs) are unified for each group of for Electricity Transmission Services Established using the

power consumers. Required Gross Revenue Long-term Indexation Technique

No.98-e dated 17 February 2012

The main legal acts regulating relations in setting the controllable — On Approval of the Guidelines for the Calculation of

tariffs and the practice of their application are as follows: Regulated Tariffs and Prices for Electric (Thermal) Energy

« Federal Law On Electric Power Industry No. 35-FZ dated in the Retail (Consumer) Market No.20-e/2 dated 6 August
26 March 2003 (as amended) 2004

+ Decree of the Government of the Russian Federation On Pricing ~ «  Order of the FAS of Russia On Approval of the Guidelines for
in the Field of Regulated Prices (Tariffs) in the Electric Power Determining the Fees for Grid Connection No. 1135/17 dated
Industry No. 1178 dated 29 December 2011 (as amended) 29 August 2017

« Orders of the Federal Tariffs Service of Russia:
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TARIFFS FOR ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION
SERVICES

Since 2018, Rosseti Kuban has switched to the next long-term Information on tariffs for electricity transmission services in
period (five years) of regulating tariffs for electricity transmission 2021 is available on the Company'’s official website in the To
services. The tariffs and long-term regulation parameters for Consumers/Electricity Transmission/Tariffs for Electricity
2018-2022 are determined by the STRD-KT using the method of Transmission Services section.

long-term indexation of required gross revenue.
For more details on tariffs, please visit the Company's website.

Order of STRD-KT dated 29 December 2020 No. 51/2020-¢ (as
amended and supplemented) approved the unified “single pot”
tariffs for electricity transmission services, which had not been
revised during the regulation period.

COMPANY’S TARIFFS FOR ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION SERVICES

Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020 (%)
RGR for electricity transmission, approved as part of the tariff 49,125 52,319 53,702 2.6
and balance solutions (RUB mn)
|nc[ud|ng .........................................................................................................................................................................
ownRGR(RUan) ............................................................................ 2(]888 .......... e e
. Servicesprovided by PJSCFGCUES RUBmR) 7686 798 8063 10
"+ Expenses for purchase of electricity losses RUBmn) 7859 8684 8890 24
"+ Expenditures for TGO services (according to the effective contractual 12692 13470 13889 29
scheme) (RUB mn)
_Common pot net electricity delivery (mnkWh) 18937 19670 19483  -10


https://rosseti-kuban.ru/potrebitelyam/peredacha-elektricheskoy-energii/tarify-po-peredache-jelektrojenergii/
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STRUCTURE OF RGR FROM ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION BY PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN (RUB MN)

53,702

92,319

+2 9,

+2 L

+1o

+3.2%

2019 2020 2021
Own RGR
Services of PJSC FGC UES

Purchase of electricity to compensate losses

TGO services

A2021/2020

Tariffs for electricity transmission services on the grids of the
Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of Adygea for 2021 were
established so to increase starting from the second half of 2021:

+ by 9.8% for the “Other consumers” group, which is 6.8% higher
than the level specified by the Russian Federation’s Social and
Economic Development Forecast

« by 4.5% for the households

PAYMENTS FOR GRID CONNECTION

STRD-KT calculates standardised tariff rates and rates per unit

of maximum capacity in accordance with the Guidelines for
Determining the Fees for Grid Connection, approved by Order

No. 1135/17 of the FAS of Russia dated 29 August 2017 and based
on information on the costs of grid connection activities submitted
by territorial grid organisations of the region.

The Order of STRD-KT No. 49/2020-¢ dated 29 December 2020

approved:

« Standardised tariff rates determining the amount of payment
for connection to the grids of territorial grid organisations

+ Rates determining the amount of payment for connection to
the grids of territorial grid organisations, per unit of maximum
capacity

« Formulas for calculating the amount of payment for grid
connection, based on standardised tariff rates and payment
rates per unit of maximum capacity, taking into account the
method of connection to the grids of a grid organisation and
implementation of relevant measures

In addition, Order No. 49/2020-e of STRD-KT dated 29 December
2020, in accordance with the legislation of the Russian Federation,
established the following fees for connection to the territorial
distribution grids for applicants who have applied for grid
connection of consumer terminals with maximum capacity not
exceeding 15 kW inclusive (taking into account the previously
connected power consumer terminals at the particular connection
point), and micro-generation facilities when connecting to the
facilities covered by the third category of reliability:

« forindividuals — RUB 550.00 (incl. VAT)

- for legal entities — RUB 458.33 (excl. VAT)
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At the same time, the distance from the borders of the applicant’s
site to the power grid facilities featuring voltage level up to and
including 20 kV and corresponding to the required voltage class of
the grid organisation an application was submitted to shall be as
follows:

«not more than 300 metres in cities and urban-type settlements
+not more than 500 metres in rural areas
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Detailed information on the established standardised tariff rates
and the rates of payment per unit of maximum power for grid
connection to the Rosseti Kuban power grids for 2021 is available
on the Company’s website in the To Consumers / Grid Connection /
Tariffs for Grid Connection section.

Grid connection tariffs can be found on the Company's website

INDICATORS OF PAYMENT FOR CONNECTION TO POWER GRIDS OF PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN

Indicators 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020 (%)
Standardised tariff rates (RUB/connection) and 10,272.30 10,860.59 11,486.68 5.8
payment rates per unit of maximum capacity 6 476666739 """"""""" 63662—46

(RUB/kW) to cover the costs of grid connection
of applicants for activities not related to the
construction of power grid facilities

The change in grid connection rates is caused by the change in the

ratio of capacity and the number of grid connections of regional
grid organisations over three previous years.
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FINANCIAL (ACCOUNTING)
STATEMENTS OF
PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN

The Accounting (Financial) Statement of PJSC Rosseti Kuban
for 2021 was prepared under the existing laws of the Russian
Federation. The Company received the Auditor’s report that the
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, as well as
its financial performance and consolidated cash flows in 2021,
in compliance with the Russian Federation rules for financial

statements”.

Lyudmila Loskutova
General Accountant — Head of the
Accounting and Tax Accounting
Department, Rosseti Kuban, PJSC

The financial statements of PJSC Rosseti Kuban were drawn up

in accordance with the standards and procedures concerning

accounting and reporting (hereinafter — RAS) in place in the

Russian Federation:

« Federal Law No. 402-FZ dated 6 December 2011 On Accounting

+ Order of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation
(hereinafter — the Ministry of Finance of Russia) No. 66n dated
2 July 2010 On Accounting Forms of Organisations

« The Order of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation
No.124n dated 5 October 2011 On Amendments Being Made
to the Accounting Forms of Organisations as Approved by the
Order of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation
No. 66n dated 2 July 2010

« Order No. 34n of the Finance Ministry of Russia dated 29 July
1998 On the Ratification of Regulations for Accounting and
Reporting in the Russian Federation

« The chart of accounts for financial and business operations
accounting approved by Order No. 94n of the Ministry of Finance
of the Russian Federation dated 31 October 2000

«Accounting Regulations (PBU 1/2008) on Accounting Policies of
an Organisation approved by Order No. 106n of the Ministry of
Finance of Russia dated 6 October 2008

The annual RAS financial statements of PJSC Rosseti Kuban for
2021 include (please see Appendix 4):

- Balance Sheet

Profit and Loss Statement

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of Cash Flows

Representations

Auditor's Report
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In accordance with the opinion of the internal audit of the Company
on assessment of efficiency and quality of the external audit
process of the financial statements of Rosseti Kuban for 2021:

the procedures performed by LLC Ernst & Young in the course
of the external audit of the RAS compliant financial statements
of the Company for 2021 comply with the terms of the Contract
and the requirement of Federal Law On Auditing No. 307-FZ
dated 30 December 2008

92 93

The independent auditor’s report on the Company’s 2021
financial statements was prepared in accordance with Federal
Law On Auditing No. 307-FZ dated 30 December 2008 and
international auditing standards; the report contains an opinion
on the entity audited (Rosseti Kuban) expressed in a prescribed
form

BASIC FRAMEWORK OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICY
OF PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN

The Company maintains accounting of fixed assets in compliance
with Accounting Regulations “Accounting for Fixed Assets”

(PBU 6/01) approved by Order of the Ministry of Finance of
Russia No.26n dated 30 March 2001. Asset depreciation was
incurred by the straight-line method depending on the useful

life. The depreciation was not charged for the fully depreciated
(worn-out) assets.

The advance payments linked with the future acquisition of a
capital asset, as well as raw materials and other materials to be
used in the production of fixed assets are shown in line 1150 —
Fixed Assets.

Immovable properties, which are actually in use, do not require
any further capital investments and have the source documents
ready, are included for accounting purposes as fixed assets

and put in a separate sub-account for the Properties Without
Registered Ownership Rights. Depreciation for such properties is
charged under the standard procedure since the first day of the
month following the month of commissioning.

The accounting of revenue and other earnings is maintained by the

Company in compliance with Accounting Regulations (PBU 9/99)
“Income of the Organisation” approved by Order of the Ministry of
Finance of Russia No.32n dated 6 May 1999.

The Company has made estimated liabilities in view of the
following:

PRIOR ADJUSTMENTS

There are no prior adjustments in the financial statements for 2021.

Possible payments of compensation for unused leave
Unsettled claims of electricity suppliers for compensation of
losses and electricity transmission services

Litigation

Other employee benefits in accordance with PBU 8/2010
“Estimated Liabilities, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” approved by Order No. 167n of the Ministry of Finance
of Russia dated 13 December 2010

The Company reserves doubtful accounts receivable that are
outstanding or highly unlikely to be repaid on time and are not
secured by relevant guarantees.

The Company holds a reserve to mitigate the impairment of
financial investments in case of their significant depreciation.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
ROSSETI KUBAN, PJSC FOR 2021

The Company drafted consolidated financial statements in - Consolidated statement of changes in equity

compliance with the requirements of Federal Law No.208-FZ On «Notes to the consolidated financial statements comprising
Consolidated Financial Statements dated 27 July 2010 (please see a summary of significant accounting policies and other
Appendix 5). explanatory information

+ Independent auditor’s report

The consolidated financial statements of Rosseti Kuban and
its subsidiaries for the year ended on 31 December 2021 were The consolidated financial statements cover two subsidiaries
prepared in accordance with Federal Law On Consolidated with 100% interest of Rosseti Kuban in their authorised capital:
Financial Statements No. 208-FZ dated 27 July 2010. Subject to the ~ JSC Energoservice Kuban, JSC Energetik Health Resort.
requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards
IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements), IFRS 10 (Consolidated
Financial Statements) related to the preparation of financial
statements, the latter shall include:
« Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income
+ Consolidated statement of financial position
- Consolidated statement of cash flows
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DETAILS OF THE AUDITOR

PJSC Rosseti conducted an electronic tender on behalf of the
Company for the right to conclude a agreement for the provision
of services for the mandatory annual audit of 2021 RAS and

IFRS statements of subsidiaries and affiliates of PJSC Rosseti.

LLC Ernst & Young, leader of the collective purchase, was declared
the winner (Minutes of the Tender Commission No. 6/416r

dated 18 March 2021). LLC Ernst & Young is a member of the
Self-Regulating Organisation of Auditors — Commonwealth

DETAILS ABOUT THE COMPANY’S AUDITOR IN 2021

Full name of the auditor company:

94 95

Association; it is included in the Register of Auditors and
Audit Organisations of the said assaciation under the primary
registration number 12006020327.

The Auditor was approved by the resolution of the Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders of Rosseti Kuban (Minutes No. 45 dated
4 June 2021).

Ernst & Young Limited Liability Company

During 2021, LLC Ernst&Young did not provide any related services
for PJSC Rosseti Kuban.

Cost of services of the Company'’s auditor LLC Ernst & Young in
2021 for the audit of the RAS financial statements and the audit of
the IFRS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company will be
RUB 5,704,400.00, including 20% VAT of RUB 950,733. There are no
deferred and overdue payments for the auditor’s services.
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RESULTS OF FINANCIAL AND
ECONOMIC ACTIVITIES

Based on the year-end results, the Company made a profit of
RUB 1,711.8 mn, which was mainly due to an increase in revenue
from electricity transmission as a result of larger volume of
services provided due to higher consumption.
The Company’s management took comprehensive measures to
control the growth of expenditures and debt portfolio, optimise
interest expenditures, improve the efficiency of the procurement
management system, reduce the unit expenses for power
equipment operation, reduce the in-grid electricity losses, and
Kirill lordanidi increase power efficiency.
Deputy General Director for Economicsand N 2021, the Company did not receive financial state assistance

Finance, Rosseti Kuban, PJSC (subsidies)".

Revenue from sales of services (total) in the reporting period

amounted to RUB 57,669.7 mn, which is RUB 8,300.2 mn more

than in the same period in 2020 (RUB 49,369.6 mn), including:

+  Revenue from electricity transmission services amounted
to RUB 54,526.3 mn, which is RUB 6,424 mn greater than
the actual parameters of 2020 (RUB 48,101.9 mn) due to an
increase in the volume of rendered electricity transmission
services by 1,896 mn kWh (10%) as well as growth of unified
“single pot” tariffs for electricity transmission services

+ Revenue from grid connections totalled RUB 2,347.7 mn,
representing an increase of RUB 1,616.4 mn (twice) compared
to actual values for 2020 (RUB 731.3 mn), due to the execution
of contracts in 2021 with major consumers —JSC KTK-R

(Stage 1 — RUB 729 mn), JSC Novoroslesexport (RUB 361 mn),

State Healthcare Institution Research Institute — KKB No. 1
named after Professor Ochapovsky (RUB 238 mn), Orlyonok
All-Russian Children's Centre (RUB 189 mn), LLC Studio Project
Design (RUB 103 mn), LLC Kurortny Residential Complex

(RUB 47 mn), JSC NESK-Electroseti (RUB 66 mn)

Revenue from other activities amounted to RUB 795.8 mn,
which is RUB 259.4 mn (48%) more than the actual parameters
of 2020 (RUB 536.4 mn), due to the development of additional
(non-tariff) services
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Y.
A4
N
1 7 RUB bn
NET PROFIT FOR 2021

(LOSS OF RUB 1.5 BN A YEAR EARLIER)

8 9 RUB bn

EBITDA FOR 2021 (+87% VS. TO 2020)

2.29

NET DEBT / EBITDA AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
(VS. 4.25 A YEAR EARLIER)
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TOTAL REVENUE (RUB MN) REVENUE FROM ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION SERVICES
(RUBMN)
54,526 5652 +13%
48,102 48,102
2,348

731 536 "~ 796 | ‘

- P

2020 2021 2020 2021
B For electricity transmission services B [ncrease in re_\(/jercliuesddye to higher v%lu(rjq‘e of l
W For grid connection ;g{v&%eﬂs Srow ed and increase in unified “single
W For other activities
REVENUE FROM GRID CONNECTION (RUB MN) REVENUE FROM OTHER ACTIVITIES (RUB MN)

796 +48%

2,348
536
731 32 times growth I

2020 2021 2020 2021

B |ncrease due to the execution of agreements with B ncrease due to the development of additional

large-scale consumers (non-tariff) services
Cost of sales (including administrative expenses) for 2021 was material costs (mainly due to increased expenses for maintenance
RUB 50,054.5 mn, which is 7% (RUB 3,079.2 mn) higher than in and repair materials) and increased expenses under the line
2020 (RUB 46,975.3 mn). The increase is due to higher expenses Provisions for Future Expenses.
for purchased electricity to compensate losses, distribution
grid companies’ services, PJSC FGC UES services for electricity Profit before tax was RUB 2,698.8 mn, an increase of

transmission, depreciation of fixed and intangible assets, other RUB 4,083.1 mn over the 2020 parameters.
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The 2021 financial result (profit) of the Company is — Balance aggravation for other earnings and expenses from

RUB 1,711.8 mn, which is above the 2020 bottom-line. the profit by RUB 1,138.0 mn (30%) as compared to the 2020
parameters

Key factors influencing the financial results: — Increase in income tax by RUB 869.9 mn relative to 2020

+Increase in revenue by RUB 8,300.2 mn (17%) parameters

— Increase in the net cost of sales including management
expenses by RUB 3,079.2 mn (7%) compared to 2020 parameters

KEY FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC INDICATORS OF THE COMPANY FOR 2019-2021

SL.No. Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020

Indicators from the Company’s RAS financial statements'

1 Proceeds from product (service) sales 51,004 49,370 57,670 17%

(RUB mn), including:

1] ......... fromelectr|c|tytransm|ss|on ....................................... 4 65]6 .................. A 81[]2 54 526 ......................... 13% .
12 ........ fro m g n d connecnon .................................................. A 2[]6 ...................... 7 31 .................. 2 348 ........ 32 t|mes ngth .
]3 ........ frome[ectnqtysales ........................................................ [] ......................... 0 ........................ (]_
14 ........ fromotheracnwneszsz ...................... 5 367% ......................... 48%
o Costof products (services) RUBmn) - 377 46800 -49903 %
. 3 ........... Gmss proﬁt (RUB ; mn) ................................................. 72 30 ................... 2 569 .................. 7 7 67 ........... 3 t|mes growth .
4 ........... Managemem expenses(RUB mn) .................................. - ]62 .................... : 175 _]52 ....................... _13% .
5 ........... Se[h ngexpen Ses (RU B mn) ................................................ 0 ......................... [] ........................ 0 ............................. 0 .
6 Profit(oss) fromsales RUBmn) 708 2394 7615  32times growth
_ 7 ........... |nte re st . re Ce |Vab[e (RUB mn) ............................................ 67 ....................... 29 ...................... 28 ......................... : 3 % _
8 ........... |nterestpayab[e(RUan) ......................................... _1971_1593 ................ _1553 ......................... - 3%
9 ........... |ncomefromshareholdmgs(RUan)[]6[]7 .................... 2 [][] ......... 29Umesngth
1[] ......... Othermcometota[(RUan) ....................................... 22701563 .................. 14]4 ....................... _][]%
11 ......... Other . expenses tota[ (RUB mn ) .................................. _3 909 ................. _3 778 ................ _4 826 ......................... 28 % .
12 ......... Proﬁt . (loss) before tax (RU B mn) ................................... 3 525 ................. _] : 384 .................. 2 699 ....................... 295% .
13 Income taxand other charges RUBmn) S 17 97 Stimesgrowth
14 ......... Fmanua[ resu[t ( R U B mn) ............................................ 2504 _________________ _1 501 .................. 17 12 ....................... 214% _
15 ......... EBlTDAZ(RUB mn) ..................................................... 9741 ................... 4756 .................. 8 879 ......................... 87% .
Indicators calculated on the basis of the Company’s IFRS financial statements

16 Net debt/EBITDA (units) 2.23 4.25 2.25 —2.00 units
. 17 ......... Currenthq u.d |tyrat|o (Un |ts) ........................................... 0 80 ..................... U 61 .................... 055 ................ —U[]éumts _

" The following indicators are used to calculate the indicators:
for 2019 — profit and loss statement for January — December 2020 (“for 2019" column);
for 2020 - profit and loss statement for January — December 2021 (“for 2020" column);
for 2021 - profit and loss statement for January — December 2021 (“for 2021" column).

* The EBITDA indicator was calculated according to the following procedure: EBITDA = Profits before tax — Interest payable + Depreciation.
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SL.No. Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020
18 Financial leverage (units) 1.03 1.31 117 —0.14 units
.. 19 .......... share of . [ong_term debt (%) ....................................... 84 1 5 ................... 77 ] 3 .................. 7(, 19 ..................... - 0 %% .
20 .......... Netcashﬂow(RUan)_]752 ...................... 3 20 .................. “3] ............ RUB3811mn

DEBTOR MANAGEMENT

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (RUB MN)

Indicator As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December A 2021/2020 (%)
2019 2020 2021
Accounts receivable 7,433.11 8,547.20 6,547.36 -234
Including:
trade receivables 6,611.23 757832 5,865.80 -22.6
for electricity transmission, out of the 6,348.85 7,386.47 5,725.92 =225
above item
bills receivable - - - -
advances paid 32.70 4752 4353 -84
other accounts receivable 789.18 921.36 638.03 -30.8
The bulk of accounts receivable (87.5%) of the Company was To reduce the accounts receivable, the Company undertakes the
accumulated from the payments for the electricity transmission following actions:
services rendered. « Claim-related works, including the collection of fines for

overdue payments
During the reporting period, the accounts receivable that were - Offset of counter claims
deemed impossible to collect amounted to RUB 0.3 mn. « Restricted energy delivery to consumers, also upon requests
from electricity retailers
+ Settlement of disputes under the pre-action protocol and in
court

THE RESULTS OF THE COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES TO REDUCE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE OF THE SUBCONTRACTORS FOR
ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION SERVICES

Indicator 2019 2020 2021
Positive judicial rulings / amount claimed 174 cases / 149 cases / 204 cases /
RUB 7,325.74 mn RUB 8,747.78 mn RUB 5,452.40 mn
Filed law writs of execution amounting to RUBmn) 358 o078 28679
Arrears under law writs of executionpaid ~~~ RUB 989.34mn, or 209%  RUB 29258 mn, or 70% RUB 333.18 mn, or 116%
Withheld to collect / amount claimed 8cases/RUB3B8mn  1case/RUB1.06mn 2 cases/RUB1.80mn
Percentage of claimed ruled in favour of the %950 %% 99.96

Company (%)
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WITH THE MEASURES TO REDUCE RECEIVABLES, THE SHARE OF
CLAIMS SETTLED IN FAVOUR OF THE COMPANY IS AT A STABLE
HIGH LEVEL, REACHING 99.96% AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021.

100 101

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS WITH SUBCONTRACTORS, FOR WHICH THE BANKRUPTCY PROCEDURE WAS COMMENCED

Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020
(%)

Number of subcontractors under the ongoing bankruptcy procedure 23 23 Lt 91

The volume of the Company’s claims (on the current payments) included 768.91 760.61 669.23 -12

to the creditor claim list or submitted to the debtors under the bankruptcy

procedure (RUB mn)

The total amount of cash flows received by the Company's budget from 132 6.87 0,00 -

subcontractors under the bankruptcy procedure (RUB mn)

The amount of overdue payments from the subcontractors under the 768.91 760.61 920.37 21

bankruptcy procedure (RUB mn)

The amount of cash flows saved by the Company due to the purchase of its 0.00 0.00 0.00 -

debt owned to debtors under the bankruptcy procedure (RUB mn)

BONDED LOANS

The Programme for Exchange Bonds series 002P of the Company
was approved by the resolution of the Company’s Board of
Directors on 20 September 2016 (Minutes No.251/2016); ID number
4-00063-A-002P-02E was assigned to it on 24 October 2016.

The Programme provides for the possibility of exchange bonds
placement to the total par value of up to and including RUB 25 bn
for up to 30 years. The bonds under this Programme were not
placed in the reporting year.

The list of securities admitted to trading on PJSC Moscow
Exchange includes documentary interest-bearing non-convertible
bearer-payable exchange-traded bonds with mandatory
centralised custody of Series 001P-01 placed in 2015 under the
Exchange-Traded Bond Programme with identification number
4-00063-A-001P-02E dated 26 August 2015, in the amount of

RUB 3.6 bn. On 31 January 2020, in accordance with the decision of
the Board of Directors (Minutes No. 371/2019 dated 30 December
2019) the Company repurchased those bonds in full before

maturity.
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CONSOLIDATION OF POWER
GRID ASSETS

PURSUANT TO THE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY OF THE POWER GRID COMPLEX OF THE RUSSIAN
FEDERATION, NAMELY ITS GOAL TO REDUCE THE NUMBER OF TGOS, THE COMPANY CONSOLIDATED
THE GRID ASSETS IN THE KRASNODAR TERRITORY AND THE REPUBLIC OF ADYGEA DURING THE
REPORTING YEAR.

In 2021, Rosseti Kuban consolidated 15,402.7 c.u. of 1,262.2 km in

length and 1,351.2 MVA in capacity and completed 82 transactions,

including:

« 24 gratuitous transfers of grid facilities from non-profit
organisations and individuals

+ 56 lease agreements, including 13 agreements with TGOs, 25
agreements with municipal entities, 18 agreements with other

For 2021, STRD-KT approved individual transmission tariffs

for 53 TGOs (Order No. 51/2020-¢ dated 27 December 2020).

PJSC Rosseti Kuban signed grid assets lease agreements with two
TGOs (LLC Rostekelektroseti and LLC Alga).

With respect to consolidating grid assets, the Company undertaken
the following measures during the reporting year:

+ In cooperation with the authorities, the Company took active

efforts in picking up ownerless movable power property and
registering it on own balance books

«The Company informed the Krasnodar Territory Administration

of its intention to consolidate the power grid property owned
by third parties, at Rosseti Kuban, with submitting the action
plan approved by the Ministry of Fuel and Energy, Housing and
Utilities of the Krasnodar Territory

« Rosseti Kuban participated in meetings with the Ministry of Fuel

and Energy, Housing and Utilities of the Krasnodar Territory on

the following issues:

— Transferring the grid facilities of horticultural and dacha
communities to the balance of power grid organisations

— Developing regulations to improve the criteria according to
which owners of electric grid facilities can be classified as
TGOs

— Transferring grid facilities owned by non-compliant entities
to qualified TGOs operating the grids, which have a direct
grid connection to such facilities

owners
« 2 Two transactions of gratuitous use of property
« Takeover of 81 abandoned power facilities
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15,403..

CONSOLIDATION BY PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN IN 2021

1,262 km

CONSOLIDATED PTL LENGTH

1,351 MVA

CONSOLIDATED CAPACITY

MONITORING THE VOLUMES OF CONSOLIDATION OF POWER GRID ASSETS IN 2019-2021

Method of consolidation 2019 2020 2021

MVA km c.u. MVA km c.u. MVA km c.u.
TOTAL 1,457.1 1,686.1 16,024.2 1,438.1 1,200.4 15,248.9 1,351.2 1,262.2 15,402.7
Grid facilities acquired 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grid facilities in operating 1,314.1 907.7 10,4228 13278 881.2 10,518.1 1,324.7 1,151.7 14,8055
lease

Other (permanent rights of 9.7 494 159.6 5.5 29.6 1251 6.2 34.0 201.3
ownership and use)

Other (temporary rights of 1333 7290 54419 104.7 289.6  4,605.7 20.3 76.6 395.9
ownership and use)
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SUSTAINABILITY
MANAGEMENT

THE COMPANY’S UNDERSTANDING OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE UN
DEFINITION: “DEVELOPMENT THAT MEETS THE NEEDS OF THE PRESENT WITHOUT COMPROMISING
THE ABILITY OF FUTURE GENERATIONS TO MEET THEIR OWN NEEDS".

CONTRIBUTION TO THE UN SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT GOALS (SDGS)

Given the nature of its business, the Company contributes to the achievement of 8 of the 17 UN SDGs in the course of its operations.

UN Sustainable Development Goals Contribution of the Company to the achievement

GOODHEALTH Goal 3: Good Health and Well- The principles of Rosseti Kuban's occupational safety and social
AND WELL-BEING

Being (ensuring healthy lifestyles  policy are to recognise and prioritise the life and health of employees
—/\4/ (") and promoting well-being for all over the Company's operating results, to provide comfortable working and leisure
at all ages) conditions for employees, to improve their social security, and to improve labour
and social relations in the workforce.
PJSC Rosseti Kuban ensures:
« compliance with occupational health and safety regulations
« social security for employees, including voluntary health insurance (VHI),
health resort treatment, financial support for employees and retirees
- safety of power facilities for third parties

For more details of the Company's results and achievements in the reporting year, please see the Sustainable
Development section.

4w Goal 4: Quality Education (ensuring  Employee training is one of the priorities of the Company's human resources

. inclusive and equitable quality and social policies. The ratio of employees who participated in off-the-job training
I!ﬂ l education and promoting lifelong was 96% of the average number of employees in the reporting year
learning opportunities for all)

For more details of the Company's results and achievements in the reporting year, please see the Sustainable
Development section.

Goal 7: Affordable and Clean The Company maintains a sufficient level of operational reliability of electric
Energy (ensuring universal access  grid equipment and ensures non-discriminatory access of consumers
to affordable, reliable, sustainable  to the Company’s electricity transmission services

and modern energy for all
gy ) For more details on results and achievements of the Company in the reporting year, please see the Operating

Results section.
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Contribution of the Company to the achievement
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Goal 8: Decent Work and Economic
Growth (promoting sustained,
inclusive and sustainable economic
growth, full and productive
employment and decent work

for all)

Goal 9: Industry, Innovation

and Infrastructure (building resilient
infrastructure, promoting inclusive
and sustainable industrialisation
and fostering innovation)

Goal 11: Sustainable Cities

and Communities (ensuring
inclusive, safe, resilient

and environmentally sustainable
cities and communities)

Goal 12: Responsible Consumption
and Production (ensuring transition
to sustainable consumption

and production patterns)

Goal 15: Life on Land (protecting
and restoring terrestrial
ecosystems and promoting their
sustainable use, sustainably
managing forests, combating
desertification, halting

and reversing land degradation
and halting biodiversity loss)

The Company is actively involved in the social and economic life of the region
by creating jobs and employment for suppliers in related industries,

as well as by arranging various social programmes and charitable activities.
In 2021, the level of average salary of production personnel in the branches
of Rosseti Kuban is competitive; in all branches of the Company, it exceeds
the accrued salary level being average in the region of operation by 10-50%

In order to eliminate the existing shortage of energy capacity and to meet

the demand for the same (including in the longer terms), the Company:

Participates fully in developing roadmaps for the five-year perspective

development of the power industry in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic

of Adygea

« Provides quality service to applicants, accessibility of electricity infrastructure
in terms of grid connection of consumers, and development of the power grid
complex

« Eliminates power grid constraints to enable the grid connection of new
consumers and provide quality and reliable power supply to existing electricity
consumers

« Implements the Company'’s Innovation Development Programme

For more details on results and achievements of the Company in the reporting year, please see the Operating

Results section.

The Company provides reliable and uninterrupted power supply to consumers,

ensures environmental safety at power grid facilities and promotes

the development of small and medium-sized businesses

For more details on results and achievements of the Company in the reporting year, please see the Operating

Results and Sustainable Development sections.

The Company is working on energy saving and energy efficiency improvements

in accordance with the regulations of the Russian Federation and the Krasnodar

Territory, as well as the Energy Saving and Energy Efficiency Improvement

Programme

For more details of the Company’s results and achievements in the reporting year, please see the Sustainable

Development section.

The Company carries out the necessary work to preserve the terrestrial

ecosystem:

+ Land reclamation

« Restoration of terrestrial ecosystems and promation of their sustainable use

« Sustainable forest management

« Timely compensatory planting in combating desertification and reversing land
degradation

« Installation of bird diverters at power grid facilities

For more details of the Company’s results and achievements in the reporting year, please see the Sustainable
Development section.
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STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS

Stakeholders:

« State bodies, local authorities, legal entities under public law, as well as legal and natural persons who may have an interest
in the Company’s results and value creation

- Persons who may affect the Company's operations, products and services or the Company’s ability to create value, successfully
implement its strategies and achieve its objectives

« Individuals and legal entities who are affected by the Company’s activities

KEY STAKEHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Stakeholders Interaction of the Company with its stakeholders

Internal stakeholders

Subsidiaries and affiliates of the Company These parties are interested in disseminating best corporate governance
practices to them and maintaining their image as part of Rosseti Kuban Group.
Interaction goes through the management and control bodies of subsidiaries
and affiliates in accordance with the applicable laws of the Russian Federation
and local regulations, joint activities, as well as interaction on current issues

within the framework of standard business processes, including reporting.
For more details, please see Appendix 3 to the Report.

Company’s personnel These parties are interested in attractive business culture, competitive
Social partners (trade unions, employers’ wages, social and health benefits, opportunities for personal, professional
associations) development, and work safety.

The ways of interaction:

« through the implementation of the Collective Agreement, a talent pool
programme and targeted human resources assessment and development
projects

« through training and qualification improvement

- through meetings between management representatives and employees,
professional competitions, cultural and sporting events

« through the Council of Young Professionals and the All-Russian Electrical
Trade Union

« through comprehensive adaptation and mentoring system (if any) for new
employees and outreach for veterans

For more details, please see the Human Resources Management subsection of the Sustainable Development
section.

Operating environment

Investment community (shareholders and investors)  These parties have an interest in the growth of total shareholder return,
including dividend yield and capitalisation of the Company, its development,
consideration of the interests of all shareholder groups, information
transparency and openness of the Company, efficiency of production activities
for sustainable development, and a high level of corporate governance.
Interaction goes through the General Meetings of Shareholders, representation
in management and control bodies, when contacting the Company,
as well as through the disclosure of information about the Company

Consumers of electricity and grid connection services,  Interaction goes through customer service centres, the Power Grid Services

territorial grid organisations Portal of the Rosseti Group at www.noptan-Tn.pé, and the contact centre
with the unified federal numbers 8-800-100-15-52 and 8-800-220-0-220.
Individuals can also send their appeals through the online reception portal

on the official website of Rosseti Kuban at https://rosseti-kuban.ru
For more details, please see the Sustainable Development section.
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Stakeholders Interaction of the Company with its stakeholders
Partners (suppliers, contractors, business partners, These parties are interested in mutually beneficial and long-term cooperation,
professional and industry assaciations, including stable financial condition of the Company, timely and accurate fulfilment
international ones) of contractual obligations, transparency in procurement and rejection

of corruption.

Interaction is effected through procurement procedures, negotiations,
participation in topic-related forums, seminars and conferences with media
participation, and through the corporate website

For more details, please see the Sustainable Development section.

State (federal, regional and local authorities) This party is interested in ensuring the reliable and sustainable functioning
of the power system, discussing and reviewing government projects
and decisions related to industry regulation, cooperating on planning
and implementing territorial development programmes in the region
of operation, participating in implementing the Energy Strategy of Russia
and the Strategy for Development of the Power Grid Complex of the Russian

Federation, meeting medium-term and long-term demand for electricity,
attracting additional investment to the region, creation of new jabs,
and increase in tax payments.

Interaction is effected through expert discussions, conferences, forums,
working meetings and joint events with representatives of regional
authorities, setting tariffs for regulated activities, approval of investment
programmes and reports on their implementation, participation in working
groups to develop roadmaps for prospective development of the power sector,
conclusion of cooperation agreements, reporting to authorities, disclosure
of information in accordance with the legislation of the Russian Federation,
and tax remittance

Social environment

Society (public, social, charitable and environmental ~ The said party is interested in reliable, uninterrupted and high quality
organisations, scientific and educational institutions,  energy supply, employment, socio-economic development of the regions
non-consumptive population, and media) of operation, environmental safety and protection, energy security and energy
efficiency, implementation of social and charitable programmes, development
of science and education in the regions of operation, introduction of advanced
scientific technologies, demand for young promising personnel, availability
and regularity of information on activities of the Company.
Interaction is effected through participation in charity projects, publications
in the media and on the corporate website, press conferences, PR events,
topic-related seminars, forums, competitions, meetings and topic-related
events with veterans, students, schoolchildren, etc., application of measures
to prevent electrical accidents with the population, participation in research
and educational projects

For more details, please see the Sustainable Development section.
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CUSTOMER RELATIONS

THE MAIN FUNCTION OF THE CUSTOMER COMMUNICATION DEPARTMENTS OF ROSSETI KUBAN

IS SUPPORTING TIMELY AND UNHINDERED SOLVING THE ISSUES RELATED TO GRID CONNECTION, POWER
TRANSMISSION, ELECTRICITY METERING ARRANGEMENT, AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES ARRANGEMENT
FOR INDIVIDUALS AND LEGAL ENTITIES, WITHIN THE COMPANY'S OPERATIONAL RESPONSIBILITY.

In evolving the customer service system, the Company’s management
pays special attention to creating awareness of consumers about

the services provided by the Company, ensuring comfortable
conditions for face-to-face service, and improving the availability

of digital services. In the reporting year, due to restrictions related

to the distribution of COVID-19, the main way for the Company

to interact with its customers was the Rosseti Group’s online service,
which is available at www.noprtan-tn.pé.

In 2021, Rosseti Kuban received 87,846 appeals via online services, up

Alexander

Chepusov

Deputy General Director for Development
and Power Grid Connection, Rosseti
Kuban, PJSC

34% year-on-year.

In the reporting year, Rosseti Kuban actively cooperated
with the representatives of the executive authorities of the Krasnodar

Territory and the Republic of Adygea, the public, businesses,

and potential consumers of the Company'’s services — with respect
to the issues related to the development of the power grid complex
and increasing the availability of power infrastructure”.

To maintain the high quality of Company services, 13 customer
service centres and 41 customer service offices are in operation
within the power grid regions.

To provide remote services to customers, Rosseti Kuban

runs a 24-hour call-centre with the federal phone numbers
8-800-100-15-52 and 8-800-220-0-220. Call-centre operators
inform the residents of the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic
of Adygea about any power supply issues and recovery work /
planned repair schedules. Moreover, they take reports from

the customers concerning electricity theft and consult them about
grid connection and other Company services.

In 2021, Rosseti Kuban's call centre received more than 870,000
calls, which is 210,000 more than in 2020.

In the reporting year, Rosseti Kuban received 11,121 complaints
from customers; out of those, 3,092 were justified.

Based on the results of 110 inspections carried out on the basis
of reports of electricity theft submitted by consumers via the call
centre, off-the-meter electricity worth RUB 1.38 mn was detected.
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STRUCTURE OF CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS RECEIVED
BY THE COMPANY IN THE REPORTING YEAR (%)

-’

34 m Power outage
7 m Maintenance
4 m Electricity metering
12 = Grid connection
41 m Electricity transmission
2 Other
0 Contact information, service quality,

additional services

110 m

Complaints from service users were settled, and remedial
measures planned for the reporting period were completed.

In 2021, Rosseti Kuban serviced its customers mainly
through the Rosseti Group's electric grid services portal

at www.noptan-Tn.pg.

In 2021, Rosseti Kuban received 87,846 appeals via online
facilities, up 22,373 appeals year-on-year. This includes 53,947
applications for grid connection, 25,677 applications year-on-year.

STRUCTURE OF CUSTOMER APPEALS
BY COMMUNICATION CHANNEL (THS APPEALS)

870
660
43 88
[— [ |
2020 2021
M Call Centre

M Interactive services

THE KEY PROGRESS MADE BY THE COMPANY IN INTERACTION WITH CUSTOMERS IN 2021

For interaction with consumers of services during the period
of high COVID-19 incidence and the high-preparedness regime

introduced in the Krasnodar Territory and the Republic of Adygea,

the following measures were undertaken:

«  Limiting the operation of customer service offices

+ Keeping consumers informed via the official website
of the Company, social networks and mass media about
the possibility of receiving services in electronic format
via the portal noptan-tn.pd established for the Rosseti Group's
customers, without personal visits to service offices

« Updating the personal account on the official website nop-
Tan-1n.p¢ and in the mobile application for higher availability
of electronic interaction with consumers during the grid
connection activities

« Proving automated workstations in the offices for applicants
who have no access to the Internet, consulting by Company
specialists on questions arising in application filing

The Light Country portal, a consumer feedback service

at the Rosseti's official website, was also got on track;

a consumer may use the portal to report on the following issues:
- regular power outages,

« voltage fluctuation / low voltage,

- failures of electric equipment.

To support the customer-oriented approach and improve

the quality of services, Rosseti Kuban scheduled the following

activities for 2022:

« Development and consolidation of the call centre structure

- Upgrade in the efficiency of customer service at the office sites
in order to increase the number of consumers of additional
services

Public interactions in 2021

36 online workshops

Roundtable meeting of the regional
branch of the People's Front
“For the Motherland” movement
on the power industry issues

with consumers,
business representatives,
and representatives of executive
authorities on higher accessibility

Participation in the IV All-Russian
Practical Forum “Efficient Operation
and Management of Power
Companies in Russia”

of energy infrastructure
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HUMAN RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES OF THE HR AND SOCIAL POLICY
OF THE COMPANY

The below are the key objectives of HR and Social Policy

of the Company intended to meet the targets of the Russian Power

Grid Industry Development Strategy:

«  Planning the demand in personnel — availability of accurate
information on current and forecast labour demand, both
guantitative and qualitative, as necessary and sufficient to fulfil
the Company's objectives

+ Recruiting necessary skills when needed

« Improving the performance and increasing labour efficiency

Appendices

These key objectives of the HR and Sacial Policy are accomplished
through the range of measures in various aspects
of the Company's activities and the achievement of the targets set.

ASPECTS OF THE HR AND SOCIAL POLICY OF THE COMPANY

Social benefits
and guarantees

(2)

Organisational
planning

(5)

Employee
incentives

Occupational
safety
and work
culture

OO

Human
resourcing
and personnel
development

Headcount
management

In order to maintain a high level of social protection « Bringing as many as possible Company’s personnel to work
for the personnel of Rosseti Kuban, provide employees from home
with guarantees and compensations and minimise the number - Distance learning of employees in all programmes available

of illnesses among the Company’s personnel in 2021, the following ~ «
measures were accepted and implemented:

Providing non-recurrent financial assistance to employees
and veterans
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HEADCOUNT AND PERSONNEL BREAKDOWN

The average number of employees at Rosseti Kuban in 2021 AVERAGE HEADCOUNT DISTRIBUTION ACROSS

was 8,876, down 0.9% year-on-year. This insignificant decrease THE BRANCHES OF ROSSETI KUBAN (%)
in the average headcount was caused by the natural staff rotation.

DYNAMIC PROFILE OF AVERAGE HEADCOUNT \
OF ROSSETI KUBAN IN 2019-2021 (PERSONS) ' ‘

gous 899 8876 ‘

8 Executive office 7 m Slavyansk PG

9 m Adygeyan PG 16 m Sochi PG

7 m Armavir PG 7 m Timashevsk PG

10 ®m Krasnodar PG 7 m Tikhoretsk PG

5 m Labinsk PG 6 Ust-Labinsk PG
o 2 2 8 m Leningrad PG 10 = South-West PG

The Company's staffing level in 2021 was 92.9%, including 92.3% — for production staff. The active personnel turnover rate was 10.5%.
There were a total of 1,184 new hires in 2021, 976 persons (82%) of them were production staff and 67 persons (6%) — support staff.

ANALYSIS OF ACTIVE STAFF TURNOVER IN THE COMPANY IN 2019-2021 (%)

Active turnover rate 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020
(%)

Total for the Company 79 6.6 10.5 3.9

By age groups:

under 35 years 10.4 9.7 14.6 49

35-50 years 8.1 6.6 10.2 36

over 50 years 4.5 3 6.5 35

By gender:

Women 7.5 8.6 9.1 0.5

Men 8.0 6 10.9 49

By region:

Republic of Adygea 12.0 53 13.9 8.6

Krasnodar Territory 7.6 6.7 10.2 35
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STAFF BREAKDOWN BY CATEGORY IN 2019-2021 (%)

2019 2020 2021

B Managers
m  White-collars
m Blue-collars

The personnel breakdown by categories is typical for a company
of the power grid complex and remains stable over the past
three years. Blue-collar workers account for major share
(48.1%), whereas managers hold 22.2% and white-collar
professionals — 29.7%.

STAFF BREAKDOWN BY EDUCATION IN 2019-2021 (%)

The Company's staff is characterised by a sufficiently high level
of qualifications: 86% of employees have professional education,
and the number of employees with higher education is increasing
(over three years, +2.8 p.p.).

2019 2020 2021

B Basic / secondary general
B Basic / secondary vocational
m Higher vocational

STAFF BREAKDOWN BY AGE IN 2019-2021 (%)

The average age of the Company’s employees in 2021 was flat
with the 2020 level — 43 years. Over the past three years, there has
been an increase in the share of employees aged 35-50 (+2.6 p.p.)
against a decrease in the share of employees under 35 (4.2 p.p.)
and the larger share of employees over 50 (+1.6 p.p.).

2019 2020 2021

® Under 35 years old
m 35to 50 years old
®m Older than 50 years old

STAFF BREAKDOWN BY GENDER IN 2021 (%)

The gender composition of the Company’s employees also fits

the typical profile of power grid companies. As at 31 December
2021, the employees of the Company are presented by 72.3%

of men and 27.7% of women; the breakdown by category is shown
in the diagram below.

56.4 19
88.1
43.6
Managers White-collars Blue-collars
H Men
® Women
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STAFF TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Employee training is one of the priorities of the Company’'s human < Regulations on Personnel Training at Rosseti Kuban approved

resources and social policies that is regulated by the following by Order No. 681-od dated 26 November 2020
documents: « Other regulatory documents, as well as prescriptions
+ Rules for Personnel Management in the Electric Power and recommendations of the supervisory authorities
Industry of the Russian Federation, approved by Order No. 796
of the Ministry of Energy of the Russian Federation dated The Company's main provider of educational services
22 September 2020 is the in-house training centre, the Energy Institute for Continuing
+ Rosseti Kuban's HR Management Procedure approved by Order  Education of Kubanenergo (hereinafter — the Institute).
No. 102 dated 22 February 2022 In the reporting year, the share of the Institute’s trainees was 90%

of the total number of the Company’s employees.

STAFF TRAINING FOR ROSSETI KUBAN IN 2019-2021

Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020
(%)
Number of off-the-job trainees (persons) 9143 8,258 8,530 3.3
|nclud|ngproducnonstaﬂ ....................................................................... 8386 .......... 7 373 ................... 7328 _06
" Ratio of the number of off-the-job trainees to average staff headcount w2 % Lpp.
%)
Number of employees who received professional training, retraining 8633 704 7695 92
and advanced training at the Institute (persons)
|nc[ud|ngproducuonstaﬁ ....................................................................... 8[][]3 .......... 6 545 ................... 6927 58
Number of distance training programmes given at the Institute 2% 4 % 652
* Average number of hours of training per employee (academichours) - R B 293

The key indicator (30%) of the Company’s Personnel and Social
Policy is achieved thanks to the existing ratio of the off-the-job
trainees in 2021 to the average headcount.

In 2021, there was a 65% increase in the number of distance
learning programmes offered at the Institute. The development

of distance learning in 2021 was greatly facilitated by the difficult
epidemiological situation in the region of the Company's presence
due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

+65%

GROWTH IN THE NUMBER OF ONLINE EDUCATION PROGRAMMES
IN 2021
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THE STRUCTURE OF PERSONNEL PARTICIPATED IN OFF-
THE-JOB TRAINING IN 2019-2021, BY CATEGORY

THE STRUCTURE OF PERSONNEL PARTICIPATED IN OFF-
THE-JOB TRAINING IN 2019-2021, BY CATEGORY (%)

(PERSONS)
4,078
0.03 0.02 0.00 31247 3,479 3,459
44.60 36.37 40.56 3131 ' 3,003
24.29 1932 2,006
2113 18.66 1,592
34.24 39.32 40.78 I I I
2019 2020
2019 2020 2021
® Managers B Managers
m  White-collars B White-collars
®  Blue-collars M Blue-collars
m  Others

A significant share of the personnel falling under managers and blue collars categories in the total number of the trained personnel
is explained by the mandatory nature of training for such categories and frequency of the same, as required by regulatory documents.

STAFF TRAINING EXPENSES IN 2019-2021 (RUB '000)

Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020
(%)
EXPENSES FOR PERSONNEL TRAINING, TOTAL 106,018 73,836 76,259 +3.3
Including:
“hostedby the Institue 77667 535632 651305 216
hosted by third-party educational institutons 28351 202729 11185 151

Every year, the Institute trains about 8 thousand students in more than 370 educational programmes aligned with the requirements
of professional standards and relevant regulatory documents.

The Institute provides services in the following

areas:

« Training in professional education
programmes (training, retraining, advanced
training of employees), continuing
professional education programmes
(professional retraining, advanced training
of engineering staff)

«Conducting topic-related workshops
and practical training aimed at developing
corporate and managerial competencies
of personnel

« Hosting WorldSkills championships
and vocational skills competitions at various
levels

« Holding conferences, scientific and technical
round tables with the participation
of manufacturers and developers of state-of-
the-art equipment

« Preparing teams for professional skill
competitions

Status of a sectoral training
and methodological centre
for training employees of the
fuel and energy complex in
occupational safety

Accredited and included by the
Russian Ministry of Labour into
the register of organisations
that provide occupational safety
education services

Participant of the Federal
Employment Promotion Project
of the Demography National
Project

Instructors are certified by local
organisations of the Russian Federal
Service for Environmental, Technological
and Nuclear Supervision (Rostekhnadzor)
Opportunity to undergo training in the
programmes agreed with the state
technical supervision authorities

The programmes employ modern
innovative technologies using the latest
teaching tools and methods

Trainees are provided with training
literature, manuals, and handouts

Accredited as a WorldSkills Academy
training centre

Trains personnel in relevant and demanded
skills
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One of the tasks for 2021 within the roadmap for the realisation of the zero-accident
concept in Rosseti Group was the training of safe behaviour coaches in the power industry
(Vision Zero coach). Two training courses were implemented in this area: “Professional
coach of Safe Behaviour in the Power Industry (Vision Zero coach)” and “Fundamentals

of Vision Zero in Behavioural Safety as a Subject of Continuous Attention and Analysis

by the Manager” (training). The programmes are designed for occupational health

and safety specialists and accommodate international practice and the experience of large

companies in the Russian Federation.

In 2021, the Company continued training its personnel in live
working (first launched in 2020).

In order to develop the mentoring system and to create effective
mechanisms for interaction between the mentor and the novice
power utility employee, the following strategic sessions were held
at the Institute in 2021:

« Strategic session on “organisational models and peculiarities
of building the competence in mentoring”

- Strategic session on “technology, practical tools and criteria
for evaluating the effectiveness of mentoring process
participants”

« Strategic session on “processes of implementing the mentoring
system: communication, motivation, feedback”

The key providers of educational services in 2021, other than

the Institute, were:

+ Rostov-on-Don Training Centre Energetik

« Federal State Budget Institution — Learning and Training
Centre of Rostechnadzor

« Federal State Budget Institution — Training Centre of FAS
of Russia

« LLC Uralenergoservice

- EKRA Scientific and Educational Centre, etc.

Mentoring training is a cycle of new programmes designed

to ensure intergenerational continuity, transfer personal
professional experience to young employees, adapt and motivate
new employees to establish a long-term employment relationship
with the Company.

In 2021, as a part of the implementation of the Rosseti Group’s
Digital Transformation 2030 concept approved by the Group’s
Board of Directors (Minutes No. 336 dated 21 December 2018),
training for the Company'’s personnel on the advanced course
Digitalisation of the Power Grid Complex was implemented.

THE GOAL OF THE PROGRAMME IS TO BUILD THE DIGITAL SKILLS
OF THE COMPANY'S EMPLOYEES AND INTRODUCE INFORMATION
SECURITY, SMART METERING, VIRTUAL AND AUGMENTED REALITY
TECHNOLOGIES INTO THE POWER GRID COMPLEX.

In the reporting year, 449 employees of the Company (5.1%

of the average headcount) were sent for independent qualification
assessment to the Qualification Centre Energia (a branch

of JSC Energetik Health Resort); out of those, 419 successfully
passed the professional examination and confirmed their
professional qualification. In 2021, 1,391 people took part

in the assessment of the Company's needs in recruitment,
personnel shake-up, comprehensive assessment of managers
by the Assessment Centre method, and psychodiagnostic
assessment.

449

EMPLOYEES UNDERWENT AN INDEPENDENT QUALIFICATION
ASSESSMENT IN 2021

3%

CONFIRMED THEIR PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS
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TALENT POOL

To meet the Company demand for qualified and efficient managers
in a timely manner and create conditions for the best fulfilment

The main criteria to include employees in the management talent
pool are as follows:

of the staff potential of PJSC Rosseti Kuban, the Company « high professional qualification,
constantly updates and improves its management talent pool « strong production performance,
and intern talent pool. - managerial experience,

- personal and managerial potential necessary for professional
The management talent pool is created to satisfy the Company development and career growth in the Company.
demand in management staff in a timely and efficient manner,
including the following positions:
+senior managers,
+mid-rank managers,

«managers and chief engineers for power grid regions.

TALENT POOLS OF THE COMPANY

Indicator 2019 2020 2021
Headcount of talent pools (persons) 406 251 242
The share of managerial positions secured by the talent 5931 69.93 6432
pool (%)

Share of succession candidates appointed to target 33 33 L6
positions in the reporting year (%)

Share of management positions staffed by internal 58.4 56.8 63.9
candidates, including those from the talent pools (%)

Youth talent pool (persons) 147 140 100

The youth talent pool consists of young specialists aged under 35
years who have high growth potential and are motivated for career
progress in the Company.

The membership of the Company’s youth talent pools is updated
on an annual basis, and development plans for young
professionals include participation in training programmes,
discipline-related trainings aimed at personal growth

and development of competencies, industry-wide and regional
conferences, and youth forums in order to get acquainted

with the best practices of power grid companies in a timely
manner.
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THE KEY PRINCIPLES OF THE SOCIAL POLICY OF PJSC ROSSETI KUBAN INCLUDE THE CREATION

OF COMFORTABLE CONDITIONS FOR EMPLOYEES" WORK AND REST, THE IMPROVEMENT OF SOCIAL
SECURITY AND LABOUR/SOCIAL RELATIONS AMONG EMPLOYEES. SOCIAL ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
ARE AIMED AT THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE SOCIAL PARTNERSHIP, THE IMPROVEMENT OF EMPLOYEES'
SOCIAL SECURITY, AND THE CREATION OF DEVELOPMENT PROSPECTS FOR THE COMPANY

AS A WHOLE.

ROSSETI KUBAN GIVES PRIORITY TO SOCIAL SUPPORT

AS IT CONTRIBUTES TO THE MOTIVATION OF EMPLOYEES

AND BOOST THEIR DEDICATION TO PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES.

THE BENEFITS AND GUARANTEES IN PLACE IN THE COMPANY,

AS WELL AS SOCIAL PROGRAMMES AND EMPLOYEE SUPPORT
PROGRAMMES, HELP ATTRACT AND RETAIN THE MOST VALUABLE
EMPLOYEES, PROMOTE STAFF LOYALTY TO THE COMPANY,

AND FACILITATE THE ACHIEVEMENT OF ITS GOALS.

While demanding the maximum commitment and improved
performance from its staff, the Company acknowledges that it
is necessary to provide the employees with extra social benefits
and guarantees exceeding those prescribed by law and funded
from the Company profits.

The Social Policy of PJSC Rosseti Kuban is aligned with

the Sectoral Tariff Agreement of the Electric Power Industry

of the Russian Federation, the Collective Agreement, bylaws, rules,
and other local regulatory documents.

In accordance with the collective agreement, as part of the social
package, the Company’s employees receive financial assistance
in case of childbirth, marriage registration, burial of close
relatives, retirement, difficult financial situation (emergency
case), status of families with many children, and in case of death
of an employee as well. Compensation is also paid for childcare
in pre-schools, etc.

SOCIAL BENEFITS FOR THE COMPANY’S EMPLOYEES,
THEIR FAMILY MEMBERS AND RETIREES (RUB MN)

Social event 2019 2020 2021
Financial assistance 29.74 37.28 4523
to employees

and retirees

Compensation 0.78 0.72 0.97
payments

FINANCIAL SUPPORT FOR WORKERS

AND RETIREES

The Collective Agreement of the Company covers the support

of employees who need better housing conditions through financial
aid in mortgage arrangement and partial payment of credit interest.
In the reporting period, the Company paid a total of RUB 11.07 mn
to 395 employees as financial aid.

THE SOCIAL SECURITY OF EMPLOYEES AND NON-MATERIAL
INCENTIVES ARE PROMOTED THROUGH THE NON-STATE PENSION
PROVISION SCHEMES DESIGNED TO ENSURE A DECENT LEVEL

OF WELL-BEING OF EMPLOYEES AT RETIREMENT AGE, TO LAY
THE GROUNDWORK FOR THE EFFECTIVE ADDRESSING OF HR
ISSUES RELATED TO RECRUITMENT, RETENTION AND MOTIVATION.

Being a socially responsible Company, Rosseti Kuban takes care
of the Company's veterans and retirees. Honouring the veterans
and providing them with monetary support is an integral
component of the Company’s social performance. Rosseti

Kuban renders monthly financial aid to non-working retirees.

In the reporting period, over 2.7 thousand of the Company
veterans and retirees received various benefits (monetary support
for the Victory Day, the Power Engineer Day, monthly monetary
support and on-application monetary support, etc) to the total

of RUB 10.52 mn.
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RECREATION

An important factor in improving the workforce efficiency

is the promotion of health and recreation of employees and their
children. In the reporting year, 608 vouchers were purchased

for health resort treatment and recreation of employees and their
family members, and 137 employees were partially compensated
for the cost of vouchers to children’s health camps.

SPORT

Rosseti Kuban focuses on the development and maintenance

of healthy lifestyle of its employees and arranges health,

fitness, and participation sports among the employees, while

providing them with access to the sports facilities. The outcomes

of the reporting year:

« Employees of Rosseti Kuban took an active part
in the fulfilment of the test standards of the All-Russian
Physical Culture and Sports Complex — Ready for Labour
and Defence (GTO relay race)

«The combined team of Rosseti Kuban took part
in the championship of the Interregional Amateur Basketball
League “Liga Strat KAUB 5x5" of the 2020/2021 season

+ Rosseti Kuban's team took part in an open Spartakiade in seven
sports: mini-football, volleyball, table tennis, chess, track-and-
field athletics, weightlifting and swimming

« Rosseti Kuban's employees also took part in the Krasnodar
Workers' Spartakiade

CULTURE

Rosseti Kuban attaches great importance to cultural-
enlightenment events that help unite and rally its personnel, thus
improving the corporate culture. In 2021, the following activities
were carried out:
« Celebrating Defender of the Fatherland Day and March 8
« Children’s drawing contest “Rosseti: Children Draw!” as part
of the contest among children of the Group’s employees
+ Celebration of the 74th anniversary of the Victory in the Great
Patriotic War of 1941-1945
« Celebration of Knowledge Day: congratulations to the children
of employees, both first-graders and graduation class students
« Children’s drawing competition “Autumn through the Eyes
of Children”
« Corporate children’s creative contest “Energy of Talents”
« Celebration of the 100th anniversary of the establishment
of Rosseti Kuban's branch: Krasnodar Power Grids

Rosseti Kuban provides its employees with a high quality modern
medical services by signing agreements for their voluntary health
insurance and accident insurance.

Given the restrictions on holding sports events due to the spread

of COVID-19, the combined teams of Rosseti Kuban took part

in the following online competitions in the reporting year:

« The first official World Chess Championship for corporations

« The “Energy of the Great Victory” chess tournament

« Competitions in running (race walking) and cycling housed
by the specialised online sports platform Vmarafone, among
the employees of fuel and energy companies of Russia

+ Xl Open Chess Tournament of Power Engineers in memory
of M. Botvinnik

+ New Year's Eve celebrations: a greeting for employees
and children of the Company’s employees

More than 400 children took part in the qualifying and final
stages of the children’s competitions, and more than 150 of them
were awarded valuable prizes and gifts.

Traditionally, the Company pays great attention to the preparation
and celebration of the Power Engineer Day — the professional
holiday of the Company.
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ANTI-COVID MEASURES
In order to maintain a high level of social protection for employees 0 0/
and to safeguard against coronavirus infection COVID-19, a range 0

of information and organisational measures were implemented
in the Company:

« Printed and electronic information materials on prevention OF OUR EMPLOYEES WERE VACCINATED AGAINST COVID-19
of COVID-19 coronavirus infection and vaccination

were distributed
« Ahotline was set up to help and advise employees

«Vaccination against coronavirus infection was organised,
with more than 80% of employees vaccinated during
the reporting period thS tEStS

Due to the epidemiological situation, remote work mode was set  £qp coRONAVIRUS WERE CONDUCTED FOR EMPLOYEES IN 2021
during the period of rising incidence of coronavirus infection.

The employees were regularly tested for COVID-19 to protect
health, maintain the safe operation of the Company and prevent
the spread of coronavirus infection. More than 56 ths tests 1 8
for coronavirus infection were taken in 2021.
« U RUB mn

In the reporting year, Rosseti Kuban provided financial assistance ,
to employees who experienced hardship due to the spread THE AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL AID TO THE COMPANY'’S EMPLOYEES

of a new coronavirus infection, totalling RUB 1.81 mn AFFECTED BY COVID-19

YOUTH POLICY

?eea[;?mpany's Youth Policy covers the activities in three key A I_ I_ _ R U S S | A N

« Early career guidance of schoolchildren

« Practice-oriented training of personnel in educational O I_YM PlAD

institutions of secondary vocational and higher education

. Efr?;‘]:s&o;;ﬁivelopment of junior specialists — employees 0 F S CH 0 0 I_CH | I_D R EN

WORKING WITH SCHOOLCHILDREN To trace and foster talented schoolchildren, the Company

annually orchestrates the All-Russian Olympiad of Schoolchildren

The Company conducts comprehensive vocational guidance at Rosseti's Group of Companies. In 2021, more than 70 students
for the schoolchildren. It includes an open day and study tours of grades 9 and 10 joined the competition, thus representing

of the Company’s facilities, as well as special training sessions the regions where the Company operates. Three schoolchildren
in schools conducted by the Company employees. The total who became winners and awardees of the Olympiad took part
number of sponsored schoolchildren participating in vocational in the energy-related project session of Rossetti's Group hosted
guidance projects of Rosseti Kuban amounted to more than 265 by the Orlyonok All-Russian Children’s Centre.

people in 2021, and this figure stayed flat with same periods

in 2020 and 2019.

Vocational guidance is provided to schoolchildren in order
to develop their interest in the power industry and to help them
enter universities and colleges in their fields of study.
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WORKING WITH STUDENTS

As at 31 December 2021, there were 62 cooperation agreements
with universities and colleges in the territory of the Company’s
presence. The main areas of cooperation are target education,
practical training, vocational guidance, and organisation

of student teams. Kuban State Agrarian University and Kuban
State Technological University are among the Company's partner
universities.

As at 31 December 2021, 37 students were enrolled in specialised

universities under targeted training agreements with the Company.

The focus areas of targeted training include Electric Power

and Electrical Engineering, Information Systems and Technologies.

37

STUDENTS STUDY AT RELEVANT UNIVERSITIES UNDER TARGET
STUDY AGREEMENTS WITH THE COMPANY

468

STUDENTS COMPLETED INTERNSHIPS
AT THE COMPANY'S FACILITIES IN 2021

GRADUATES WERE RECRUITED BY THE COMPANY

There were a total of 468 students who received hands-on training
at the Company'’s facilities in the reporting period (vs. 701

trainees in 2020 and 813 in 2019). The number of students sent
for internships in 2021 compared to previous periods decreased
due to the epidemiological situation related to the pandemic

of the new coranavirus infection COVID-19.

2021 LABOUR SEASON

The 2021 labour season engaged 99 people divided into five
student teams. Working at the Company'’s facilities started
with the apprenticeship for a job in educational institutions.
The branches of the Company organised the hands-on training,
where students were given assignments related to assembling
power transmission poles, laying power cables, installing
equipment, taking meter readings, and clearing right-of-ways.

In 2021, the Company hired 69 junior specialists who had just
graduated from universities and colleges.

The professional and sacial adaptation of junior specialists,
training, career advancement, promotion of scientific and technical
potential, social support and involvement in the implementation

of socially important projects, including through participation

in young specialists’ councils, are the objectives of the Youth Policy
covering the young employees of the Company.

The Company encourages the participation of young specialists

in scientific and technical conferences, competitions and forums.
Vladimir Kizin, head of the Relay Protection and Automation
Service of Rosseti Kuban, was recognised the first prize winner

in the International Competition for Scientific, Scientific, Technical
and Innovative Research for Development of the Fuel, Energy

and Extractive Industries 2021, which is supported by the Ministry
of Energy of the Russian Federation. Employees of Rosseti
Kuban'’s Sochi branch, Alexey Lobanov, head of the Retrofitting
and Renovation of Power Grid Facilities, and Dmitry Krutov, head
of the Operations and Dispatch Service, became winners of the 2nd
All-Russian Power Industry Leaders competition and were among
the Top 100 out of more than 3,000 participants.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH

AND SAFETY

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

THE KEY OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY PRINCIPLE OF ROSSETI KUBAN IS TO RECOGNISE AND PRIORITISE
EMPLOYEES' LIVES AND HEALTH OVER THE RESULTS OF THE COMPANY'S PRODUCTION

PERFORMANCE.

The occupational safety initiatives of the Company are aligned

with the statutory requirements of the Russian Federation, regional
laws, industry sector codes and rules, and executive documents.
During 2021, the occupational safety system was subject

to systematic improvement across all divisions of the Company
with a view to prevent job-related injuries and promote better
working conditions as required by the key regulatory documents
on occupational safety.

Maintaining safe working conditions and labour safety at Rosseti
Kuban and compliance of the same with the requirements
established is the responsibility of the Company's management.
The Company fully complies with the requirements of the Russian
laws regarding the occupational safety obligations of the employer.

The year 2021 was proclaimed the Year of Occupational Safety
(the Year of Safety Culture) by the Company’s Order No. 2-od dated
11 January 2021.

By introducing and promoting safety culture, the Company’s
management proves its commitment to a policy of prevention
and reduction of occupational injuries and illnesses.

The Company aims to establish own unified labour management
system and to ensure safe and normal working conditions

for employees at all stages of production. In addition, compliance
with occupational health and safety requirements is monitored
at all management levels within the Company. To implement

the same, the Company has STO 00104604-1SM 007-2018
Regulations on Labour Protection Management System

in place that meets the requirements of GOST 12.0.230-2007,
interstate standards for labour protection management systems,
as well as the labour legislation of the Russian Federation.

THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY OBJECTIVES OF ROSSETI KUBAN

Creating healthy

and safe working environment

Consistent and continuous reduction
of occupational injury rate and ill health

Ensuring a high level
of corporate safety culture
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The management of the Company (the Company's
branches) annually analyses and evaluates the achievement
of the occupational safety goals.

FOLLOWING THE FUNCTIONAL ANALYSIS OF THE OCCUPATIONAL
HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IN 2021,

THE COMPANY CONSIDERS THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE TOTAL
CORPORATE EFFORTS INVESTED TO BE SATISFACTORY.

In 2020, in order to create and ensure the operation of a unified
occupational health and safety management system in Rosseti
Group and to improve the occupational safety system,
the Company adopted the corporate standards approved
by the order of PJSC Rosseti and uses them for reference
purposes. Based on the results of their application in the reporting
year, proposals were sent to PJSC Rosseti to improve
the documented procedures of the occupational health and safety
management system within Rosseti Group. During 2021,
systematic work was carried out to improve occupational safety,
prevent occupational accidents and improve working conditions:
The Company undertook occupational safety measures
developed following the requirements of order No. 181n
of the Ministry of Healthcare and Social Development of Russia
dated 1 March 2012 On Approval of Standard List of Annual
Employer Events for Improvement of Working Conditions
and Occupational Safety and Professional Risks Mitigation
« Comprehensive programmes were implemented to reduce
the risk of injuries to the Company’s personnel and third parties
from electric shocks at the facilities of the Company’s power
grid complex
« Monthly video conference calls were held with the participation
of first deputy directors — chief engineers and heads of branch
divisions
Monthly occupational health and safety days were held,
allowing a large number of employees to be involved
in the process of self-supervision and mutual supervision
and increasing their knowledge and experience
+ Some training sessions were held at the Company branches
to explain the functioning of the occupational safety system
and to determine potential threats and risks for employees’
health and safety in a timely manner in a form of business
games involving the specialists in mental and physiological
support of professional activities
« The Armavir, Slavyansk and Sochi Power Grids branches carried
out comprehensive inspections of compliance with current
legislation of the Russian Federation and local regulatory acts
of the Company aimed at preventing occupational accidents
and third-party injuries
+ Heads of branches, business units and their deputies carried
out unannounced inspections of workplaces to check
the personnel’'s compliance with occupational safety
rules when organising and carrying out work on electrical
installations

There was one occupational accident, and no occupational
diseases were diagnosed among the Company’s personnel during
the reporting year.

To promote employees' health and life-span, the Company
purchased necessary protection and safety equipment in 2021.
The annual purchase order for working wear and shoes was fully
executed.

434 3RUB mn

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY COSTS IN 2021 (+20% VS. 2020)

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY COSTS (RUB MN)

434
362

269

2019 2020 2021

Specific expenses for personal protective equipment (PPE) per one
employee amounted to RUB 22.65 ths, up 5.5% year-on-year.

Specific expenses for occupational safety per one employee
amounted to RUB 48.9 ths, up 21.1% year-on-year.

22 7 RUB ths

SPECIFIC EXPENSES FOR PPE PER EMPLOYEE (+5.5% VS. 2020)

48.9 RUB ths

SPECIFIC EXPENSES FOR LABOUR PROTECTION PER EMPLOYEE
(+21% VS. 2020)
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SPECIFIC OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY COSTS PER 48.93
EMPLOYEE (RUB '000) 40,40
Following the Labour Code of the Russian Federation,
the standard financing of the improvement of working 3022 31.08
conditions and occupational safety amounts to at least 0.2%
of the manufacturing costs for products (works, services); 20.80
the actual amount of financing stood at 0.87%.

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
The operational supervision of industrial safety is aligned « Decree of the Government of the Russian Federation
with the Company’s Order No. 550-o0d dated 28 September No. 2168 dated 18 December 2020 On the Organisation
2021 On the Appointment of Persons Responsible and Implementation of Operational Supervision
for Operational Supervision of whether Industrial Safety over Compliance with Industrial Safety Requirements
Requirements are Complied with at Hazardous Facilities,
as well as with the Regulation of Operational Supervision Rosseti Kuban has three hazardous production facilities
of whether Industrial Safety Requirements are Complied registered at the Federal Service for Environmental, Technological
with at Hazardous Facilities approved by Order No. 324 dated and Nuclear Supervision (certificate No. A30-00777 dated
9 June 2020 and elaborated in line with the following: 13 October 2020). In 2019-2021, the hazardous production
+ Federal Law No. 116-FZ dated 21 July 1997 On Industrial Safety ~ facilities were operated following the requirements set out

of Hazardous Production Facilities in technical regulatory documents.

« Order No. 461 of the Federal Service for Environmental,
Technological and Nuclear Supervision dated 26 November
2020 On Approval of Federal Standards and Rules for Industrial
Safety of Hazardous Production Facilities, Safety Rules
for Hazardous Production Facilities with Hoisting Equipment

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE PERSONNEL IN TERMS OF TRAINING
IN INDUSTRIAL SAFETY

Employees authorised to operate hazardous production

tacilities Personnel responsible for fire safety

Fire safety training Training at specialised organisations or self-training

Pre-examination training Certification by the territorial certification
commission of Rostechnadzor or corporate
certification commission

Knowledge check on fire safety rules in due procedure




ROSSETI KUBAN, PJSC 1 2 3 4 5. Sustainable Development 6 Appendices

ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

THE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY OF THE COMPANY'S POWER GRID COMPLEX SETS GOALS FOR REDUCING
THE NEGATIVE IMPACT ON THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND ENSURING ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY

AT FACILITIES, AS WELL AS FOR THE RATIONAL USE OF NATURAL RESOURCES. IN ADDITION,

THE COMPANY PLANS TO MODERNISE EQUIPMENT AND APPLY INNOVATIVE AND ENVIRONMENTALLY
FRIENDLY TECHNOLOGIES IN THE RETROFITTING, RENOVATION AND CONSTRUCTION OF POWER GRIDS.

When transferring the most efficient type of energy « Operation of vehicles, machines (cutting, drilling, woodworking,
to consumers — electric energy, Rosseti Kuban adversely affects turning and sharpening), welding and painting works, chemical
the natural environment components. analysis of transformer oils, transformer oil storage.

The Company carries out an annual update of significant Since 2009, the Company has had an environmental management
environmental aspects. Key aspects of the Company's system in place that enables it to effectively manage
environmental impact include: environmental risks, prevent and reduce its negative impact

- Generation, disposal and transfer of waste to third parties on the environment and improve its image.

« Arrangement of oil-filled equipment
« Storage of materials and equipment

ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN 2021

All of the scheduled environmental policy activities « The Company adhered to the requirements of the Russian
were implemented in the reporting year, including the following: Environmental Laws:
«  Implementation of the requirements of the Stockholm Convention 1. Industrial environmental monitoring at pollutant sources,
on Persistent Organic Pollutants. The Environmental Policy sanitary protection zone boundaries, pollutant water discharge
of the power grid complex sets out a goal for 100% phasing- paints to check the compliance with the set standards
out of equipment that contains polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) for acceptable environmental impact
with its further disposal by 2025. Such equipment is phased 2. Sanitary protection zane projects were developed and approved
out under the Plan for the Decommissioning of Equipment by controlling bodies for 42 power facilities of all the Company’s
that Contains PCBs for 2018-2023 approved by the resolution branches and its executive office, to designate special areas
of Kubanenergo Board of Directors (Minutes No. 296/2018 dated acting as buffers and providing the protection for the residents
23 January 2018) during the operation of the facilities
« The following technical actions were taken to reduce the adverse
impact on the environment:
1. Replacement of 112 ail-filled bushings with solid-insulation
433 UNITS bushings
OF PCB-CONTAINING EQUIPMENT REPLACED 2. Repair (renovation_) of emergency oil discharge systems
and transformer oil receivers at 21 substations to prevent
WITH ENVIRONMENTALLY SAFE ONES potential environmental contamination
3. Construction/renovation of a 570-km long high voltage
1,343 UNITS line using self-supporting insulated wires, including
for the purposes of biodiversity preservation
OF DISMANTLED EQUIPMENT TRANSFERRED 4. Installation of a total of 4,217 bird diverters to preserve

FOR SAFE DISPOSAL the biodiversity and prevent depth of animals and birds
in the course of production processes
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5. Recycling/recovery of up to 22.9 tonnes of transformer oil
(~10% of the oil purchased per year) to reduce the amount
of natural resources consumed

6. Voluntary environmental responsibility mechanisms
are maintained in operating conditions

ACCORDING TO THE RESULTS OF THE RECERTIFICATION AUDIT

OF 2021 CONDUCTED BY THE AUDITORS FROM LLC ROSTEKHSERT,

THE COMPANY SUCCESSFULLY CONFIRMED ITS COMPLIANCE
WITH THE NEW REVISION OF ISO 14001:2015 — ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM. THE CERTIFICATE ISSUED AS A RESULT
OF THE AUDIT IS VALID UNTIL MARCH 2024.

126 127

BIOLOGICAL DIVERSITY PRESERVATION:

970

OF HIGH VOLTAGE LINES ARE MADE WITH SELF-SUPPORTING
INSULATED WIRES

4,217

BIRD DIVERTERS WERE INSTALLED IN 2021

CHANGES OF EXPENSES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY (RUB '000)

175,808.36

15,146.62 8,750,641

Actual costs for 2020 (RUB ths)

11,759.94

W Decommissioning of PCB-containing equipment
M Rationing and environmental control

15,178.30

_— |
Actual costs for 2021 (RUB ths)

242,527.23
212,561.81

18,083.39 15,336.30
R L
Planned costs for 2022 (RUB ths)

764.70

B Other (training, audit)
B Technical arrangements

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE IN 2021

The gross air emissions increased by 3% year-on-year (to 64.67
tonnes).

TOTAL GROSS AIR EMISSIONS (T)

6014 6273 62.80 6467
259 1.87
2020 - 2021
| Solid
W Gaseous and liquid
| Total

In 2021, the Company achieved a reduction in the generation
of waste of hazard classes Il and IV. This decreased the volume
of waste sent for recycling and disposal by 4.2% (to 532 tonnes).

WASTE GENERATION IN THE COURSE
OF THE COMPANY’S ACTIVITIES IN 2021 (T)

2,07097
1,835.01

8538 792.43

073 700 1163 64.22 54/, 1387

2020 2021

B |V class of hazard
V class of hazard

B | class of hazard
B |l class of hazard
M |ll class of hazard
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY IN 2019-2021

Indicator 2019 2020 2021 A 2020/2021 (%)
Gross air emissions, total (t) 71.44 62.73 64.67 3.1
Volume of waste transferred for disposal and treatment, t 60575 55508 53157 42
Enwronmental.mpactfee(RUBO[][])211[.922659 ........... 17077 ...................... —21.6
Installation of bird diverters at power grid facilites 2306 L9718 w7 -153

ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND ENERGY SAVING

In the reporting year, the Company aligned its energy saving The targets of the Programme are as follows:
and energy efficiency improvement activities with: + Reduction of electricity losses in transmission and distribution
« Decree of the Government of the Russian Federation No. 161 « Consumption of energy resources for utility needs

dated 11 February 2021 On Establishing Requirements + Number of LED-based lighting devices

for Regional and Municipal Energy Saving and Energy Efficiency
Improvement Programmes
Federal Lal\)N of the Russian Federation NC(; 2?]1 -FZ ((jjated ENERGY SAVING TARGETS
23 November 2009 On Energy Saving and Enhanced Energy i
Efficiency, as well as Amendments to Certain Legislative Acts IN 2021 WERE ACHIEVED:
of the Russian Federation

« Decree of the Government of the Russian Federation No. 340

dated 15 May 2010 On the Procedure for Setting Requirements

for Energy Saving and Energy Efficiency Improvement 0

Programmes of Organisations Engaged in Regulated Activities 0
+ Decree of the Government of the Russian Federation |

On Investment Programmes of Electric Power Industry Entities 0
No. 977 dated 1 December 2009 (as amended) ELECTRICITY LOSSES AGAINST A TARGET OF 10.50%

+ Order of RPC-PTD KT On Approval of Requirements
for Programmes in the Field of Energy Saving and Energy

Efficiency Improvement of Organisations Engaged in Regulated
Activities in the Krasnodar Territory No. 5/2011 dated 31 March
2011
+ Law of the Krasnodar Territory On Energy Saving and Energy ] ths T FO E

Effciency | tin the Krasnodar Territory No. 1912-KZ
Ged3Marchzol0. CONSUMPTION OF ENERGY RESOURCES AGAINST A TARGET OF

- Energy Saving and Energy Efficiency Improvement 4.27 THS TFOE)
Programme of Rosseti Kuban for 2017-2022, approved
by decision of the Board of Directors on 2 June 2021
(Minutes No. 436/2021) (hereinafter — the Programme)

To make sure that the Programme is implemented as is right 0
and proper, Rosseti Kuban appointed the persons responsible 0
for arranging and monitoring its fulfilment and established working

groups. OF LIGHTING DEVICES ARE OF LED TYPE
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COMPANY'S INDICATORS FOR ENERGY CONSUMPTION AND ENERGY SAVINGS IN 2019-2021

Indicator Units Period

of measurement 2019 2020 2021 A 2021/2020
(%)

Consumption of energy resources ths TFOE 417 VA 416 0.5

for utility needs of administrative RUan """"""""" 1 1474 """""""""" 12074 """""""""" 12375 '

and industrial buildings

Consumption of natural resources ths cum 73.19 68.70 69.45 1.1

for utlty needs of administrative RUan .................... 2 53 ...................... 25] ...................... 262 .

and industrial buildings

Motor fuel consumption by mator ths TFOE 9.06 8.72 8.79 08

vehicles and special-purpose RUB mn 300.05 284.92 303,55

vehicles

AMOUNT OF ENERGY RESOURCES USED BY THE COMPANY IN 2021

Types of resources Units of measurement 2021 2021 A (%)
(plan) (actual)
Atomic energy The resource is not used
. Thermalenergy ............. Gcal ............................................................................... 2655 85 ............. 3] 83 90 .................. ]99
RUan ................................................................................ 900 ................... 64[. .
e energy .............. L gy o e
RUan ............................................................................. ]2471 ................ 11658 .
. Ele Ctromagnﬂ | C ............ The resource | S 5 ot u sed ...............................................................................................................
energy
Petroleum
. Mo tor petml .................. thsl ............................................................................... 43 83 1 [] ............. 4286 59 .................. - 2 2
RUan ............................................................................. 17609 ................ fagee
P o 33 Do 31 gy e
RUan ............................................................................. 13284 ................ 13178
. Fur nace f uel 0 |l .............. The res Ource | S 5 ot u sed ...............................................................................................................
S algas ................... o g s Gy
RUan ................................................................................ ]62 ................... 072 .
Coal .............................................................................................................................................................................
e |
Peat --------------------------- The resource is not used
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MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The Company has adopted and currently has in place the following < Energy Management System that is a part of the Company's

management systems: overall management system, which has a well-defined

+ Quality Management System that is a part of the Company’s organisational structure and focuses on fulfilling the provisions
overall management system with the own organisational stated in the energy policy through the Programme on Energy
structure, processes, procedures, and resources necessary Saving and Energy Efficiency Improvement
for the general quality management « The Occupational Health and Safety Manageme